BUSINESS PARKS REIT

Date: November 11, 2020
To,

BSE Limited

25™ Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400001

Scrip Code “543217” (Units) and Scrip Code “960104” (Debentures)

Subject: Intimation under SEBI circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated April 13, 2018
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, in respect of Debentures (defined below) issued by Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Dear Sir / Madam,

We wish to inform you that the Governing Board of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (“Manager”),
manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“Mindspace REIT”) at its meeting held on Wednesday,
November 11, 2020, through audio-visual electronic communication has, inter-alia:

1. approved the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements and Unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financials Statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter and six months
ended September 30, 2020, which are enclosed herewith as “Annexure —-1".

2. noted that proceeds raised through issue of 10 year G-sec linked secured, listed guaranteed, senior,
taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked secured, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures (“Debentures”) by Mindspace REIT have been utilized in line with the objectives
as stated in the Information Memorandum dated September 28, 2020, without any deviations or
variations in the stated use of proceeds.

Pursuant to Paragraph 5.2.3 to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated April 13,
2018, read with Paragraph 3 to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/08/2020 dated January 17, 2020, a
statement of deviation / variation is enclosed herewith as “Annexure-2”. Further, a statement of use of
proceeds is also set out at page no 22 of the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial
Statements and at page no 38 of the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Results of
Mindspace REIT, which are enclosed herewith as Annexure 1.

The details of extent and nature of security created and maintained with respect to the Debentures are
set out at page nos. 15 to 16 of the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statement and at
page nos. 27 to 28 of the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financials Statements of Mindspace
REIT, which are enclosed herewith as Annexure 1.

Please take the same on your record.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com



BUSINESS PARKS REIT

Thanking you,

For and on behalf of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

PREETI
NAVEEN b

CH H ED Date: 2020.11.11

21:01:29 +05'30'

Authorised Signatory

Name: Preeti Chheda

Designation: Chief Financial Officer
Place: Mumbai

Encl: as above

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com



Annexure -1

Chartered Accountants

DEIOitte Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A- G

Haskins & Sells LLP CTS No.185/4, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REVIEW REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED
STANDALONE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Governing Board,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (the “"REIT”), which comprise the
unaudited Condensed Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2020, the unaudited
Condensed Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the
unaudited Condensed Statement of Cash Flow for quarter and six months ended
September 30, 2020, the unaudited Condensed Statement of changes in Unitholders’
Equity for the six months ended September 30, 2020 along with summary of the
significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes (together hereinafter
referred as the “"Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements”).

2. The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of
the Investment Manager and approved by the Governing Board of the Investment
Manager, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI
Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (the “SEBI circular’);
recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the
SEBI circular, including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder. Our responsibility
is to issue a report on the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements based
on our review.

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements
(SRE) 2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent
Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the

Investment Manager’s personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and
applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope
than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion.

=

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27t" — 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

4. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3
above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements have not been
prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in
Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI
circular, including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder, has not disclosed the
information required to be disclosed including the manner in which it is to be disclosed
in terms of the SEBI circular, or that it contains any material misstatement.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

/\/.v/ff‘fj'“’

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 49660

Mumbai, November 11, 2020 UDIN: 20049660AAAACU4242



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Siandalone Balance Sheet

(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-curreni assels
Financial assets
» Investments
- Loans
« Other financial assels
Other non-current assels
Total non-current asseta

Current asseis
Financial assets
- Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Total Current assets

Toial assets
EQUITY AND LIARILITIES

EQUITY
Corpus
Unit Capital
Other Equity
Total Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings
- Other financial habilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial lighilities
- Trade payables
- total sutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and
- total outstanding dugs of Creditors other than miero and smal)
enterprises,
- Other financial liabilities
Currenl tax ligbilities (net)
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

See the accompanying notes 1o the Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements

Ag per our report of even date atlached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLFP

Chertered Accountants
Firm’s regisiration number: | [7366W/W-[00018 \

e s
NN
ﬂ " e ;
| N
Nilesh Shah « | Meel C. Raheja
Parter | Member

Membership number; 49560 | DIN; 0029010

Place Mumbai
Date : 11 Nov 2020

Place. Mumbai
Date : 1T Nov 2020

Note As at As at
30 Seplember 2020 31 March 2020
(Unsudited) {Audited)
4 153,103
5 10,108
6 0
7 W 3
163,214
8 4,746 0
] i ?
4,750 0
167,%64 0
L0 0 0
11 162,83% -
12 65 {49)
162,904 4"
13 4,972
14 2
4974
15
8 =
16 59 49
17 2
13 17 .
86 49
167,964 0
| -33

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
acling as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

/,u.oufu p b=t

Preeti N, Chheda

L

Yinod M. Rohira

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00460667 DIN; 08066703
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 11 Nov 2020 Date : 11 Nov 2020



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS RELT
RM:IN/REIT/19-20{003

Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

For the quarter For the quarter For the half year ended From 18 November
Note ended 30 September  ended 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 2019 to 31 March 2020
2020 (Unaudited) (Unandited) {(Unaudited) (Audited)*
Income and gains
Interest 1% 125 - 125
Onher [hcome 20 4 - 4
Total Income 129 - 129
Expenses
Valuation expenses (i 6
Audit fees 1 1 2 1
Insurance expenses 0 L]
Trustee fees 1 1 -
Legal and professional fees ) 3 2 25
Orther expenses 21 {l 1 0 23
Total Ex penses 6 5 11 49
Earnings/ (Joss) before finance costs,
depreciation, amortisation and income tax 123 (5) 118 {49)
Finance costs 22 2 - 2 s
Depreciation and amortisation expense = - - -
Profit/ (loss) before tax 121 (3] 116 {49
Tax expense: 23
Current tax 2 - Z
Deferred tax - - -
2 - 2 -
Profit/ (loss) for the period 119 {5) 114 {4%)
Items of other comprehensive income
Iterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of defined benefil liability, net of tax - - - -
Total comprehensive income Tor the period 119 5 114 (49)
Earning per unit - refer Note 24
Basic 0.29 Nat Applicable 0.56 Not Applicable
Diluted 0,29 Not Applicable 0.56 Not Applicable

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed 1-33
Standalone Financial Statements.

*Since Mindspace REIT was registered pursuant to & trust deed dated 18 November 2019, the management has provided the information in Condensed Standalone
Staternent of Profit and Loss with effect from said period i.e. 18 November 2019 for the period ended 31 March 2020. Consequently, the information for corresponding
quarter and half year ending 30 June 2019 and 30 Septembier 2019 have not been presented

As per our report of even date attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Governing Board of
Chartered Accountants K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
Firm’s registration number: 11 7366W/W-100018 {acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
/ WM’ ~q\
=) '\__. Q‘ '
Nilesh Shah N Y\ Ned € Raheja Vinod N, Rohira Preett N. Chheda
Parmner } ' Member Chief Execuitive Officer  Chief Financial Qfficer
Membership number: 49660 J il DIN: 00029010 DIN: 00460667 DIN: 08066703
Place: Mumbai . Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 11 Nov 2020 Date: 11 Nov 2020  Date: 11 Nov 2020 Date : |1 Nov 2020



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RNIN/REIT/19-200/003

Comdensed Stomdalone St of Cash Fluma
|Al amounts in Rs. million onless ctherwise sioted)

For ibe quarter For the quarier For the balf year ended From 13
ended 30 September  ended 30 June 2020 3D September 2020 November 2019 to
2020 {Unadited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) 31 March 2020
fAuditedy®
Cash fMlows from operating activities
Profitf{leas) before (nx j#4] 5 116 (4™
Adftestments!
Interes! income (125) (125)
Net gainsfi{lasses) on finuncial assets al Fair value through profit o loss (£)] {3
Gain on redemplion of mutual Fund unily (ty [}
Finence costs 2 2
Operating cash Mows before working capital changes (1] 5 {11y {49
Changes in:
Increase in Other non current essels {3 (€]} =
Increase in Cther current assels 4 @) o
Decrease in Gther current Bnancial Liebilites (54) 3 [+1)] 49
Inerease in Other curent liabilities 17 17
Increase in Trade payables 6 2 ]
Casgh (used in)f gemerated from operntion () {0 {44) 0
Income taxes paid, nel =
Met cash genernled f {used in} [rom operating sctivities (44) (1] (44) 0
Cash flow from Investing activitles
Loans given la SPYs 10.202) {10,292)
Loans repaid by SPV 184 184
Purchase of lovestmenits (Preference shares) {34) (33d4)
Investment in mufual Fund {4,600) {4.600)
Proceeds from Redempiion of mutual fund 4,601 4,60]
Proceeds from Redemplion of Preference shares 7 137
Investment in fixed deposits {1000 {100
Malurity proceeds of lixed deposits 100 100
Intereal received 125 = 125 -
MWel cash (used in} invesiing aclivities {9,079 (9,979)
Cnsh Mow (rom finoncing Activities
Proceeds from issue ol unils 10,000 10,000
Collection (owards Offer For Sale 15,000 35000
Payment 1 Spansor Group and Blackstone entities in respeet of Offer For Sale 34,973) (34,973}
Expenses incurred lowards Tnitial Public Oering [254) (254
Proceeds from Issus of Non-convertible debentures 5,000 - 5,000
Mon-convertible debenlures issue expenses [ __E (L
Net eash generaied (rom fnnncieg sciivities 14,764 - 14,769 {
Met jncrense in cash and cash equivalents 4,746 {0) 4,146 ]
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the period Q 1] 0
Cush und cmal equivalents at the end of the period 4.746 [1] 4,746 0
Cash wnd cash eqwivalents comprise:
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
 in current accounts* 4617 (i) 4617 0
* 1N ESETOW BECOUNLS 14 34
Fixed depesits with original maiurity Jess than 3 momdhs o 95 G5 -
Cash nod ensh eqoivalenis at the end of 1he period 4,146 1 4,746 [

(refer noie B}

Note: The Trust has 1ssued Unils in axchange for investments in SI'V3 during the period ended 30 September 2020 The same has nat been reflected i Standalens Statement of Cash

Flows since these were non-cash Lransactions (refer note 114i0i)

See the accompanying notes 1o the Condensed Standalont Financiel
Statements

133

§ J Standal,

*Since Mindspace REIT was registered pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 M ber 2019, the man. has provided the information n Ci Staty of Cash Flow with
effect from said period e 18 Novewber 2009 Ror the period ended 31 March 2020 Cunscquendy, the informalion for corresponding quartér and half year ending 39 June 2019 and 30

September 2019 have not been presented

** Rs 4,600 million were invested in Axis Overnight Fund by Mindspace REIT on 29 September 2020, redeemed on 30 September 2020 and proveeds were received on | Octaber 2020

AS per our report of even date atiached

for and on behalfof the Goverming Board of
K Ratwejn Corp lnvestment Managers LLP
{acting az the i 4 Busi

A _./;,\;&}/’ f i hlnshe

For Deloiite Hasking & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's repistration nurnber: | | 7366W/W- 100G (8

P

Parks REIT)

Milesh Shah Nrnr(".-'Rahein Yinod M. Rokire Preeti N, Chheds
Pariner Member Chigf Exaensive Officer  Chiief Financial Officer
Membership number. 49650 DIN. Go029010 THN: 00460667 DIN; 08066703

Place: Mumbai Plece: Mumbai Flace: Mumbai Flace: Mumbai

Date: | ) Mov 2620 3 Dale- 11 Mov 2020 Dale : 1] Nov 2020 Datre 2 11 Meov 2020



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity
{all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A. Corpus Amount
Balance as on 1§ November 2019¢ -
Corpus received during the period** Y
Balance as on 21 March 2020 0
Balance as on 1 April 2020 0
Additions during the period -
Closing balance as at 30 September 2020 0

** Corpus received during the period Rs 10,000

B. Uit Capital Amount
Balance as on 18 November 2019*
Units issued during the year
Balance as on 31 March 2020
Balance as on 1 April 2020

163,080

Add : Units issued during the period
Less ; I5sue expenses (241)
Closing balance as at 30 September 2020 162,839

Other equity

Particulars

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings

Balance as on !B Movember 20] 9%

(49

Laoss for the period 49
Other comprehensive income for the period - -
Ralance ot 31 March 2020 {49y (49)
Balance as al 1 April 2020 (49 (49
Prafit for the peripd 114 114
Other comprehensive income for the period - -
Balance at 30 September 2020 65 65

*Since Mindspace REIT was registered pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 2019, the management has provided the informetion in
Condensed Siandalone Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity witk effect from said period ie. 18 November 2019 for the peried ended 31
Merch 2020. Consequently, the information for corresponding quarier and half year ending 30 June 2019 and 30 Scpiember 2019 have not been
presented

As per our report of even date attached.
For Delaiite Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: [17366W/W.100018

A

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
(acting as the Manager o Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

VT ekt

1

Nilesh Shah f ."-. Neel C, l'llulluju_’ . Vinod N, Rohira Preeti N. Chheda
Partner by Member S ) Chief Executive Officer  Chief Finuncial Officer
Membership number; 49660 DIN: 00029010 DIN: (D048D6ET DHM: 08DEE03

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbat Place: Mumbai

Date - 11 Mov 202¢ Date . {1 Nov 2020 Dale : 11 Nov 2020 Date : 11 Nov 2020



Mindspace REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Motes to the Condensed Standalone Financizl Statements
{all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1 Mindspace REIT background

Mindspace Business Parks REIT {Mindspace REIT'Y was seitled on 18 November 2019 at Mumbai, Maharashira, India as a contributory determinate
irrevocable trast under the provisions of the [ndian Trusts Act, 1882, pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 2019, Mindspace REIT was registered with
SEBI on 10 December 2019, at Mumbai 25 a REIT pursuant la the REIT Regulations having regisiration number [N/REIT/19-2040003. The Trust's principal
plage of business address is at Raheja Tower, Level 8, Block 'G*, €-30, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai - 400 05]

Anbee Consiructions LLP {ACL} and Cape Trading LLP ('CTL") are the sponsors of Mindspace REIT. The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trusice
Services Limited (1he “Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (the *Manager’.

The ohjectives and principal activity of of Mindspace REIT is 10 carmy on the activity of a real estale investmeni trost, as permissible under the REIT
Repulations, o raise funds through the REIT, to make inveslments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the invesiment strategy and to carry oa the
activities as may be required for operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matiers thereto

Mindspace REIT acquired the Special Purpose Yehicles ('SPVg') by acquiring alt the equity interest held by the Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in the
SPVs on 30 July 2020 In exchange for these equity interests, 1he above sharcholders have been allotted 55,66,54,582 units of Mindspace RELT on 30 July

2020 which were valued at Rs, 275 each . ) .
Mindspace REIT went public as perits plan for Tnitial Poblic Offer of Units afier obtaining the required approvals from Lhe relevant authorities. The units were

allotted 1o Lhe successful applicanis on 4 August 2020
All these units were subsequently listed on the Bombay Stock Exchanize Limited { BSE) and National Stock Exchanpe of India Limited {NSE) on ¥ August
Accordingly, the equity imierest in each of the below SPVs have been transferred from the respective shareholders 1o the Mindspace REIT

1. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (MBPPL)

2, Gipgaplex Estate Private Limited (Gigaplex)

3 Sundew Properiies Limited (Sundew)®

4. Tntime Properties Limited (Intime)®

5 K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited (KRIT)*

6. KRC [nfrastructure and Frojects Private Limited {KRC Tnfra)

7. Horizonview Properties Privale Limited (Horizonview)

8, Awvacado Properties and Trading {India) Private Limited ( Avacado)

* Remaining 11% of ownership interest in Intime Properties Limited, K Raheja [T Park (Hyderabad) Limited and Sundew Properties Limited is owned by
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation (APIC

The briel activities and shareholding pattern of the S'Vs are provided below:

- Shareholding (in percentage} Shareholding (in percentage)
e SHHeSPY Activities upio 30 July 2020 from 30 July 2020
The SPV is engaged in real estae| BREF ASIA SG Pear) Holding (N()) Pte. Ltd Mindspace

development projects such as Special|Mr, Chandru L. Rabeju jointly with Mrs Jyoli C. - |REIT: 100%
Feonmmic  Zone  (SEZ),  Information|Raheja (10 58%4)

Technology Parks and other comumergial|Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja jointly with Mr. Chandru L
assets The SPV has its projects in Airoli|Raheja (8 01%)

(Mavi Mumbai}, Pune and Pocharam|Capstan Trading LLP (801 %)

(Hyderabad) The SPV is a deemed|Casa Maria Properties LLP (8.01%:)

distribution licenses pursuant tg which itffPalm Shelter Cstate Development LLP {8.01%)
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants|i Raheja Corp Private Limiled (6.47%)

MBPPL witin_ the Perk. 1t commenced|™r. Ravi C Raheja joinily with Mr. Chandru L
distribution of electricity in its project af|R2heja and Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja (7 37%)

Airoli, Navi Mumbai from 9 Aprif 2015 [Mr. Neel C Raheja jointly with Mr. Chandru L
Raheja and Mrs Jyoti C Raheja (7 37%)

Anbee Constructions LLP {6 37%)

Cape Trading LLP (6.37%)

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP {5.26%)
BREP VIIl 5BS Pearl Holding {NQ) Lid (0.02%)
BREP AS[A SBS Pearl Holding (N3 1id, (0.03%)
Others (3.17%)

The SPV is engaged in real estaie|k Raheja Corp Private Limited (58 90%) Mindspace
development projects such as Special[Mr Chandru L. Raheja Jomtly with Mrs Jyoti C. |REIT : 100%
Economic  Zone (SEZ), Information|Raheia (37 30%) .

Technology Parks and other commercial BREP ASIA 5G Pearl Holding (NQ) Pte Ltd
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli Others (0.01%)

(Mavi Mumbair.The 5PV is @ deemed
distribution licensce pursvant 1o which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within  the Park, I commenced
distribution of electricity in iis project al
Adroli, Navi Mumbai from 19 April 2016

{hgaplex




Mindspace REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-204/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Finaneial Seatements
(all amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise siated)

The SPV is engaged in development and|Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited Mindspace
leasingflicensing of IT park, SEZ to|BREP ASIA 8G Pearl Holding {(NQ) Pre Lud REIT : 89%
different customers in Hyderahad. Andhra Pradesh Industrial [nfrastructure Andhra Pradesh Industrial
Corporation Limited {11%} Infrastructure Corporation Limited
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Mrs Jyoli C. (1%
Rahejn (9.97%)
Sundew Casa Maria Properties LLP {5.85%)
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP (5. 85%)
Capsian Treding LLP (5.85%)
Palm Shelter Estate Developmeni LLP (5.85%)
Anbee Constructions LLP (5.23%4)
Cape Trading LLP {5 23%)
Others {11.02%)
The SPV is engaged in development and|Chandru Reheja jointly with Iyoti Raheja (23.98%) |Mindspace
leasing/licensing of IT park to different|BREP Asia SG Pearl Holding (NQ} Pre Lid REIT; 85%
customers in Hyderahad. g"dhm ]Tfadifh !"‘1'"-(3:’:03/[ )]nfrastmct ure Andhra Pradesh Indusirial
orporation Limite: (] A -
Casa Maria Properties LLP (6.12%} mrf,f;mmm Carporation Limird
Inlime Raghukool Estate Development LLP {6 12%6)
Capstan Trading LLP (6. 12%)
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP {6.12%)
Anbee Construclions LLP (5.47%)
Cape Trading LLP (5.47%)
Others (14.65%)
The SPV is engaged in development and|BREP ASIA SG Pearl Holding (NQ) Pre. Ltd Mindspace
leasing/licensing of [T park to different|Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure REIT : 89%
customers in Hyderabad Corporation Limited (} 1%} Andhra Pradesh Endustrial
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP (9 50%} Infrasicucture Corporation Limited
Casa Maria Properties LLP (2.50%) (11%)
KRIT Raghukoo) Estate Developement LLP (9. 507%)
Capstan Trading LLP (9-50%)
Anbee Constructions LLP (8, 50%)
Cape Trading LLP (8 50%)
[vory Properties And Hotels Private Limiled
Chandru L Raheja jeintly with Jyoti C. Raheja
Others (4 83943
The SPV is engaged in real eslate| Raheja Private Limited (42 50%) Mindspace
development projects such as SpeciallK Raheja Corp Private Limited (42 50%%) REIT: 100%
Economic Zong (SEZ} and Information|BREP Asia 3G Pearl Holding (NQ) Pte Lid
Technology Porks, The SPV has its|BREP VII1 SBS Pearl Folding {NQ) Ltd (0.02%)
KRC Infea project in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a|BREP ASLA 3BS Pearl Holding {NQ} Lid (0 03%%)
deemed distribution licensee pursuant fo
which it can distribule power to the SEZ
tenants within the Park. [t commenced
distribution of electricity in its project al
Kharadi, Pune from 1 June 2019
The 8PV s cngaged in development snd|Mr. Neel C. Raheja jointly with Mr. Chandru L. |Mindspace
leasing/licensing of IT park to different|Raheja and Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja (42.50%) REIT : 100%
Horizionview customers in Chennai Mr. Ravi C Raheja jointly with Mr. Chandru L.
Raheia and Mrs. Jvoti C Raheia (42.50%)
BREP A31A SG Pearl Holding {NGQ) Pte Ld
Chhers {0.05%}
The SPV has developed an Industrial pack|Anbee Constructions LLP {13 18%) Mindspace
for the purpose of letling oul fo different|Cape Trading LLP (13.18%%) REIT : 1004
A customers in Paradigm building at Malad-[Capstan Trading LLP { 14.53%)
Avacado Mumbai and is being maintained and|Raghukool Estate Developement LLP (14 $3%)
operated by the SPY. The SPV also has a|Casa Maria Properties LLP (14 53%)
commercial project in Bandra Kurla|Palm Shelter Estale Development LLP (14 53%)
Complex, Mumbai, BREP Asia 3G Pear! Holding (NQ) Pre. Lid
Oithers (D 57%)
2z Basis of Preparation

The Imerim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements (*Coendensed Siandalone Financial statements’) of the Mindspace REIT comprises the Condensed
Standalone Balance Sheel as at 30 September 2020; the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including ather comprehensive income, the
Condensed Standalene Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter and hall year ended 30 September 2020, the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in

Unit Holder™s Eauity for the half vear ended 30 September 2020 and a surnmary of stgnificant accounting policies and select explanatory information
The Condensed Standatone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEB] {Real Estate Investment Trusis)

Regulations, 2014 (SEB] Regulations) as amended from time to time read with SEB1 Regulations read with Circular No CIR/DMDVDF/146/2016 dated 29
December 2016 {the"REIT regulations®); recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard {lnd AS) 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting™, as prescribed in Rule 2( 1)) of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, 1o the ex1ent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations.
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The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the Governing Board of the Manager on
behalf of the Trust on | | November 2020, _

Since Mindspace REIT was registered pursuant 1o a trust deed dated 18 November 2019, the management has provided the information in Condensed
Standalone Financial Staements with effect from said period ie 18 Movember 2019 for the peried ended 31 March 2020, Alsp, he inforemation for
correspending quarter and half year ending 3¢ June 2019 and 30 September 2019 have not been presented

These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, for the period ended 30 Seplember 2020 have been the first condensed standalone financial statements of
the Mindspace REIT consequent to Mindspace REIT being lisied as of T August 2020,

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Million, except when otherwise indicated

Statement of complinnee to0 Ind-AS

These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the period ended 30 September 2020 are the financial statements of the Mindspace REIT and have been
prepared in occotdance with recognilion and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting™
read with in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended
&nd other accounling principles generally accepled in India), to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI Regulations read with circulars refemred above

3 Sipnificant accounting policies

a) Functional and Presenéation Currency
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Mindspace REIT Functional currency in which
Mindspace REIT cperates. All financial information presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded ofT 10 the nearest million excepl otherwise stated

Basis of measurement
These Condensed Standalone Financial Stakements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for cerlain financial assets and liabilities (refer
accounnng pohcy regarding financial inslrument ) measured at fair values:

b

=

Ly

-

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with penerally accepted accounting principles in India including Ind AS
and SEBI regulations requires management to make estimates and assumptiens that affect the reported amounts of assets, liahilitics, income and eNpENSCS.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic bpsis. Revisions to accounling estimales are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected

[nformation about assumplions and cstimation uncertaintics that have a significant risk resulling i1 & material adjustment are included in Note 3.8 on
Investment in SPYs

d) Curreant versus non-current classification

Mindspace REIT presenis assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-curreni classification:

An asset is treated as curcent when it is;

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Expecled to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date, or

- Cash or cash equivalen! unless it is restricted from being exchunged or used to seitle a liability for at least twelve months afler the Teporting date

p—

All other assets are ¢lassified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operaling cycle;

- It 18 held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- There is no uncanditional tight 10 defer the settlement of the liability for at least Iwelve months after the reporting period
The Mindspace REIT classifies all other liabilitics as non-curcent

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
The operaling cycle is the time belween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realigation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace REIT has
identified twelve monihs as its operating cycle.

Meusurement of fair values

Mindspace REIT accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
Mindspace REIT has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values

Mindspace REIT regularly review significant unobsecvable inputs and valuation adjustments, If third party imformation is used 1o measure Fair values then
the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third panties to support the conclusion that such valaations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
inctuding the level in the fair valug hierarchy in which such valualions should be classified

When measuring the fair value of an assel or a liability, Mindspace REIT wses observable markel dala as far as possible. Fair valugs are categorised into
different levels in a fair vaive hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valvation techniques as follows:

*Level 1. quoled prices funadjusied) in active markets For identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date

* Level 2: nputs other than quoted prices included in Level | thar are nbservable for the asset or hability, either directly (i as prices} or indirectly (i e

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

If the inpuis used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input thal is significant to he entire measurement

£
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34

35

36

Tmpairment of assets

Mindspace REIT assesses at cach reporting date, whether there is any indication thal an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Irust estimales
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recovarable amount of the assets (or where applicable thal of 1he cash generating unit Lo which the asset belongs) is
estimated as the higher of its net selling price 2nd its value in use Value in use is the present vatue of estimated future cash flows expecied to arise from the
continuing use of the assets and from its disposal atl the end of iis useful life. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the
cash-generating unit 1o which it belongs, exceeds ils recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Condensed Siatemenl of Profit and Loss or
against revalvation surplus, where applicable.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating unit) is increased 1o the tevised eslimate of its
recoverable amaun, bul so that the increased camying amount does 1ot exceed the carying amount that would have been determined had no impaimment loss
been recagnised for ihe assel (or cash-generating unit} in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Condensed Staiement
of Profit and Loss

Assel Acqulsition

[f the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets does not constitute & business, the Mindspace REIT identifies and recognises the mdividual identifiable assets
acquired including those asscls thal mecl the definition of, and recognition criteria for, inlangible assels in Ind AS 18, Inlangible Assels and liabilities
assumed The cosi of Lhe group is allocated o the individual identifiahle assets and liahilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase
and no goodwill is recognised,

Allocation of the cost of the proup is done as follows:

For any idemifiable assel or liability initially measured at an amouni other than cost, the Mindspace RELT initially measures that asset o liability at the amount
specified in the applicable Ind AS Standard. The Mindspace REIT deducts from the (ransaction price of the group the amounis allocaled to the assets and
liabilities initially measured a1 an amount other than cosy, and then allocaies the residual transaciion price to the remaining identifiable assets and liabilities
hased on their retative fair vahies at the date of the acquisition.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency arc recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of ransactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign
exchange lransactions seltled during the year are recogtiised in the Condensed Statemenl of Profil and Loss of the year

Monetary assets and labilities denominated m foreign currency, which are ouistanding as at the end of the period and not covered by forward contracts, are
translaled at the end of the pened al the closing exchange rate and the esultant exchange differences are recognised in the Condensed Statement of Profit and
l.oss. Non-monelary foreign currency iiems are carried at cosl

Compound financial instruments

The componenl parts of compound financial instruments issved by Mindspace REIT are classified separately as Anancial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contraciual arrangements and the delinitions of a tinancial liability and an eguity instrument A conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amounl of cash or another financial asset tor 2 fixed number of the Trust's own equily instruments is an equity instrument

At the date of' issue, the fair value of the liabilily component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This
amount is recorded as a lability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest melhod until extinguished upon cenversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date,

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting 1he amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compoeund msirument ag
awhole. This is recopnised and included in ¢quity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured

Transaction costs that relate o the issue of the convertible insteuments are allocared to the liability and cquity componenis in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the hability componeni are
included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible insirument using the effective interest method,

Embedded derivatives

A derivaiive embedded in a hybrid contragt, with a financial liability or non-financial hosl, is separated from the host and acoounted for as a separate derjvalive
if: the econemic characteristics and risks are not clescly related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would mest
the definilion of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss Fmbedded derivalives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, Reassessment only occurs if there is ¢ither a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows thal wouid otherwise be required or a reclassification of a finaneial assel out of the fair value through profil ot loss category

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss except
to the extent that il relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and defermed tax are also
recognised in equity and other comprehensive income respectively

a} Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the laxable intome or loss for the period and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous yzars. The amount of curren tax teflects the besi estimate of the tax amount expecied 1o be paid or received after
considering the uncerlainty, if any, relaled 1o income taxes. It is measured using tax rales (and tax faws) enacled or substantively emacled by end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax charge

Deferrad tax assel/ liability is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of gssets and liabilities in the Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements and the correspending 1ax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured that are
expected 10 apply 1o the period when the asset is realised or the lighility is senled, using the 1ax rates and tax laws Lhat have been enacted of substantively
enacled by the end of the reporting period

b

-
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3.7

a8

a9

The measurement of deferred tax hiabilities and assats reflects the tax consequences thal would follow from the manner in which Mindspace RETT expects,
al the end of 1he reporting period, to recover of setile the carmying amoum of 15 assets and Liabilities

Deferred tax lisbilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary diffecences. Delerred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences 1o the extent that il is probable that taxable profits will be available against which these deductible tremporary differences can be
utilized. Such deferred 1ax assels and liabilitics are nol recognizad if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of asgets and liabilities in a iransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profil.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed ai the end of each eporting peried and reduced 10 the extent that it is no Jonger probable that
sufficient taxable peofits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Defarred tax asseis and ligbilities are offsel if there is a legally enforceable right 10 offset current tax assels and liabilities, and they relate 1o income taxes
{evied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they inlend to settle current tax linbilities and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabiliies will be realized simulianeously.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Mindspace REIT has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resull of a past evenl, il is probable that the Trast will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the ameunt of the obligation The amount recognised as a provision is the best
astimate of the consideration required Lo settle Ihe present obligation at ihe end of the reporting period, taking inte accoun! the risks and uncertainiies
surrcunding the obligation, Provisions are defermined by discounting the expected future cash Mows at a pre-tax rale that reflects current markel assessments
of the time value ol monay and the risks specific to the liability. The umwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost

Conlinpent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present cbligation thal may, but will prebably not, require an outflow of resources
When there is a possible pbligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made

A contingenl asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose cxusience will be confirmed only by the oceurrence
of non-oecurrence of ope or more uncerlain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace RETT

Provisiens, Contingen( Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed ul each repording date and adjusted 1o cellect the current best estimates

Tavestment in SPVs

The Company has elected to recogrize its investments in SEVs at cost in acvordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Siatements’
The details of such investments ate given in Note 4

Assets representing i nvestments in SPVs are reviewed for impairment,whenever events or changes in circumsiances indicale that carrying amount may not be
recoverahle, Such circumstances include, though are nol limited 10, significant or sustained decline in revenues or eamnings and matetial adverse changes in the
€Conomic environment

Financial instrumnents

t lnitial recognition and messurement
Financial assets andfor financial liabililies are recopnised when Mindspace REIT becomes party 1o a contract embodying the related Mnancial instruments.
All financial assets, financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaclion costs that are atributable to the acquisilion or issve of [inancial
assets and financial liabilities {cther than financial assets and financial Liabilities at Gair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from as the
case may be, the fair value of such assels or liabilities, on inilial recognition. Transaction cosis direcily attributable 16 the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fr value through profit or 1033 are recognised immediately in the Siatement of Profit and Loss

2 Financial assets:
Classification of inancial assets:
{iy The Mindspace REIT <lassifies {15 financial assets n the fellowing measuremenlt categories:
- those 1o be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and
- those measured al amortised cost
(i} The classificabion 1s don¢ depending upon Mindspace REIT business maode! for managing the financial assets and the conrractual terms of the cash
(iii} For investments in debt insiruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment 15 held.
{iv} Mindspace REIT reclassifies debt investments when and only when its busingss model for managing those assets changes

b) Subsequent Measurement
(i) Debtinstruments:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Mindspace REIT business model for managing the assel and the cash flow
characterislics of the assel. There are three measurement categories inlo which the Trust classifies its debt insrruments:

Financial assets at amertised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial 2ssets are held within 2 business whose objective is to hold these assels
in order to coliect contractual cash flows and the contracieal terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest en the principal amount outsianding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financiat assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within & business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified daies to solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial agsets
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Financial assets at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss (FYTPL)
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised ¢ost or fair valug
through other comprehensive income on inilial recopnition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
tiabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Stetement of Profit and Loss.
€) Impairment of financial assets:
The Mindspace Group applies the expecied ¢redit loss model for recognising impairmen! Joss on financial assets measured a1l amortised cost, lease
teceivables, trade receivables, other cantractual rights to receive cash or olher financial asset, For trade receivables, the Mindspace Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifelime expected credil losses Further, for the purpose of measuring lifelime expecied credit loss allowance for trade
teceivables, the Mindspace Group has used & practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109 This expected credil loss allowance is computed based on
a provision matrix which 1akes inte account histarical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information,

d) Derecognition of financial asseis:

A financial assel is primarily derecognised when:

(i) theright 1o receive cash flows from the esset has expiced, or

(i) Mindspace REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assel; and
Mindspace REIT has transferred substantially afl the risks and rewards of the asset, or
Mindspace REIT has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the aszet, but has iransferred control of the assel
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entitety (other than investments in equity instrurents at FYOCD), the ditferences berween the carrying
amounts measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss Any interest in transferred
financial assets hat is created o7 retained by the Mindspace REIT is recognised as a ssparate asset or liability

3.10 Financial liabilitics and equily instruments

an

312

{a) Classification as delit or equity
Finaneial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Mindspace REIT are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered

into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,
Financial Liabilities

Recognition, measurement and classilication
Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair valug through the Statement of Profit end Loss. or b) al amortised cost. Management determines
the classificalion ofits financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification

Mindspace REIT financial liabilities include rade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative finaricial instruments. Subsequent measurement
of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss or at amontised cost. All changes in fair value of
financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost category is applicable 1o loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables. Afer initial recopnition the financial liabilities are measured at amunised cost using the Effective Interest Rate methad

Derecognition
A fimancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the libilities are derecognised

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabililies are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is & curently enforcesble legal right 10 offset
the recognised amounts and there is an inlention either to settle on a net basis or 10 reslise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guaraniee contracts issued by the REIT are those contracts that require 2 payment to be made io reimburse the holder for a loss i incurs because the
specilied debtor fails 10 make a payment when due in accerdance with the 1erms of a debi insirument Financial gnarentee contracts are recognised in flially as a
liability at Fair value, adjusted for transaction cosis that are directly attributable to the i ce of the g tee, Subsequently, the liability is measwred at the
higher of the amount of loss allowance delermined as per impairmenl requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amouni recopnised less, when appropeiate, the
cumulative amounl of income recognised in accordance with 1he principles of Ind AS 115.

The fair value of financial guaraniees is determined as the present vale of the diffecence in net cash flows between the contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would be required without the puarantee, or the eslimated amount thal would be payable to a third party for assuminyg the
obligations

When guaraniees in refation to loans or other payables of subsidiaries or associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted as
contributions and recognised as pan of the cost of investment.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured af the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to the present
value if payment extends beyond nommal credit terms.

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideralion is probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably

Recognition of dividend income, interesy income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Mindspace REIT"s right to receive payment is established

Tnterest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The “effective interest Tate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expecied life of the financial instnument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset

Tn calculating interest income, the effeclive interest rate is applied to the gross camying amount of the asset {when the assel is not credit-impaired). However,
for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to inilial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. i the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reveris to the gross basis

10
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs {including exchange differences relating o foreige currency borrowings 1o the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to inerest costs) incurred in connection with the botrowing of funds. Berrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily lake a substantial period of time to get ready fer their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of thal asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised a3 an expense in the pericd in which they are incurred

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The “effective interest rate’ is the rate hat exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability. In calculating inlerest expense, the effective interest rate is
applied 10 the amorlised cost of the liability.

Cash snd cash eguivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents comprises of cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, other short 1emm, highly liquid investments with original maturilies of
three manths or less that are readily convertible 10 knewn amounts of cash and which are subjecl to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Cash distribution to unit helders

The Mindspace REIT recognises a liability to make cash disiributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been
created. As per ie REIT Regulations, a distribution is autherised when it is approved by the Govemning Board of the Manager A cotresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity

Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Mows

Cash flow is reported using; the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or fulure cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and Financing activities of the Mindspace REIT are
segrepated

For the purpose of the Siaterent of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered un integral part of the Trus!'s cash management

Subsequent events

The Condensed Siandalone Financial Stalements are adjusted 1o reflect events that occur afler the reporting date but before the Financial Statements are issued,
The Financial Stalements have their own date of authorisation Therefore, when preparing the Financial Stalements, management considers events up o 1he
date of authorisation of these financial stalements.

Earnings per unit

The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss} attribulable to the unit holders of the REIT by the weighied average number of unils
outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in compuiing diloted eamings/ {loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units
considered for deriving basic eamings/ {loss) per unit and alse he weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all
dilutive podential nnils

Cilutve potentiat units arc deemed converied as of the beginning of the reperting date, unless they have been issued al a later date. In computing diluted
earnings per unit, anly potential equily unils that are dilutive and which either reduces eamings per share or increase loss per units are included

Earnings before finanee costs, depreciation, amortisation and income tnx

The Mindspace REIT has elected lo present earnings before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and income rax as a separate line item on the face of the
Condensed Siandalone Statement of Profit and Loss. The Mindspace REIT measures earnings before finance cost, depreciation, amonisation and income tax
on the basis of profit’ (loss) frem continuing operations. In its measurement, the Mindspace REIT does not include depreciation and amortisation expense,
finance costs and tax exnense

Errors and estimates

Mindspace REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is raquired due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable
information to the users of the Financial Statemeni. Changes in accounting pelicies are applied retrospectively

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively
in the period(s} of change

Digcovery of ermors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prier peried in which
the error is discovered The opening balances of the earlies period presented are also restated

1
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4 Nun-current investments

Particulars As at As at

30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Trade, unguoted, Investments in SPVs {at cost)
(refer note below)
- 39,735,000 (31 March 2020: Nil) equity shares of Avacade Properties and
Trading Privaie Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 0482
- 11,765 {31 March 2020: Nil) equity shares of Horizonview Properties
Privafe Limited of Rs,10 each, fully paid up ¢ -
- 588,235 (31 March 2020: Nil) equity shares of KRC Infrastroctare And
Projects Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 5 868
- 1,26,01,403 (31 March 2020 Nil) equity shares of Gigaplex Estate Privaie
Limited of Rs.1 each, fully paid up 13,121
- 2,50.71.875 (31 March 202Q; Nil) equity shares of Sundew Properties
Liméted of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 33,722
= 12,03,033 (31 March 2020 Nil) equity shaves of Intime Propertics Limited
of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 15478 -
-1,78,00,(00 (31 March 2020: Nil) equity shares of K. Raheja IT Park
{Hyderabad) Limited of Rs,10 cach, fully paid up 25,618
- 81,513 (31 March 2020: Nil} equity shares of Mindspace Business Parks
Private Limited of Rs.10 ¢ach, fully paid up 48814 -
Total 153,103 -
Mote: The Trust has issued units as consideration to acquire these investments whersin the tradable REIT Unit has been valued at
Rs 275 each
Details of % shareholding in the SPVs, held by Trust is as under;
Name of SPVs Ovwnership Interest

30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited 100%
Horizonview Propeniies Private Limited 100% -
KRC Infrastructure and Projecis Private Limited 100%
Gigaplex Estate Private Limiled 100%
[ntime Properties Limited* 89% -
K. Raheja 1T Park {Hyderabad) Limited* 89% -
Sundew Properties Limiled* 89% =
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 100 % -

* Remaining 11% of ownership interest in Intime Propertics Limited, K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited and Sundew
Properties Limited is owned by Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation ( APLIC)

12
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5

Loans

Particulars Asat As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020

Unsecnred, considered good
Loan to SPVs- refer Note 28 10,108

10,108 -

Note 1: Mindspace REIT has given loan amounting Rs. 9,892 million during the period ended 30 September 2020 (31 March 2020 Rs.
Nil) to Gigaplex, Avacado and Horizonview and the outstanding balance as at end of 30 September 2020 is Rs.9,708 million (31
March 2020 Rs.Nil).

Security: Unsecured

Interest : 8.75% per annum or such other rate of interest as may be notified by the Lender to the Bormower in writing.

Repayment:

a) Bullet repayment on date falling 15 years from the first disbursenent date i.¢. from 6 August 2020 or such other date as may be
mutually agreed between the Lender and the Borrawer in writing.

b) At any time prior to the repayment date, the Borrower may on any date, prepay the whole or any part of the loan outstanding.

¢} Mindspace REIT may notify the Borrower requiring prepayment of the Loans disbursed by serving atleast 30 days notice before the
scheduled date of repayment or such other time period as may be mutually agreed,

Note 2: Mindspace REIT has given loan amounting Rs. 400 million during the period ended 30 September 2020 (3| March 2020 Rs,
Nil) to MBPPL and the outstanding balance as at end of 30 September 2020 is Rs,400 million {31 March 2023 Rs.Nil)

Secority: Unsecured

Interest :8.75% per annum or such other rate of interest as may be notified by the Lender to the Borrower in writing.

Repayment:

a) Bullet repayment is due on 2% April 2022,

b) Al any time prior to the repayment date, the borrower may on any date, prepay the whole or any part of the loan outstanding.

c) Mindspace REIT may notify the Borrower requiring prepayment of the Loans disbursed by serving atleast 30 days notice before the
scheduled date of repayment or such other time period as may be mulually agreed.

Other financial assets

Particulars As At As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Interest receivable on loan to SPVs 0 -
0 =
Other Non-current assets
As at As at
Particulars 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Prepaid Expenses 3 -
3 =

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020

Cash on hand -

Balances with banks
- in ¢utrent accounts® 4,617 0
= in escrow accounts** a4 -
- fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 95 -

4,746 0

* Rs, 4,600 million were invested in Axis Overnight Fund by Mindspace REIT on 29 September 2020, redeemed on 30 September
2020 and proceeds were received on | Oclober 2020

** Represents the balance Rs. 34 million (31 March 2020 : Nil} from proceeds of initial public offer of REIT Units (Total proceeds
Rs. 10,000 million). These amounts are held in the Escrow account and can be withdrawn for certain specific purposes. Out of Rs, 34
million, Rs. 27 million is payable to Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities.

Other current assets

Particulars AS at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses 4 .

13 4 %
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{all amounis in Rs, million unless otherwise stated)

Corpus

Corpus Ampunt

As at 18 November 2019 .
Corpug received during the period * 0
Asat 31 March 2020
Asat 1 April 2020
Additions during the period

Closing Balance as af 30 September 2020 [
* Corpus reveived during the period Re.10,000

o=

Unit Copital

Linit Capital o Amount
As at 18 November 2019 5 :
Units igsned during the period - -

As at 31 March 2020 - -
As al 1 April 2020 - -
Units jssued during the period

- pursuant to the initial public offer, issued, subscribed and fully pzid-up in cash 36,363,600 10,000
{refer note afii) below)

- in exchange for equity interest in SPVs {refer note afiii) below) 556,654,582 153,080
Less Issue expenses (reler note below) (241)
Closing Balance as at 30 September 2020 03 018 182 162,830

Note; Issue expenses pertaining 1o the Initial Public Offering (IPO) and listing of the units on the NSE and BSE have been reduced from the Unitholders
capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 Financial [nstruments: Presentation.

Terms/rights attached to units and other disclosures

Mindspace REIT has only one class of units. Each unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in Mindspace REIT, Each holder of units is antitled to
one vote per unit. The unitholders have the Tight to receive af least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT at lsasl once in every six
months in each financial year in accordance with the REIT Regulations. The Governing Board of the Wanager approves dividend disiribulions. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of units held by the unitholders. Mindspace REIT deolares and pays dividends in [ndian Rupees

Under the provisions of the RETT Regulations, Mindspace REIT is required to disteibute to unilhelders not less than ningly percent of the net distributable
cash flows of Mindspace REIT for each financial year, Accordingly, a pertion of the unitholders’ funds conlains a contracteal obligation of Mindspace
REIT 10 pay 1o its unitholders cash distributions. The wnitholders™ funds could have been classified 25 compound financial instrument which cantain both
equity and liability componenis in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Fresentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circulars (No
CIRAMD/DE/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. CIR/AMIVDF/ 14142016 dated 26 December 2016) issued under the REIT Repulationg, the
unitholders’ funds have been classilied as equity in order 1o comply with the mandatary requirements of Section H of Annexure A to the SEBT circular
CIRAMDVDF/ 14172016 daled 26 December 2016 dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial siatements. In line with the above, the dividend
payable 1o unit holders is recognised as liability when the same is approved by the Goveming Board of e Manager,

Initial Public Offering of 1.63.63.600 units for cash al orice of Rs, 275 per unit apereeating to Rs. 10.000 million.
Mindspace REIT has acquired the SPVe by acquiring all the equity interest held by the Spensor Group and Blackstone Entities in the SPVs The

acquisition of equity interest in the SPVs has been done by issue of 55,66,54,582 units of Rs, 275 each as per the 1able below.

Number of Units allotted for acquiving equity interest held by Sp Group and Blueks entities in SPVy
Name of the SPY Sponsor Group Blackstone Entities Total

Avacido 29,364 371 5.171,359 34,475,730
Hewizonview 364 &d 428
KRC Infra 21,224,693 3,745,522 24,970,215
Gigaplex 47,334,145 372,113 47,706,858
L Intime 46,789,035 0A%4 426 56,274,368
Sundew 101,943,753 20,664,275 122,608,073
KRIT T7443 859 15,698,030 %3141 939
Mindspace 150,855,361 26,621 662 177.477,023
Total number of Unifs tssued 474,897,081 31,757,501 556,654,581 |

Unithalders holding more than 5 percent Units in Mindspace REIT

Name of the unitholder As at 30 September 2020
No of Units Y holding
BREP ASLA 5G PEARL HOLDING (NQYPI'E LTD §4,291 425 9.16%

Mindspace REIT has not alfotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus anitg nor has it bonght back any class of units from the date of registration till
the balance shoet date. Furiher, Mindspace REIT has not issucd any units for consideration other than cash from ihe date of incorperation till the balance
sheet date. excent as disclosed above

Crther Equity*
Particulars As at As at
30 Sepgember 2020 31 March 2020
Reserves and Surplys
Retained eamnings 65 (49)
65 (49)

*Refer Statement of changes in Unit halder's Equity for detailed movement i other equity balances.

Retained earnings
The cumulative gain of loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under the b
the end of the peried, the profit afler 1ax is transferred from che statement of profit and loss to the retained eamings account

o

g of retained camings. Al
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Borrowings
As at As at

Particulars 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Secured
10 year G-Se¢ linked secured, lisied, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non-cumulbtive, rated, principal protected
— markel kinked, redeemable, non-converible debenturas (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD™) {net of issue
expenses, at amortised cost) (1 March 2020 Nil) 4972 -

1972 -

Note :

During the quarter ended 30 September 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT {“Trust™) issued 5,000 10 year G-Sec linked secured, lisied, goaranteed,
senior, taxable, non-cumvlative, rated, prncipal protected — market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD™)
having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 {Rupees ten lakhs only) ¢ach, amounting 10 Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupees five hundred ¢rores anly). The temure of the
said MLD is 577 days from 29 September 2020, being date of altotment of the Marker Linked Debenturas and coupon, if any shall be payable on ihe
Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 29 April 2022, The coupon payofT siructure is linked to condirion where the payoff will be fixed on Lhe
final Fixing date i.e 30 March 2022, 1f ideniificd 10 y7 G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its lazt lraded price as an
initial fixing date i.e. 29 September 2020, (he coupon rate will be 6.80% p.a. If identified 10 yr G-S¢¢’s lasi truded price as on final fixing date is less than
or equal 1o 25% of its Insi traded price as on inibal Axing date, the conpon rate will be zero percent. As per the valuers caport in respact of valuation of
these MLDs, the probability of oceurrence of such an event (lagt traded price of identified 10 your G-Sec on final fixing dale being less than or equal o
25% of 1tz last traded price oninitial Axing dale) is remoele and hence the value of the oplion considerad a3 zero.

Securlty terms

The Market Linked Debentures are secured by aach of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (helding for the benelit of the Debenture
Holders):

First and exclusive charge being registered simple mortgage {including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggrepate leasable area of approximately
974,500 Sq Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. &, 7 and & of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 178,569 sg fi. in building no. 6, approx. 371,799 sq. it in
building no. 7 and approx. 424,132 in building no. 8) wpether with the proportionale undivided right, title and interest in the nolionatly demarcaled land
admeasiring approximalely 25,333 sq. imtrs on which the said three building no. 6, 7 and 8, oul of all those pieces and parcels of larper land are sitate,
lying snd being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune [“Mongapged Properties™}

A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the mortgaged properties of MBPPL shall be received,

Corporate guarantee to be execwied by MBPPL

In accordance with the tenns of the Morigage Docaments, MBPPL 13 in process of crealion of firsl ranking exclusive charge by way of an repistered
simple mortgape in favour of the Debenlure Trustee over the Mortgaged Properties.

Redempiion lerms:

I. These debentures ave redeemable by way of buller payment a1 the end of 577 days from the date of alloiment, {.¢. 29 Apnl 2022

2, The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downprade in the rating by 1he Credit Raing Agency In case rating is upgraded after any
rating downprade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD il the rating is
downgpraded lo A+

3. Upon aceurrgnce of a mandstory redemplion event, the Debenture Trusiee may, by issuing not less than 30 {Lhirty) business days notice to the [ssuer
require the [ssuer to redeem in full (or as 1he case may be, in pan}), all the Debentures then ourstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory
redemplion amount in respeel of aach Debenture

Disclosure required under SEBI circular SEBIHO/DDIS/D DHS/CIR/P/2Z018/71 dated 13 April 2018
A, Details of non-convertible debentures are s follaws:-

Particulars Securad / Unsecured Previous due date Next due date
Principal Interest Principal Interest
10 year G-Sec linked secured,| Secured by way of a charge|Not Applicable Nol Applicable On Maturity On Maturity

listed, guaranteed, senior, laxable,|in the nature of repgistered
non-cumilalive, valed, principal|simple morigage on  the

protected  —  markel  [inked,|identified  propenies  of]
redeemable, non-converible|Mindspace Business Parks
debentures  ("Market  Linked|Private Limited, being one
Debentures / MLD™ of the SP¥s of the Lsswer

and charge on the escrow
account in which receivables

of the mortgaged properties|
of MBPPL shall be received.

3. Rating agency CRISIL has assigned a rating of "CRISIL PP-MLD AAAMStable” to the Market Linked Debentures of the issuer / Mindspace REIT
&, Other requirements as per SEBI Guidelinez (Mo SEBIHO/DDHS/DDHS/CIRPGLE/TE dated 13 April 2018) for issuance of debt securities by Real
Estate Investmenl Trusts (REITs) and Infrasiructure nvestment Trusts (ImvITsy

i Ag nland for the hall year
= riklars ended 30 September 2020
Security £ Asset cover (refer a 3 79 times
below)
Debt-equily ratio (refer b helow) 0.03
Debt-service coverage ratic (refer

60.78

< below)
Interesi-service coverage ratio 6078
{refer d helow)
Met worth (Rs. in million) (refer ¢ 162,904
below)
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Formulae for compuiation of ratios are as follows basis Condensed Standalone Financial Stalements:

a) Security f Asset cover ralio = Fair value of the secured ascets as on 31 August 2020 ag computed by indspendent valuers / (Outstanding principal

amount of Market linked detentures + Interest accroed)
b) Drebt equity ratio = Borrowings / Total Equiry

¢) Diebt Service Coverage Ratio = Eamings before interest, depreciation and tax! {Interest expenses + Principal repayiments made during the peried)

d) Interest Service Coverage Ralio =Eamings before interest, depreciation and tax! (Interest expenses)

&) Net worth = Corpus + Unit capital + Oiher equity

Borrowings = Non current bosrowings + Current borrowings + Cument maturities of long-term borrowings + Interest accrued

Other financial linbilitics

Particulars Axat Adat
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Interest acerued but nor due on debentures 2 .
2 &
Current linbil lties
Trade payables
Farficulsry As at As at
30 September 2020 31 Mavch 2020
Trade payable
+ Total oulstanding dues 1o micro and small enterprises . -
~Total outstanding dues other than micre and small enlerprises 8 .
] =
Other financial liabillties
Pariiculars
As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Other liabilities
- to related party* 36 49
- to others 23 -
59 49

¥ Includes sxpenses of Re.& million incurred by the Manager on behalf of Mindspace REIT and Rs. 21 million payable to Sponsor Group held in eserow

account.

Current inx liabilities

Particulars AsAT Aot
30 September 2020 3] March 2020
Provision for Ingome Tax (Net of Advanee Tax) 2 -
2 =
Other current liabilities
Particalars As il As ar
N September 2020 31 March 2020
Statutory dues 17 -
17 -

16
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cinl Statements

Interest Income

Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the half year  From )8 November
ended ended ended 30 2019 to 31 March
30 September 2020 30 Jurne 2020 September 2020 1020 {Audited)
{Unauditedd [Unaudited) {Unandiied)
Inieresi income
- on fixed deposits [} . 0
- on loans given to SPVs (refer note 28) 125 - 125
125 . 125 -
Other Income
Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the half year  From L8 Nevember
ended ended ended 30 2019 to 31 March
30 Septeniber 2020 30 June 2020 September 2020 2020 {Audited)
(Unaudited) AUnnudited}  {Unawndited)
Net gains{losses) on financial assels at fair value fhrough profit or loss* 3 - 3
Ginin on redemption of mutaal fond wnits | - 1
4 - [}
* Gian on redemption of investient i preference shazes invested in SPY
Other expenses
Particulars Faor the quarter For the quarter For the balf year  From 18 November
enled ended ended 30 201% top 31 March
30 September 2020 30 June 2020 Sepiemher 2020 2020 (Andited)
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Bank charges - 0 0 -
Filing and stamping fees 4] 1] )] (K]
Travelling expenses . - . 0
Royalty Charges 1 1 3
Miscelinneois expenses - 0 0 -
' 1) 1 0 23

Finance costs

Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the halfyear  From 18 November
ended ended ended 30 2019 to 31 March
30 September 2020 30 June 200 September 2020 2020 {Audited)
(Unandited)y {(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Intergst expense on debentires 2 - 2
2 - 2
Tax expense
Particulars For the quarter For the gquarter For the half year  From 18 November
ended cnded eaded 30 2019 10 31 March
30 September 2020 3¢ June 2020 Seprember 2020 2020 {Audited)
{Unawdited) {Unaudited) {Unandited)
Current tax 2 - 2 -
Defirred tox charjie s . C
2 - 2 -

Earnings Per Unit (EPU)

Basic EPU ameunis ar¢ calculated by dividing the profit for the period atributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units owlstanding during the
period Diluted EPU) amounts are calculated by dividing 1he profil atiributable ta unil holders by the weighied averape number of units ontstanding during the periad
plus the weighted average aunber of wnils that would by issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units inlo unit capital, The units of the Trust were allotted (o
Sponsor Group and Blacksione entities on 30 July 2020 and to the applicants of initial public offer on 4 August 2020
The following reflects the profit and vnit dala used in the basic and diluted EPU computation

Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the half year  From 18 November
ended ended ended 30 2019 t0 31 March
30 September 2020 30 June 2020 September 2020 2020 {Audited)
{Lnawdited) {tnsudited) {Unawdited)

Profit / {loss) afier tax for calculating basic and dilnted EPU 119 {5 114 49y
Weighted average number of Units (Nos) 404,112,255 Nol Applicable 203,160,259 Not Applicable
Earnings Per Unit

- Basic (Rupeesfunil) 0.29 Not Applicable 0.56 Nat Applicable
= Dilmed (Rupeesfunil) 0.29 Not Applicable 0,56 Not Aoulica_ble_

Management Fees
REIT Managementi Fees

Pursuant to the Invesiment Managemenl Agreement dated 21 November 2019, the Manager is entilled 10 fees @ 0.5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash Flows which
shall be payable either in cash or in units or a combination of both, at the discretion of the Manager. The fees has been determined for undertaking management of the
REIT and its investments, There is no REIT Management fees accrued for the quarter ended 30 June 2020 and 30 September 2020, haif year ended 30 September 2020

and for the peniod ended 31 March 2020 There are no changss duning the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager

Statement of Nel Distributable Cash Flows has not been disclosed since the first distribution of the REIT as stated in the Final Offer Document will be made upon
completion of the first full quarter after the listing of the Units on the Steck Exchanges ie 31 December 2020,

Assessment of possible impacrt resulting from Covid-['9 pandemic
Mindspace REIT has considered the possible effects thal may resul from the pandemic relsting to COVID-19 on the operations of Mindspace REIT and camrying
ainounts of investments, loans given and other assets. Mindspace REIT as at the date of approval of these financial staternents, has used intemnal and external sources
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Sl No.| Particulnrs

Name of Entitles

Promoters/Parimers*

DHrectors

Trusiee

Axia Trustes Services Limited

Sponsors

Anbes Construclions LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Rehsja
iir. Meel C. Raheja
Mr., Chardru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyeti C. Raheja

Coepe Troding LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C, Raheja
M. Chandru L. Reheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Manager

K Ralweja Corp Investment Manapers LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Reheja
Mr, Neel C. Raheja

= T E

Sponsors Gryup

Ir. Chandru L. Raheia

Mr_Ravi C. Raheja

Mr. Nect C. Rahejn

Wi Jyoti C, Raheia

Capstan Trading LLP

Mr. Ravi €, Raheja
Mr. Neel €, Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Rakicja

Casa Mucia Properties LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Megl C. Raheje
Mr. Chandn: L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Raghukool Estale Developeaimerm LLP

Mr. Revi C. Raheja
hr. Meel © Rahcja
M. Chandru L. Rabeja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Rahejs

Falm Sheher Estaie Development LLP

Mr. Ravi C Raheja
Mr. Meel C, Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoli C. Raheja

K Raheja Corp Pyt Lid

M Chandru L. Raheja loinily with
Mus. Jyon C. Raheja

Mrs, Jyoli C. Rahaja Jomlly with
Mr. Chandru L, Raheja

Mr. RaviC. Rabeja Jointhy with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoli C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandr L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyati €. Rahejo

Anbee Constactions LLP
Cape Trading LLP
Capstan Trading LLP
Cnsa Maria Properties LLP

Raoglulkop! Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr Ramesh M Valecha

Ravi C. Ralwja
MNeel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
¥inod Rohira

18
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28 Related purty diselosures

A Partics to Mimlspace REIT

Sl No.|Particulars Name of Entities Promotera/Partners® Directors

Chandru L. Raheja

Jyoti C, Rehejo

Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Lid
Ravi C. Ralwja

Neel C. Raheja

(Il ars trustess)

14 Ivory Property Trust

Ravi C. Raheja
Neel C. Releja
Ramesh Valecha

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Joimly with
tr. Chandru L. Raheja Joimly with
Mrs. Iyori C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

e, Chandeu L. Raheja Jointly with

Mrs. Jyori C. Raheja

Chandr .. Reheja jointty with Jyoti C. Raheja,
behalf of Tvery Propeny Trust

15 Genext Hardware & Parks P Lid.

| Avacado Properties and Trading {India) Privare
Limited

2. Gigeplex Estate Private Limiled

3. Horizonview Properties Private Limited

4. KRC Infrastrociure and Projects Private Limived

5. Intime Propertics Limited
Names of SPVs and  their| g Supdew Properties Limited
subsidiaries 7. K. Raheja IT Park (Hydernbad} Limited
8. Mindspace Business Parks Pnvale Limited

9. Dices Realcon Povaic Limited
10.Educator Protech Private Limited
11 Happy Easteon Private Limited
12 Sampada Eastpro Private Limited

Governing Board
Mr. Deepak Ghaisas
Ms. Manisha Girotra
Mr. Bobby Parikl
Mr. Alan Mivasaki
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Negl C. Rabeja

Governing  Board  and  Key
Managerial Personnel of the
17 [Manager (K Raheja Com
lavestment Managers LLP )

W e

X .
Mr. Yinod Rohira
Ms, Preeti Chheda

Brookfields Agro & Development Private Limited
Cavaleade Properties Private Limited

Cirange Hotels And Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Povate Limited

Entities comtrolled/jointly
13 egntcolled by members of
Governing Board

Navel Properties Privale Limiled
Pact Real Eslate Private Limited
Paradigm Logislics & Distnbulion Private Limited

Sustain Propenties Private Limited

Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited

Feat Properties Privats Limited

Canin Propertics Privale Limiled

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properiies Private Limited

Grandwell Properties And Leasing Private Limited

Sundew Real Eslate Pravate Limited
Mia Bohby Parkh & Associates
iiiiioall J

* only when acting collectively
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] Related party dlsehosures

B Transartons during the peried

For the quarier For ihe quarter Far the hall year From 13 November
amded 30 Seplewber  ended Y0 June 2020 smded 3 Seplember 2019 ta 31 March
2020 (Unandited) (Unandifod) 2020 (Unnudited) 2020 {Aulited)

Unsecured lonns given to
Avecndo Properties snd Trading Pvt. Led 232k - 233k
Oigaplex Propertiss Privase Limited 3294 - 3294 .
Hotlzomview Proparties Pyl Lid. 4270 - 4270 -
Mindspacs Businoss Parky Privats Limited 400 - 400 .
Investment in preferemce sharw )
Mindspacs Business Parks Private Linnibed 4 . Ex 1 .
Rademption of [nyesiment In preference shire
Mindspecs Business Parks Private Lindted 17 . 17 o
Unaecured laans repald by
Oligaplex Entats Privete Limilod 184 - 171 5
Invesiment in equity chare of SFVa
Avacado Propertisa snd Trading {India) Privaie Limited 0402 - 402
Oigaples Estate Private Limited 13131 - %121
Herivonview Properibed Private Lonited ] . o .
KRC Infrastrocture and Frojects Privaie Limiled 5,368 . 6,860 .
Intima Properties Limiled 15478 . 15470 a
Sundaw Propertise Limited 13, - 1,
K Rahefa IT Park {Hydecubad) Limited 25618 - 25,519
Iindepece Business Parkoy Private Limited 4814 - 48,014
Trustes for tapenses
Axis Trusies Services Limited ! - 1 -
Intereat Income
Avacedo Propsriss and Trading {India) Private Limited a . 3l -
Gigaplex Estain Privats Limited 40 - 40 o
Horizonview Properiies Private Limiled 55 - 55 -
Mindsprcs Business Parks Private Limiled ] - o B
Galn on Redeauptben of Preference Shares
Mindapace Business Parks Privats Linted k] - 3 -
Rogalty Charges
Newfound Properties and Leasing Private Limited . 1 | S
Anbes Conmructions LLP = . - 1
Cepe Trading LLP - - 1
Mindspce Business Parks Pvt Ltd o o 1
[vory Properiies & Holsols It Lrd > & 1
K. Rahsja Pyt Lid . - 1
K Rahtje Corp Pyt Lid . = 1
Relmbursement of Expensey
K Rabwja Comp Invastment Managers LLP* 43 3 49 41

*Includes fees paid 10 dfs Bobby Parikh & Associates amounting to Rs 0 48 rollion for the quarter ended 30 June 2020 and haf year ended 10 Seplember 2020 and Rs 1
million for the period ended 31 March 2030

Paymeent fa Spomesr Groop campanbes In relstisn 1o OITer for Sals

=

Chandru L fshaja a . 10
Jyoti ¢ Raheja 1,139 ‘ 1,139
Ravi C Raheja 1,179 . L179
Nedl C Raheja 1179 . 1,179
Genext Hardware £ Packs Privata Limjted %57 . 057
Inorbit Malls {(india) Private Limited |, 503 . 1505
Ivory Properties And Hotels Privare Limired 31,385 . 3,385
Tvory Property Trusr 10,352 - 16,382
K_ Rahaja Com Private Limited 4.10] . 4,301
K. Rahsja Poivaie Limited 2,051 - 2,851
Corporsie Gearmnice Fees io SPV

Mindspace Dusiness Parks P Lid B ] ] i}
Initinl receipd frwm Co-sponser - recehved

Anbee Conglructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

e of Unid cupital

Anbee Constructions LLP 9,736 - 2716
Capt Trading LLP 2,736 - 9.736
Capstan Trading LLP 11,301 - 11,391
Cazm Maria Properties LLP 11,301 - 11,301
Chandru L Reheja B9 E 8974
Genmrt Hardware & Parks Private Limitsd 6,294 - 6,294
Ivory Property Trust 2410 - 2410
Jyati € Rabeja 2,745 - LM%
K Reheja Corp Private Linmled 10,064 . 10,064
Neel C. Raheija 4637 - 4637
Padm Sheltar Estate Development LLP 1,30 . 1,301
Raghukool Estate Devekopernent LLP 2,958 . 9,959
Ravi C Raheja 4537 - 4617
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o

{all amounts In Rs. ﬁllnlnn unless otherwlse stated)
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C

Related party disclosures
Closing Balances

As at Asat
Particulars 30 September 2020 31 Muareh 2020

Unseeured Tonn receivable (non-¢urrent)

Mindspaca Buginess Parks Privats Limited

Avacade Propertiss and Trading (Indin} Privete Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Horizonview Properties Private Limited

Investment in equity shares of SPVs

Avacado Properties and Trading (India} Private Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Horizonview Properties Private Limited

KRC Infrastrueture and Projects Private Limited

Intime Properties Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabed) Limited

Mindspace Business Parks Privaie Limited

Interest recelvable
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

Other Financia) Liabllities

K Raheja Corp Investment Manegers LLP
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited
Payable to Sponsor Group

Chendru L. Rahgja

Inorbit Malls (T} Private Limited

Ravi C. Raheja

K Raheju Corp Private Limitad

Negl C. Rahgjn

Jyoti C. Raheja

K Rahejn Private Limited

Ivory Properties & Hotels Private Limited
(Fenexi Hardware & Parks Private Limited
Ivary Property Trust

Co-Sponsor Inlilal Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Truding LLP

21

400
2,328
3110
4271

0,482
13,121
0
6,868
15478
13722
25618
43,814

00— by = = = 03O
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hy PACE BUSINESS P,
RN IN/RENT/19-20/003
N Congdens finnnginl 5 i
(all amouwnts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated)

29 Delails of utilisation of proceeds of IPO are a3 follows;

Proposed Actuai utilisation Unuiilised
OhJects of ihe issue as per the prospecius wHligation upio Y0 September ATount Y al
Partial or full pre-payment of scheduled repayment of certain deb facilities of the .000 9,300 Refer notg
Asset SPVs availed from banks/financial institutions (including any accrued
interest and any applicable penalties/ premiumn)
Purchase of Non Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of MBPPL 334 34 .
General Corporate Purposes and REIT Issue Expenses 466 09 Refer nolg|
Total 10U 9,943 -
Nore: Rs. 300 million is wsed in excess for providing loans o Asset SPVs for the purpose of eepayment of debt fcilities of the SPVs and belance Rs, 57 million is unutilised as on
30 Seprember 2020,
0 Detnils of utilisntion of proceeds of Debentures are oa follows:
Proposed Actual utilisation Unutilised

Objecis of Lhe issue a3 per the Iasue memorandum uiilisation upto 30 Septem ber AMOLNt Ay Bt

200 30 September2020 |
Providing loans to \he 5PYs for meeting their consiuchion relmled expenses, 5,000 400 4,600
working capital or gerersl corporale requirements, repayment of financial
ndebtness, general corporate purposes including payment of fees and expenses in
vonncction with the Issue, acquisition of commercial properiies or such othr.rL
pumyoses as slipulated in (he transaction docurments.
Tolal 5,000 400 4,600
R¢. 4,600 million were invested in Axis Overnight Fund by Mindspace REIT on 29 September 2020, redeemed an 30 Seprernber 2020 and proceeds were received on | October

2020,

M Financial instruments :
The camying value and fair value of finencial instruments by calegarics are as below,

Carrving value| Fair Value Carrying value Fair Velue
From 1§
30 Septemb 30 Septemb From 18 Novem ber

Particulars P 2020 Ng:”h‘l‘nggo"’ 2019 to 31 March

WUnovditedy | (Unandited) {Audited 20260 (Audiied)
Financinl assety
Fair value through profil and loss - . = -
Fair value through olber comprehensive income - - - -
Amortised cost
Loans 16,108 10,108 i 1
Cash and cash equivalents 4,746 4,146 0 -
Other fi inl nssets - _ - -
Totnl asscty 14,854 14,854 [i] =
Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit and loss - . . .
Falr value through other comprehensive income . = =
Amortised cost
Borrowings 4972 4,972 -
Other financial liabilities 6l 61 49
| Tritele payables 8 [ - .
‘Total lishilities 5,042 EXCH 49 -

The management considers that he carrving amounts of whove Ninancinl assers and financial liabilities approximate iheir (air values

{a)  Fair value hierarchy
Level | - Quoled prices (umadjusted) in active markets for idenlical assets or liabilities,
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liabiliry, sitler directly {i e as prices) or indirectly {i e derived from priges)
Level 3 - Inputs for the asseis or liabilities that are not based on obscrvable market dota {(unobservablc inputs)

{b] Financial instrumenis
uaittitative disclosures fuir value measurement hivtarchy for nssels as at 30 September 2020:
Particulirs Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Finnncinl assets & liabilities measured ai fair value - - - =

Cusntitative disclosures fair value measvrement hicrarchy of nssetsas at 31 March 2020:
Particulars Tatal Level | Level 2 Lovel 3

Financial assets & liabilities measured gt Tair value = = E =

(¢} Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no iransfers between Level L, Level 2 or Level 3 during the penod ended 30 September 2020 and 3 | March 2020
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MINDSPACE BUSTNESS PARKS RELT
JN/RE 9-20/003

Not o O Standal F inl S
(al) nmounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

(d) Determination of fair values
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determmined for measuremem andfor disclosure purposes based on the following methods, When applicable, further

information sboul the ptions made in d ining faic values is disclosed in the notes specific to that assct or liability

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quolations at reporting date
it} The fair values of other current finencie) assels and financisl liabilifies are considered 10 be aquivalent to their carmying values.

3t Distributions
There are no distributions made to the unithalers for Ihe period ended 30 September 2020

33 "0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million
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Chartered Accountants

De IOitte Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A- G

i CTS No.185/A, Jay Coach
HaSklns & sells LLP Off W:stern Expar\t/essofiicghway

Goregaon (East)
Mumbai - 400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Governing Board,
K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The “Investment Manager”)
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

1.

We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (“the REIT"”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Special Purpose Vehicles”) (together referred as the “Mindspace Group”), which
comprise the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2020,
the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for
quarter and six months ended September 30, 2020, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statement of changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the six months ended September 30, 2020,
along with summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes
(together hereinafter referred as the "“Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements”).

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of
the Investment Manager and approved by the Governing Board of the Investment Manager,
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (the “SEBI circular’); recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI circular, including any guidelines and
circulars issued thereunder. Our responsibility is to issue a report on the Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE)
2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’s
personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and
other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements include the financial information

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27t — 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India

(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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3. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above,
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 34
“Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI circular, including any
guidelines and circulars issued thereunder, has not disclosed the information required to
be disclosed including the manner in which it is to be disclosed in terms of the SEBI circular,
or that it contains any material misstatement.

4. We draw attention to Note 47 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
regarding freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by Avacado Properties
and Trading (India) Private Limited which is presently under litigation. Pending the outcome
of proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the quarter and six months
ended September 30, 2020. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

/\/.V/WJ'“’

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 49660

Mumbai, November 11, 2020 UDIN: 20049660AAAACT4947
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Annexure “A”

List of entities included in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Special Purpose Vehicles:

i Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
ii. Horizonview Properties Private Limited
iii. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited

iv. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

V. Sundew Properties Limited

Vi. Intime Properties Limited

vii. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
viii.  Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Governing Board,
K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The “Investment Manager”)
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

1.

We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (“the REIT"”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Special Purpose Vehicles”) (together referred as the “Mindspace Group”), which
comprise the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2020,
the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other
comprehensive income, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for
quarter and six months ended September 30, 2020, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Statement of changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the six months ended September 30, 2020,
along with summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes
(together hereinafter referred as the "“Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements”).

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of
the Investment Manager and approved by the Governing Board of the Investment Manager,
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (the “SEBI circular’); recognition and
measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI circular, including any guidelines and
circulars issued thereunder. Our responsibility is to issue a report on the Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE)
2410 ‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity’, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim
financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’s
personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and
other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements include the financial information
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3. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above,
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 34
“Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI circular, including any
guidelines and circulars issued thereunder, has not disclosed the information required to
be disclosed including the manner in which it is to be disclosed in terms of the SEBI circular,
or that it contains any material misstatement.

4. We draw attention to Note 47 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
regarding freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by Avacado Properties
and Trading (India) Private Limited which is presently under litigation. Pending the outcome
of proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the quarter and six months
ended September 30, 2020. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

/\/.V/WJ'“’

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 49660

Mumbai, November 11, 2020 UDIN: 20049660AAAACT4947
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Annexure “A”

List of entities included in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Special Purpose Vehicles:

i Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
ii. Horizonview Properties Private Limited
iii. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited

iv. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

V. Sundew Properties Limited

Vi. Intime Properties Limited

vii. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
viii.  Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts gre in Rs, million unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
{Unaudited) {Audtted)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,641
Capital work-in=progress 22
Investment property 6 191,439
Investment property under construction 7 17,117
Intangible assets 8 1
Financial assets
= Investments 9 18
- Other financial assets 10 1,229
Deferred tax assets (net) 11 1,674
Non-current tax assets (net) 12 1,478
Other non-current assets 13 1179
Total non=current assets 215,798
Current assets
Inventories 14 61
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 15 267
- Cash and cash equivalents 16 A 5,355
- Other bank balances 16 B 272
= Other financial assets 17 671
Other current assets 18 391
Total current assets 7,017
Total asseis before regulatory deferral account 222,815
Regulatory deferral account - assets 19 152

Total asseis 222,967




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Al amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
30 September 2020 3 March 2020

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (L =l) (Audited)
EQUITY
Corpus 20 0 0
Unit Capital 21 162,839 .
Other equity 22 572 49
Equity attributable to controlling interest of Mindspace REIT 163,411 49
Non-controlling interest 57 9,306
Total equity 172,717 49
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 23 30,775

- Other financial liabilities 24 2,230 -
Provisicns 23 g -
Deferred tax ligbilities (net) 26 67 -
Other non=current liabilities 27 590
Total non-current liabilitics 33,670
Corrent liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 28 1,462 -

- Trade payables 29

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enlerprises 86
- total putstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 830 .

- Other financial liabilities 30 13,265 40
Provisions 31 58 -
QOther current liabilities 32 849 -
Total current liabilities 16,550 49
Total equity and liabilities before regulatory deferral account 122,957 1]
Regulatory deferral account - liabilities 19 30 -
Total equity and liabilities 122,967 0
Significant accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 4-39

Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached:

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

for Delvitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

NVWM |\ - ﬂ\/\({’\/

\\
b - -
Nilesh Shah % Neel C. Raheja
Partner \.’ Member
Membership number: 49660 \DIN: 000290310

/M Wt
Preeti N. Chheda

Chief Financiol Qfficer
DIN: 08066703

Vinod N. Rohira
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00460667

Place; Mumbai
Date : 11 Nov 2020

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 Nov 2020  Date : 11 Nov 2020

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 Nov 2020
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS FPARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consoliilated Fi fal Stak

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Losa

{Al amounts are In Ra, miilfon unless otherwise stated)

Note For the quarter For the querter For the hall year From 18 Novembar
nded ended ended 1019 10
30 Sepiember 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
(Unaudited) {Ungudited) {Unandited) (Audited)*
Income and gains
Revenye from operations 31 2,119 - 2,739
Intereat 34 37 - a1
Other income 33 4 . 4
Total Income 2,780 - 1780
Expensed and loses
Coat of work contract sefvices 36 &8 . 68
Coal of materinls sold 37 2 ) 2
Cost of power purchassd 38 39 - 59
Employse benafits expense 39 B . 8
Trustee fees 1 . 1 -
Valuation fees 6 . & .
Tnsuranee sxpense 17 . 17 -
Audit fees [} 7 1
Management fzes 68 - 58 E
Repairg and maintenance 40 180 - 180 -
Lepal & professional fees 69 3 72 15
Other expenses 41 244 1 245 2
Toial Expenses 728 5 33 49
Earnings/(loss) before finance costs, depreciation 2,052 (% 2,047 {49)
and amoriisation, regulatory Income / expense and
tax
Finance costs 42 501 - 501
Depreciation and mnorlization expense 43 496 - 496
Profit/{loss) before rate regulated activities wnd tax | ILE) 15 1,050 {49y
Add ; Remulatory incoms! (sxpenas) (et (&) (6) -
Add : Requlatory incomei{expense) (ne1l in respect of earlier vears M - N -
Profit/{loss) before tax 1.042 I5]] 1.037 {49
Cugrent Tax 44 268 - 268
Deferred tax charge 49 158 - 158
MAT cradit entitlement 44 (04 - (64) -
Tax ¢1pense 358 - 358 -
Profitf{Laogs) for the period/year [11] %) [2L] [43)
Profit for the perlod/year attributable to Mindspace REIT G626 {5) 621
Profit for the period/vear atiributable to non-controlling interesis 58 - 58




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consvlidated Flnancial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

{All amounts nre in Rs, million unless otherwise stated)

Note For ihe guarter For the quarter For the hall year From 18 November
ended ended ended 1019 to
30 Seprember 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
{Unaudited) (Uanudited) (Unavdited) (Audited)*

Other comprehensive income
A. (i} liems that will not be reclassified te profit or loss
-R ements of defined benefit linbility/ (asset)
(§i) Income tax relating fo above

B. (i) Items that will be reclassifled to profit or loss
(i) Income tax relating io above

Other comprehensive income atiributable to Mindspace REIT
Qther comprehensive income nitributable te non

controlling interests - : .
Total comprehensive income for the period 684 (5) 679 49y

Total comprehensive income f{loss) for the period

aitributable to Mindspace REIT 626 (5) 621 49
Total comprehensive income for the period
attributable to non controlling interests 54 ; 5
Eamings per unit 53
Basic 1.5% Mot Applicable 106 Mot Applicable
Dilured 1.55 Mot Applicable 3.06 Mot Applicable
Signtficant accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed 459

Conselidated Financial Statcments

* Since Mindspace REIT was registered pursuant 1o a trust deed daled 18 November 2019, the management has provicked the information in Condensed Consolidaled
Siatement of Profit and Loss with effect from said period i ¢. 18 November 2019 for the period ended 31 March 2020 Consequently, 1he information for corresponding quarter
and half year ending 30 June 2019 and 30 September 2019 have net been presented

As per our repen of even dale attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Govemning Board of
Chartered Accouniants K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
Firm's registration number: 117366Wrw-100013 " (ncling as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

.5}

)VV W {\I_‘] *_],‘“\ ¢ \K/\\,:/\ q:/\./ M M ehtirsl

Nilesh Shah ] . \\ 'F-'(‘l'l C. ]ﬁli;t'i:t Vinod N. Rohira Preeti N. Chheda
Partner \ N Membdy Chief Executive Officer  Chief Finapcial Officer
Membership number: 49660 \ DIN: 00029010 DIN: (0460667 DIN: 03066703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mombat Place: Murnbai Place: Mumbai

Dale : 11 Now 2020 Date : [1 Now 2020 Date - 1] Nowv 2020 Date ' 11 Nov 2020



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RM:IN/REIT/19-20:003

Condensed Consolidated Finiancial Statements
Consalidated Statement of Cash Flow
(All amouno are n Rs, milllon unless otherwise stated)

A Cash flows from ooerating sctivifies

Profit before 1ax

Adiustments for:

Depreciation end amon isalion expenac

Finance costs

Interest income

Provigion for doubt ful debus inet)

Net gains/{losses) on financitl assets at fair value throuah profit or loss
Gain on redemption of mutual find wiits

Lease Rent

Foreign exchanee fluciuation losy (net)

Operating profiti{loss) before working capital changes

Movement in workine cavital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade receivebles

Decrense in orther non-current financial assets

[Trereasa? in other current Grancial assets

Decregse / (increase) in other non-cloment n3sers

Decresse f (increasel in other eurrend agsets

Increase / (decrease) in other non cwrent Ainencial linbilities
Tnerease in other curcent lnancial lisbilines

{Decrease) { increase in other non-current liabililies and orovisions
{Decrease}/ increage in other curent liabilities and orovisions
{Decreasedf increass in revulatory defeeral account fassets f llabilities)
Decrease)/ irercase in trade pavables

Cash generatedf{used in) from operations

Direct taxes oai nel of refind received
Net cash genersiedf(used in) from operuting activitivs (A)

B Cash Nlows from investing activities

Fxpenditure incurred on invesrment property and uvesiment
property unvder eonstruction incuding capital advances, net of
capital creditors

Purchase of propenty, plant and equipment and intangible assels

Investment in mutual fund

Proceeds from redemolion of investrent in mutual fwd
hdovement in fixed deposits with maturity more than three months
Loans renavment received from bodyv corporates

Purchase of Investments {Preference sharest

Interest received

Net cash gemerated from investing activities ( B )

For the quarter For the quurter For the hall year From 18 November
ended ended eoded Wi
30 September 2020 30 June 1020 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
(Unavdited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Andited)*
1,042 5 1.037 {49)
496 - A9 -
301 501 -
133} - (33)
23 23
(3} (3) =
{1 (EA] .
5 - 5 -
4 - u -
2,029 (5 2,024 @9
2% 2y
155 - 155 =
22 2t -
161% 61y
(60} (60}
14 14 -
42 : 42 :
(26D ] {266) 49
17 - 17 -
214 - 24 2
15 - 15
82 2 hil) =
2,198 (0 1,198 ']
(233} - {220 =
1,978 {0 1,975 1]
(1.348) (1,348)
(I} (N
(4.600% - {4,600 -
4,601 4,601
g = 1%
12.382 - 12.382 .
{1343 - 13343 -
1.48% - [.488 -
12,307 12,307 =



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolideted Statement of Cash Flow
{All amounis are in Ra. million unless otherwise stated)

¢ Cash flowa from Gaanclng sctivities

Reoevment of external borowinos

Proceeds from issue of unils

Collection towards Offer For Sale

Paywent to Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in respect of
Offer For Sale

Praceeds from issue of non-convertible debentures
Expenses incured fowards Tnitial Public Offering
Mot-convertible debentures issue expenses

Securiry depoait received from cusiomer

Payment towards lease liabilinies

Finance costs paid

Netcash generated used In financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrense} in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+()

Caah and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Jue to asset nequisition
{refer note 45}

Cash and cash equivalenis nt the end of the period

Cash and cash eovivilents comnrises Crefer note o 16A & 185

Cash on hand
Balance with banks
- on CuTTEN BCCONRE
- k0 CICTOW ACeaunts **
Depesit nccounls with less than or equal to three months maturity
Cheaves on hand
Less ; Bank overdraft
Cash and ensh equivalents at the end of the period

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3

" Forthe quarter  For the quarter For the half yesr
ended ended emled
30 September 2020 30 June 2020 30 Sepicmber 2020
{Unaudited)} (Unnudited) (Unwud ired}

23,840} 123.840)
10,000 10,000
35,000 35,000
{34,971) (34.973)
5,000 5,000
(254} (254)
0 )
62 62
[5Y [K)]
— {494} {494}
{9,506) 9:506)
4,776 (0) 4,716
0 0 Q
(385 (853)
3593 L)) 3,893
2 2
5071 0 5071
kL) 34
248 248
_aan - f1L.462)
3893 [ 3,893

From 18 Novernber

2019 ¢0
31 March 2020
(Anditedy®

Nole: The Trust has issued units in exchange for acquisition of assets during the period ended 30 Seplember 2020, The savee: has not been reflecied in Consolidated Sizement of Cash

Flows since these were non-cash transaclions. frefer note 463

See the sccompanying notes 10 the Condensed Conselidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-5%

* Since Mindsp

REIT was regi

d pursuant to 3 frust deed dated 18 November 2019, the management has provided the information in Condensed Consolidated Statemen) of

Cash Flow with effect Som said perivd ie 18 November 2019 for the period ended 3| March 2020 Consequently, the information for corresponding quaster and half year ending 30

Jure 2019 and 30 September 2019 have nol been presented.

** s 4,600 million were invested in Axis Ovemight Fund by Mindspace REIT an 29 Seprember 2020, red

As per gur report of even date anached:

for Debeitie Haskins & Selby LLP
Chartered Accountania
Firm's regisuration number: 1 17366WAW- 100018

AR

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Mambership number: 49650

Place: Mumbai
Date - 11 Nov 2020

1 an 30 Sepreaib

for and on behalf of the Govemning Board of

akting as rthe Manager 1o Mindspace Busiress Parks REIT)

T{nlmjn Corp Investment Managers LLP
|

)

\ AR
N s

> WeBCL Rahefn
~ddembor

YN 00029010

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 Nov 2020

.v)ﬂ'\,/

Vinod N. Rohira
Chief Execurive Officer
DIN: (60667

Place: Mumbai
Date : 11 Nowv 2020

2020 and procesds were received on 1 October

/MNW’

Preeti N, Chheda
Chief Financial Qfficer
DIN; 08066703

Place: Mumbai
Date : 11 Nov 2020



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity

(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A.

B.

Corpus Amount
Balance as on 18 November 2019* -
Corpus received during the period** 0
Balance as on 31 March 2020 0
Balance as on 1 April 2020 0
Additions during the period -
Closing balance as at 30 September 2020 0
4 Corpus received during the period Rs. 10,000
Unit Canital Amount
Balance as on 18 November 2019*
Units issucd during the period -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 -
Balance as at 1 April 2020 .
Add: Units issued during the period (refer note 19) 163,080
Less: Issue expenses (241)
Balance as at 30 September 2020 162,839
. Other equily
Retained Earnings Amount
Balance as on 18 November 2019 =
Loss for the period (49)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (49)
Balance as at 1 April 2020 (49}
Add; Profit / (loss) for the period 621
Add; Other comprehensive income =
Balance as at 30 September 2020 572

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3

Sce the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements - refer note 4-59

*+ Since Mindspace REIT was registered pursuant 1o a trust deed dated 18 November 2019, the management has provided the information in
Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity with effect from said period je 18 November 2019 for the period cnded 31
March 2020. Consequently, the information for corresponding quarter and halt' year ending 30 June 2019 and 30 September 2019 have not been

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: [17366W/W-100018

b

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Date ; 11 Nov 2020

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
{acting as the Manager to Mindspacc Business Parks REIT)

) llahlé]a\~—
mber

DIN: 00029010

Place: Mumbai

Date : 11 Nov 2020 Date : |1 Nov 2020

o\

Yinod N, Rohira
Chief Execurive Officer

DIN: 00460667

Place: Mumbai

/WIUUC/#M‘

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 08066703

Place: Mumbai
Daie + 11 Nov 2020



MINDSPACFE. BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RMN:IN/REIT/19-10/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statemems

Notes bo Accounts

(Al amounts are in Bs. million uniess otherwise atated}

1 Organization Structure

The interim condensed consolidated financial stalements {Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements') comprise financial statewments of Mindspace Business Parks
Real Estale Investment Trust {'Mindspace Business Patks REI'/ Mindspace REIT), its SPVs Mindspace Business Parks Prvate Limited (MBPPL'). Gigaplex Estate
Private Limited ('Grigaplax), Sundew Properties Limited (‘Sundew') Intime Properties Limited {Intime’), K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited {KRIT) KRC
Infrastructire and Projects Private Limited (KRC Infa’), Horizonview Propertics Private Limited (Horizonview’), Avacado Fropentics and Trading (India) Private Limited
{'Avacado’) {individuslly refemed 1o as *Special Pumose Yehicle' or *SPV" and together referred to as “Mindspace Business Parks Group'/Mindspace Group'y The SPYsg

ar¢ companiss domiciled in India

Anbee Construetions LLP {* ACL') and Cape Trading LLP {*CTL') callectively known as (the *Spomsers’ or the ‘Co-Sponaors’) have set up he "Mindspace Buginess
Parks REIT a3 an irrevocable rrust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, LE82 and the Trust has been registercd with SEBL a5 a Real
Eatate Investment Trust on 18th November 2019 under Regulation 6 of the Securitieg and Exchangs Board of India (Real Esiate Investmenl Trusis} Regulations, 2014
having registration mumber RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003. The Trusice to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustes Services Limited (the "Trustee’} and the Manager for Mindspace
RELT is K Raleja Corp Investment Managers LLP (the “[nvesbnent Meanager').

The objectives and principal ectivity of of Mindspace REIT is to camy on the activity of a real esiate invesiment musi, as permissible under the REIT Reguloiions, to raise
funds through the REIT, to make Investments in oceordance with the REIT Regulations and the Investnent Strategy and fo camy on the activities a8 may be required Fst
operating the REIT, inclading incidenial and ancillary matters thereia.
Mindspace REIT scquired the SPVs by acquiring all the equity interest held by (he Sponsor Group and Blacksione entities in the SPVs on 30 July 2020. In exchange for
Ihese equity inlerests, the above shareholders have been allotied 35,66,54,582 Units of Mindspace Parks RE(T valued at Rs. 275 cach

Mindspace REIT went public as per its plan for Initial Public Offer of Units after obtaining the required spprovals from the relevant authorities. The Units were allatred 1o

the successful applicanis on 4 Aopust 2020
Al these unils were subsequently listed on e Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limiled) and National Stock Exchange (MSE) on 7 Augusi 2020
The boef activiries and shigrehilding pattern of the SPVs are provided below:

G Shareholding Shareholding
WGy e (in percentage) upte I July 20 (in pereeniage) from M July 20
MBPPL The SPY is engaged m real  estate| BREP ASIA SG Pearl Holding (NQ) Pic |Mindspace Business Parks
developiment  projects  such  as  Special|Ltd (b4.95%) REIT : 100%
Economic  Zone  (SEZ), Infonmation|Mr. Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Mrs.
Technoloyy Parks and other commercial| Jyori C. Rahejs (L0.38%)
assels The SPV has its peajects n AirclilMys, Jyeli €. Raheja jointly with Mr
{Navi Mumbai}, Pue and Pocharun|Chandm L Raheja (8.01%)
(Hyderabad)  The SPY is a  deemed|Cqpsian Trading LLP (8.01%)
distribution licensee pursiant 1o which it can) ¢.a3, Maria Properties LLP (8.01%)
distribute power 1o the SEZ tenanis within|pa\ny Sheller Estatle Development LLF
the Park. W commenced disiribution ofj g )54y
elecricity in its Rrojcct at Airoli, Nowi|p Raheja Corp Private Limiled (6.47%)
Muunbai from 9 April 2013 Mr, Ravi C. Raheja jointly with Mr.
Chandry L. Ralieja and Mrs. Jyori € Rahcja
(T.37%%)
Mr. Meel € FRaheja jointly with Mr
Chandru L. Raheju and Mrs. Jyol € Raheja
(7.37%)
Anbee Constructions LLP (6,37%)
Cape Trading LLP (6.37%)
Raghukool Fstale Developemenl  LLP
(5.26%)
BREP VI SBS Pead Holding (NO) Lid
(0.0204)
BREP ASIA SBS Pearl Hodding {NQ) Lid.
{D.03%)
Orihers (3 17%)
Gigaplex ‘The SPY is engaged in real esiate| K Raheja Corp Privane Limited (58 90%) Mindspace Business Parks
development projects  such  as Special REIT: 100%
Economic  Zunw  {SEZ),  Infonmation|Mr. Chandru L. Rabeja Joimly with Mis,
Technology Parks and other commerciall lyoti C. Raheja (37.50%)
assets The SPY has jte projects in Adroli| BREP ASIA 5G Pead Holding {NQ) Pte
(Navi Mumbai) The SPY 5 a deemed|Lid (3 59%)
distribution licensee purswint ty which it ean|Oihers (0 01%)
distribute power to the SEZ (enants within
e Pack, It commmenced disimbution of|
glecioicily in its projeet ar Airoli, Mavi
Mumbai from 19 April 2016
Sundew The SPV is cngaged in development end|Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited|Mindspace Business Parks
leasing/licensing of 1T park, SEZ to different] (1% 20%) REIT : %%
custamers in Hyderabad REEP ASIA SG Pearl Holding {NQ) Pte | Andiea Pradesh Industnal Infrastuchere
Lud (14 95%) Carporation Limited {1 1%%)
Andhra  Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11.00%)
Mr. Chandra L. Raheja jointly with Mrs
Iyoti C. Raheja {9.97%)
Casa Mana Propenies LLP {5 85%)
Raghukool  Estmle  Developewnent  LLPY
(5.85%)
Capstan Trading LLF {5, 85%)
Palm Shelier Esiate  Development LLP
(5.85%)
Anbee Constructions LLP (5.23045)
Cape Frading LLP (5.23%)
Others { 11.02%)




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RM:IN/REITAS-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Acrounts

(AN nmounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Intiine

The SPY is engaped in development and
leasirigicensing of [T park Lo different
cugtomers in Hyderabad

Chandru Raheja joimtly with Jyoti Rahejn
(23,98%)
BREP Asia 8G Pearl Holding {(NQ) Pte Ltd
(14 95%)

Corporation Limdted ¢11.00%)

Cusa Maria Properties LLP (6.§2%)
Raghukool Eatate Developement  LLP
(6,12%%)

Capstan Trading LLF (6.12%)

Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
6.12%)

Anbes Constructions LLP (5.47%)

Cape Trading LLP (5.47%}

Chibiars (14.65%)

Andhra  Pradesh Indusicial Infrastrocture

Mindspace Business Parks

RLCIT . 8%%

Andhra Pradesh Industmal Infrastructure
Corporation Limited {11%)

KRIT

The SPY &5 engaged n development and
leasing/licenging of IT perk 1o different
austomets in Hyderabad

BREP ASIA SG Peart Holding (NQ) I,
L1d. (14.93%)

Andhrs  Pradesh  Induimiol  Infrastmcturg
Corporation Limited {11.00%)

[falm Shelier Estate Development LLP
(9, 50%)

Casn Maria Properties LLP (9.50%)
Rughulkool  Estate Developement  LLI
(92,50"%)

Chipstin Trading LLP (9.50%)

Anbee Constructions LLP (3.50%)

Chpe Trading LLP (8. 50%)

Ivary Properties And Hotela Private Limited
(8,22%)

Chandm L Raheja jointly with Jyon C
Ritheja (6.00%)

Ohhers (4, 83%%)

Mindspece Business Parks

REIT ; §9%

Andhra Pradesh Indusinal Infrastrocture
Corperntivn Limited {1 1%}

KRC Infra

The SPV is engaged in real esinte|K Rahejn Privite Limited (42.50%)

development  prajects such  as Specinl

Eeonomie  Zone (SEZ) and  Information| K Raheja Com Private Limited (42, 50%)

Technology Parks. The SPY has its project
in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant w which it can
distribute power 10 the SEZ tenanis within
the Padk h commenced dismbution of
electricity in ifs projec ai Khatadi, Pune
fram L June 2019

BREP Asia 8G Pearl Holding {NQ) Pie. L
{14.95%)

BREP VIl SBS Pearl Holding (NQ) Lul
(0, 029}
DBREP AS1A SBS Pearl Holding {NQ) Lad
(0.03%)

iMindspace Business Parks
REIT: 100%

Horizionview

The SPV s engaged w development and
leasing/icensing of 1T park to different
customers in Chennai

Mr. Neel €. Raheja jointly with M.

(42.50%)

Mr. Ravi . Raheja jointly with ML
Chandrmi L, Rabepa and Mrs, Jyoti C. Raligjn
(42.50%)

BREPM ASIA SG Pearl Holding (NG} Pte
Lid. (14 95%)

Others (0.059%)

Mindspace Business Parks

Chanilro L. Raheja and Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja|REIT @ 100%

Avayado

The SPV. has developed an Industrial park
for the purpose of letting owl to differant
customers in Paradigm building at Malad-
Mumbai and s being maintained and
operated by the SPY. The SPY also hes o
commercial project  in  Bandra  Kurla
Complex, Mumbai

Anbee Conatruetions LLP (13, [8%)

Cape Trading LLP {13, 18%)

Capsion Trading LLP (14.53%)

Raghukool  Estate  Developement  LLP
{asn Mania Propentics LLP (14.53%)

Palm Sheller Estare Development LIIF
BREP Asia SG Peard Helding (NQ) Pe. Lul
(14,95%)

Others (1), 57%)

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT - 100%




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-204003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(Al amounts ave in ta. million unleas otherwize stated)
‘Basis of preparation
The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of the Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprise the Condensed Balance Shieet as a1 30 September 2020, the
Condensed Statement of Profit snd Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Condensed Statement of Cash Flow for quarter and six months ended 30 Septeraber
2020, the Condensed Stateinent of Changes in Unithelders Equity for the six months ended 30 September 2020 and a sunary of the significan accounting policies and
select explanatory infonmation and other additional financial disclosures The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statemenls have been prepared in accordance with ihe
requirements of SEBI {Ren) Estate Investment Trusts Regulations, 2014 a3 amended from tim ¢ to tima read including any guidelines and circutars issued thereunder read
with $EBI Circular No. CIR/AMD/DE! 14612016 dated December2?,2016 (“the REIT regulations”); Recoguition and measurement principles laid down under Indian
Accomnting $tandard (IndAS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, 22 prescribed in Rule2(1)(s) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent nat inconsistent with RETT segulntions.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issuc in accordance with the resolution passed by the Govemning Board of ihe Menager on 11
November 2020

Basis of Consolidation

The Mindspace Business Parks Gioup consolidates entities which it ¢wns or controls. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Stalements comprise the financial statements
of the Mindspace Business parks RELT and ils subsidiory SPVs as disclosed in note 1, Canbiol exitis when the parent has power over the enlity, is exposed, or has fights.
10 variable returms from its invelyement with the entiry and has e ability to affect those retumns by using ils power over the enlity. Power i3 demonstrated through existing
Tights that give the abiliry 16 direct relevant activitics, thoze which significantly affecl the entity”s returns Subsidiaries are consolideled from Lhe dale control commences
umil the date comrol ceases,

The procedure for preparing Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Mindspace Business Parks Group are stated below:

a) The financial statements of the Mindspace Business Parks Group are consclidated for like itens end intragroup balences and trenzactions for assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows between entities of the Mindspace Business Parks Group are eliminared in full wpon consalidation

b) Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastrucince Corporation Limited, which ia o sharcholder in Intime, KRIT and Sundew have not agreed to exchange their equity interest in
the SPVs (Intime, KRIT 2nd Sundew), thus, the Mindsprce Business Parks REIT has recorded @ non-controlling interesis for 1hese SPVs. The imerest oF non-controlling,
shareholders may be initially measured sither at fair value or at the non-controlling inferest propenionate share of the fair valne of the acquiree’s idenrifisble net agseis

The <hoice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the camying amount of non-controlling intevests is the amownt
of flvoge interests al initial recognition plus the non-contralling interests™ share of subsequent chonges i equity.

¢} The figures in the notes to accounts and disclesures have been Consolidared line by line and Inte: pay Ir: tions and bal including wrealised profits are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

d) MBPPL has four wholly swoed subsidiaries namely Sampada Eastpro Private Lid, Educaior Protech Private Lid. Dices Reslcon Private Ltd and Huppy Eastcon Privae
Ltd {fowr sibsidiaries’), As on 30 September 2020, the camying value of (hese investnents in the books of MBPPL is Nil. Moceover, MBPPL has applied 1o Regisirar of
Cumpanies (ROC) for *strikinng of the names of these subsidiarics from the Registrar of Companics. Since these subsidisries are not part of the Mindspace Business Parks
Group's real estate invesiment trust structure, these subsidiaries have not been Consolidated in these Condensed Consolidwed Financial Starements

¢) The Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the ecuity share capital of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, a company invelved in ilie real esiate developunent
The Mindspace Busimess Parks Group is of the view that it 3 nol able to exercise signifizani influence over Siargaze Properties Private Limited and hence it has not been
accounied using equity method.

3 Significwnl accounting policics
(2} Funetianal and preseniation curency
The Condensed Consolidated Financinl Statements arc presented in [ndian rupees, which is the Mindspace Business Parks Group's funcuional currency and the cwrency of
the primary economic enviromment in which the Mindspace Business Parks Group operates. All financial infonmation presenied in Indian rapees has been sounded off 10
nearest million except otherwize siated
(b} Basig of measirement
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are on the historical cost bosis, except for the following:
- Certain fimanciz) assets and Liabilities (reter accounting policy regarding Anancial instnument): measured at fair values;
« Net defined benefit (asset ¥ liability less presem value of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assels less present vahoe of defined benefir plan
{2} Use of judgements and estimates
The preparation of the Comxdensed Consclidated Financlal $tatements in conformity with generally aceepied accounting principles in India {Ind AS) requires inanagement
1o make estimates and assumplions hat affect fhe reported amnounts ofassels, liabilities. income and expenses. Actual resulls could differ from those estimates
Estimated and undeslying assumptions arc reviewed on 4 periedic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the penod in which the estimates are revised
and in any fiture peripds affected.
Information aboul ¢ritical judgements in applying sceointing policies that have the most simificant effect on the amownis recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statemems is included in the folluwing notes:

*  Estimation of lease 1erm for revenue recognilion

*  Estimation of useful kife of property, plant 2nd equipment and investment property

*  Estimation of recognition of defecred 1ax assets, availability of Rulure taxable profit apainst which 1ax losses camied forward can be used and income 1axes

*  Impairment and Fair vaiuation of Investment Property. Invesiment property under constuction, Property, plant and equipment and Capilal work-ineprogress

*  Iniecest capitalised fo invesunent property under construction

*  Applying the tration 1est for acquisition made during rhe period

Mindspace Group has applied judgment in determining whether the acquisition of 5PVs during the period arc considered to be asset scquisitions or business combinations
Mindspace Group has also applied the optional concentration test avaitable under Ind AS 103. Significant judgerment invelved in allocating the cost of the acquisition te the
assets and liabilities acquived based upon their relative fair valuss determined by independsnt valuers at the acquisition date, and no goodwill is recogmized - refer note 46
on Asset acquisition

10



MINDSFACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/RETTAS- 204003

Condensed C lidated Financial 5

Notes to Accounis

(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated}

3.1

¥

(a

—

(b}

(c

(1]

d} Cuorent versus non-sucmen; clagsiBication

The Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Batance Sheet based on current! non-crurent classification:

An assel is treated as current when it is;

« Expected to be realised or inlended to be sold or conswned in nonnat operating cyele;

« Held priewarily for the purpose of rading,

- Eapected to be realised within twelve months afler the reporting period; or

- Cash or ¢cash equivalent unless resiricied from being exchanged or used Lo settle & ligbility for at least twelve months atter the reporting period.

All other assers are classified as non-curcent,

A liability is cwrent when:

- It is expected to be setiled in popmal operating cycle;

- 1t i5 held primarily for the parpose of rading;

- It is due to be sertled within twebve months after the reporting period; or

- There i3 no unconditional Tight 1o defér the sertlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting peried,

‘The Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies all other liabilities a3 non-curren!.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified a8 non-current assels and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time batween the acquisition of asscis for prosessing and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents. The Mindspace Business Porks Group
has idenrified twelve montha 22 its operating cycle

{¢) Measurement of fair values

The Mindspace Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measiureiment of fir values, for both financial and non-financial assels and
liabilities. The Mindspace Business Parks Group has an established conlrol famewark with respest to the measirement of fair vahies

They regularly review signilicant unobservable inputs and valuation edjusiments. B third party infonnation is used to measure faiv volues then the finance team asscsses the
evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valualions meet the requirements of Ind A3, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in
which such valuations should be classified

When meaguring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable marke data a3 far ns possible. Fair values are categoiised
inlo different levels in 8 fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valnation kechniques a5 follows:

= Level |; quoted prices (unljusied) in active markers for identical asscis or liabilities that entity can access on measurement datc

« Level 2; inpwis other than quoted prices included in Level 1 fliat are obsenvable for the assel or liability, enher direcilly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.¢ derived from
prices).

= Level 3; inpuis for the asser or liability that are ner based on observalle marke data (uncbservable inpus)

1F the inpuls used to measure the fair value of ai asset or a liability fall inta different levels of the fair valoe hierarchy. then the fair value meagurement 1g caleparised m its
enirety in the same Jevel of the Gair value hierarchy as the lowest lewsl input (hat is significant te the catire measurement.

Finaneial gusrantes contracts

‘The Group on o case 10 cose basis elects to account for financial gusrantee contracts as & Rnancial instronents or as an insurance contracts as spocified in Ind AS 109 on
Financial Instrunents and Ind AS 104 on Insurance contrasts. The Group bas regarded all its financial guaranice conlracts as insurance comracts. At ihe end of cach
reporting period, The Group performs a Nability adequacy test. {ie, #l assesses the likelihood of a pay-oul based on current undiscounted estimates of future cash flows),
aund any deficiency is recognised in Ind AS Consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Recopgnition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are staled at cost less accumulaled deprecintion and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged when the assets are ready for their inlended
use. Purchase price or construction cost is delined as any consideralion paid or fair valie of any other consideration given to acquire the nsset.

Subsequent expenditre

Subsequent expendinire is capitalized only if it is probable that the funwe economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow lo the Mindspace Business Parks
Gronp, Subscquent costs are inclunded in the asser’s camying amoun or recognised as a separate assel, as eppropriale, only when it \s probable thal futwre ezonomic
benefits associated with 1he ftem will flow 1o the Mindspace Business Parks Group amd the cust of the itemt can be meagured reliably. All other repaits and mqimenange are
charged to the Condensed Consolidated Sialement af Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation / Amortisation

Depreciation / amertisalion is pravided using straight line inethod as per the wsefill life of the assets esiimated by the management over the balance wseful )ife, The
estimated usefol lives of the assers, which are higher ihan, lower than or equal to those preseribed pnder Schedule (I of the Companies Act 2013, are listed in the rable
below. Depreciation on addition / delerion of property, plant and cquipment made during the year is provided on pre-rata basis from / to the date of such addition /
delefion,

The assets and estimated usefil life are as under.

vy Eslima-ted Useful Life
{in years)
Power assets Other agsets

Kight Lo use - Leasehold land Balance Lease term .
Buildings* 75/90 o
Plart and machinery 15 13
Electrical installation® 15 13
Computers 3 3
Temporary Structure® 1
Hlice equiprment* 4 4
Furniture and fixtures™ . ?
Vehicles* - 5

* For these ¢lass of assets, based on lechnical assessment the management belicves the usefil life of the assets is appropriaie which is diffecent than those prescobed under
Part C of Schedwle 1l of the Comnpanies Act, 2013

{17 Based on intermzl ussessment the manegement believes e residyal value ofall assels is estimated to be 5% of the onginal cost of those respective assets

{2} Assets individvally costing less than Rs 5,000 are Rully written off in the year of acquisition

{3) The cstimated usefil lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed 1 the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecogiized upon dispasal or when po fitwe economic benefits are expected to anse from the continued use of the asset
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carmying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Condensed Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss
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(Al amounts ar¢ in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
(e) Capital work in prosress

3.3

3.4

(a)

{b

(e

p=3

-

d)

{2y

{by

{c

—

Property, plant and equipment under construction is disclosed as capital wotk in progress which is camied at cost less any recognized impairment logses. Cast comprises of
purchase price and any attributable cost such as dutics, freight, bortowing costs, crection and commissioning expenses incwred in banging the assel 1o its working
condition for its intended use.

Advanes pail and sxpenditure ineurred on scquisition / constnuction of property, plant and equipment which are not ready For their intended use ot each balance sheet date
are disclozed under other non cwTent asseis os advances on capital account and capiial work-in-progress respectively

Intangible assets

Recopnitdion and measuremeni

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monstary assel without physical substance. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that sre acquired separately are initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accurnulated amonisation and impairment, if eny. The eslimated useful life and amortisaien method are reviewed ar
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of ony changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite usefbl lives that are
acquired separately are carried at coal leas impainnent, if any

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capilalised only when it inereascs the Rature econownie benefits embodied in the specific ssact to which it relates. AH other expenditure,
including expendinire on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensed Consolidaied Statement of Profit and Loss 5 incurred

Ampriisation
Amiortisalion is caleulated over the cost of the nsset, or ather amown substituted For cost, less is residual valoe. Amortisation i3 recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on & smaight line method over the estimaced use ful lives of intangible assets, fiom the date that they arc available for usc

Estimuled Useful LiTe
Agsel group q
{in years)
Other assets
Computer Soflwares 3
“Trademarks 10

The estimated useful life and amonisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the affect oFany changes in estimate being accounted for ona
prospective basis

De-cecognitlon

An intangible asset is d unised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal, gains or losses arising fom derecognition of an
intangible assel, measured as the difference between the et disposel proceeds and the canying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Condensed Consolidared
Siatement of Profit and Losg when the agzet is derecognized

Investment orooerty

Retogmition and measurement

Properties including Jand, building and other assets, which are held either for long-tenm rental yield or for cepital appreciation or for both, and which are not oceupied
substantially by the Mindspace Business Parks Group are classificd as investment propeny

Investinenl properties are imbally recognised at cost, including related mansaction cosls. Subsequent to milial recognition, invesiment properties are measured in
accordance with the requirement of Tnd AS 16's requirements for cost model ie. Cost less depreciation less impaimment losses, ifany. Deprecialion is charged when the
investinenl property is ready For its intended use. Cosl comprises of direct expenses like land cosi, site labour cost, materisl wed for project construction, project
wmanagement consultancy, costs for moving the plant and tachinery 1o the site and yeneral expenses ineurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, degiyn
and technical assistance, and construclion overheads are allecaled on a reasonable basis 1o the cost of the project

Plant and machinery, fumiture and fixtures, office equipiment and electrical equipiments which are physically atrached 10 the commercial buildings are considered as part off
inveatnent propernty.

Acquisitions and disposals are accounted for ar the date of completion of acquisitions and Jisposals.

Subsequent expendiure

Subsequent expendilwe is capitalised to the assel’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow 1o the
Mindspace Business Parks Group atd the cost of the item can be mezsured rehably. All other repairs end maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Depreciation / Amortisation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straighi line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the mansgement over the balance useful hife The
estimared useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lewer than or equal 1o these prescribed wnder Schedule I of the Companies Act 2013 and lisied in the table
below. Depraciation on addilion / delerion of investment property made during the year is provided on pro-rala basis from/ to the date of such addition / deletion

A Estimated Useful Life
sset gronp X

{in vears)
Rizht 10 us¢ - Leaschold land Balance Lease term
Buildingzs® 75/
Infrastucture and develepmen 13
Roadwork® 15
Plan:_and imachinery 15
Office enuipment™ 4
Fumniture and fixnres® 7
Elecirical ingtallation™ 15

* For thess olass of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriaie which is different than those prescribed under
Part € of Schedule IT ofthe Companics Act, 2013

Basad on intemal assessment the managemeni believes the residual value of all assets is estimated o be 5% ofibe original cost of those respective assets

Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 arc fully written ofF in the year of acquisition

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed 2t the end of the reporting period with (he ¢ffect of any changes in the estimation
accownted for on a prespective basis.
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Fair Yalue

Fair value of investment property is bazed on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the Jocation and category of the investment property being valued. The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the Sturement of Mer gssets at Fair
Walue

De-recognition

An investiment propery is derecogmized upon disposal or when the jnvestinenl property is permanemly withdrzwn from use s po future economic benefits are expected
from the dispasal Any gain or loss arising on de-recopmilion of Lie property {calculzled as the difference berween the net dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset} is included in the Condensed Congolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the propesty is de-recognised.

Invesiment properties under constraction

Property that ia being construcied for Future use ns investment property is accounted for as investmient property under construction wwilll assels are ready for their intended
use .

Direct axpensas like land cosl. site labour cost, material used for project consmuction, project management consuliancy. cosls for moving the plam and machinery 10 the
site and general expenses incued specifically Ror the respeetive project like insurance, design and technical assistance, and constriction overheads are taken as the cost of
(he project

Twestment propenties under construction represent the cost incurred in respest of areas under construciion ofthe real estate development projects less impaimment logses, i
any.

Advance paid for aequisition of investment property which are not ready for their intended use al each balance sheet dute are disclosed under ofher nen current assets as
capital advance.

Impairment of assets

The Mindspace Business Parks Group gssesses al each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication thal an asset may be inpaired. 1f any such indication exists, the
Mindspace Business Parks Group estimates the recaverable amount of he asset. The recoverable amownt of the assets {or where applicable that of the cash zenerating wunil
10 which the asset belongs} is estimared as the higher of ita net selling price and its value in nse. Value in use is the present value ol estimated future cash llows expected 10
arise from the continuing use of the assers and from its disposal at the end ofils useful Jife. An impainment loss is recognised whenever the camying mnount of an asse or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds ils recoverable nmount, [mpairnient loss is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Siatement of Prafit and Loss of
against revaluation swplus, where applicable

When an impairmenl loss subsequently reverses, the camying amounl of the assel {or a cash-generating uni} is increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but s¢ that the increased camying amount ducs not exceed e carrying amount that would have been detennined had no impai loss been recopnised for the asset {or
cash-genemting wnil) in pricy years. A reversal of an iinpairment loss is recognised immediately in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Borrowing eosts

Borrowing costs that are ble to the acquisition, jou or production of qualifying asseds are mreated as direct cost and are congidered as pant of coat of such
pysels. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other cosls Mal an entity incurs in sonnection with the bomowing of finds. lnvesiment income eamed on the temporary
investment of specific bomowings pending heir expenditure on qualifying assers is deducled Fom he borrowing cosls eligible for capitalisation. A qualifying asset is an
nsset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time 1o et ready for ils intended nse or sale

Capilalisalion tate used to deiennine the amount of borrowing costs 1o be capitalised is the weighied average interest mte applicable to the general borrowings
Capilatisalion of borrowing costs is suspended duning the extended period in which active developinenl is inlemupted Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceasad when
substantizlly all 1he activities neccssory to propare the qualifring asset for i1 intended nse or sale are complele

All other borowing costs are recognised as an expense in the perod in which they are menired

Borrowing cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is continuad to be capitalised only 1o the 2xtend the Mwndspace Group has incurred extemal bomrowing cost

Inventories

Ml ewsurement of invemory

Inventories comprise of building material and components. Contracival work in progress, in respect of third party customers, is classified a5 work in progress. The
Mindspace Business Parks Group measires its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cosr of inventories

The cost of invenlories of bolding material and components and work in progress comprise oll costs of purchase and other cosls incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis

Net realisable value

Net realisabls value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of complerion and estimated costs necessary 10 make the sale

Revenue recognition

Facility rentala

Revenus from property keased owt under an operating lease is recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis, except where there is an uncertainty of uhimate
collection,

Mnintenance services
Maintenance inceme is recognised over a penied of time for services rendered to the customers.

Revenue from power supply
Revenue from power supply 1§ aceounied for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes imbilled revenues accrued vp to the end of the accounting year. The
Mindspace Business Parks Group detennines surplus/deficit ie. excess! shonfall of agyregate gain over retum on equity enntlement for the period in respect of its
operations based on the principles laid down under the respective Tanff Regulations as notified by Maharashira Electricity Regnlarory Comimission (MERC), on the basis
of the tanff order wsued by itIn respect of such surplus/deficit, appropriate adjustments as stipulsted under the regnlations are made during the period. Further, any
adjustments that may arise on ennual performance review by the MERC under the tariff regulations is made after the completion of such review.

Finance Lease

For asscts let out under finance Jease, the Mindspace Busincss Parks Group recognises 8 receivable at an amount equal to the nel investment in the lease. Rentals received
are accounted for o5 repayment of principal and finance income. Minimuwm lease paymenis receivable on finance leases are appontioned between the Hnance income and
the reduction of the outsianding receivable. The finance income allacated to each periex] during the lease term so as 10 producs 4 constant perisdic rate of interest on the
remaining nel fvestment in the fnanca lease

Conlingent rents are reeprded as income in the periods in which they are eamed

Sale of surplus constructon material and scrap
Revenne from gale of surplus consfruction material is recopnised on ansfer of risk and rewards of ownership which is generally on dispatch of material
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Interest income :
(i) Tnterest incoine is recognised on lime proportion basis, by reference 10 the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate appliceble.
(ii} Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed paymenis are recognised, onlime proportion basis, except when there is uncertainty of ullimate collection

Tax ¢xpense

lncome tax expsnse comprises currenl tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loar excapt 1o tha extend that it relales to an
ilem recognised dirsctly in equity or in other comprehenzive income in which case, the curent and deferred 1ex are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive
income respeciively,

(8) Current tax

(b

(c}

Current 1ax comprises the sxpected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the 1ax payable or receivable in respect of

previous years. The amount of current lax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected (o be paid or received afler considering the inty, if any, related to
income taxes. ]t is measursd using rax ratea {and tax laws) enacted or substantively engcied by end of reporting period
Deferred tax

Deferred 1ax assetliability is wwoognised on temporery differences between the camying omounts of essets und lisbilities in the Condensed Comsolidaicd Financial
Siatements and the cotresponding tax bases used in the computation of 1axable profit. Deferred tax assets and liobilities are measured that are expacted 1o apply to the
period when 1he assel i realised o the lisbility is sertled, using the tax rates and tax Jaws that have been enacted or subsiantively snacied by the snd of reporting period
The measurernent of deferred tax liabilitics and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manmer in which the Mindspace Business Parks Group
expects, at the end of the reporting perind, (o recover or setile The camying ameunt of its assets and Tiabilitiss

Deferred tax is not recogniset for;

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in n transaction that is not a business combination and that affects reither accounting nor
1axable profit or loss a1 the time of the wansestion; and

- Temporary differences related to invesimenis in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arangements to the extent thet the Mindspace Businesy Park Giroup iy able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 3s probable thal they will not

reverse inthe foregeeable fulwre,

Deferred lax linhilities are generally recogmised for all 1axable 1emporary differences. Deferred tax assels are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
1o the exrent thal it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deduciible temporary differences can be utilized, Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the: temporary difference arises fiom the initial recognition (other than in a business combination} of assets and Labilitics in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profil nor the accounting profir.

The camying amowmt of defermsd rax asse1s are reviewed at the end of each reporting pered and reduced to the exient hat it is no longer probable that sufficien 1axablc
profits will be available 16 allaw all or part of the asset to be Tecoverad

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ars olfset if fhere is a legally enforceable right 1o offsct current tax lishilitics, and they relate to incoms laxes Jevied by the same tax
authority on the same laxable entity, or on different tax entities, bul they intend 10 setile cuent tax ligbilities eng assels on & net bagis or Usir tax assets and liabilities will
be realized shnultaneously

For aperntions camied oul under tax holiday period (801A benefits of licome Tax Act, 1961}, deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been esiablished for the tax
consequences Fhose temporary differcnces between the carying values of gssets and

liabilities and their respactive 1ax bases that reverse afier the tax holiday ends

In the situations where one or more units of the Group are entitled to a lax haliday under the 1ax law, ne defared tax (esser or

liabiliry} is recognized in respect of wmporsry differences which reverse during the wax holiday period, 1o the extent the concerned

unit's proas talal income is subject 1o the deduction during the tax holiday period Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences

which reverse after the 1ax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences eriginate. However, the

Group restricts recogmition of deferred 1ax assets to Lhe extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available ugainst which such defered 12x assets
can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the lemporary differeénces which originate first are considered to reverse firsl.

Minloum Alternate Tax {MATY

MAT credit entifkemenl is recognized as an asset only when and to 1he exient there is convincing evidence that normal income vax will be paid during the speaified period
In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an assel, the said asset is ereated by way of a credit to the Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Profit 8nd Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement under deferesd fax asscis, This is reviewed al each balance shest date and the carrying amount of MAT credit
entitlernent iz wrien down 1o the extent it is not reagonably cerlain thal normal income tax will be paid during Ihe specified period

Earnings per unit (EPU):

The basic earmings per unit is computed by dividing the nel profitf {loss) anributable (o the unit holders of the Mindspace REIT by (he weighted average number of ynils
outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in computing diluted eamings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighled averaye units considered for
deriving basic eamings/ {loss) per unit and slso the weighted average number of wnits which could have been issued on the conversion of ull dilwlive potential units

Dilutive polential units are desmed converted as of the beginning of 1he reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. Tn computing diluted earings per unil,
only potentizl equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces eamings per unit or werease loss per units are inclugded

Provisions, contingent Liabilities and contingent assers

Pravisions are recognised when the Mindspace Busi Parks Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of & past event, il i3 probable that the
Mindspace Dusiness Parks Group will b required to scttle the obligation, and a religble estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The smount recopmised as A provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation a1 the end of the reporting period, 1aking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the éxpacted future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of meney and the cisks specific 1o the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities ar¢ disclosed when thers is a possible obligation or a present obligation thal may, but will probably nat, require an outflow of resources. When there
is a possiblc obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of sutflow of resources is remote, no provisicn or disclosure is made.

A contingen! esse is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurence of ons o more uncertain foture evens not wholly within the comrol of the Mindspace Business Parks Group.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingerd Assats are reviewed al each Balance Sheet dare and adjusted ta reflect the carrent best estimates.

Foreign corrency transacions and transiations
Transactions denominated in foreign curency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of fransactions. Exchanpe differances arising on foreym owchange

transactions settled Juring 1he year are recognised in the Condensed Consolidated 8 of Profit and Loss of the year.
Manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-end and not covered by forward contracts, are tronslared at the year-
end ot the closing exchange rate and the resuliant exchange diffe are recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Staterment of Profil and Loss. Non-monetary foreign

currency items are carmed al cost
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34 Leases
As a Lessor
The Mindspace Business Parks Group ¢nlees into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its invesiment properties.
Leases for which the Mindspace Business Parks Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operaring leases. Whenever the terms of the lzase mansfer aubstantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership 1o the Jessee, the contracl is classified as a finance lease. All other leses are classified as operaling leages.
When the Mindspace Business Parka Group i an imermediats lessor, it accounts for the head lcase and the sublease as two separate conimacts, The subleass is classificd
as a finance or operating lease by reference 1o the right-o fuse asset arising from the head tease.
Reatal income from cperating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the tenn of the relevant Lease. Initial dirsct costs incurred in negotialing and arranging en
operating lease are added to the camying amouni of the leased ass¢t and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Amounts due from lessces under finance leases are recognised as ivables at the t oF the Mindspace Business Parks Group's met investment in the leszea, Finance
lease income i3 allocated to reponting periods 3o as (o reflect a constant periodic rate of retum: on the Mindspace Business Parks Group's net invesiment outslanding in
respect of the leases
As 8 Lessee
The Mindspace Business Parks Giroup assesacs whether & contract s or contains a Tease, at inception of a comiract, The Mindspece Business Parks Group recognises a
right-cfuse aseet and o comesponding lease Yiability with respect Lo all lease agreements in which i s the lessee, except for shori-tenm leases ( defined as leases with a
Jease tenm of 12 montlis ot less) and lepses of low value asyets. For Mese leases, the Mindspace Business Parks Group recogniscs the loase: payments as an operaling
expanse on a simaight-line bagis over rhe temm of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time paficm in which economic benefits from the
Teased essel are consumed
The lense liability is iniially measured at 1he presenl value of Lhe lesse paymenis fiat are not paid a1 the commencement date, discoumed by using the rate implicit in the
Jease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Mindspace Business Parks Croup uses it inzremental bomowing rate,
Lease payments included in the measurement uf the ase liability comprise:
+ fixed lease payments (including in-substance fived payments), less any lease incentives,
- variable Jease payments that depend on an index or rate, inifially measured using the index or rate ot the commencement date:
+ the amount expected ta be payable by the Jessee under residunl value guarantees:
« payments of penalties for texminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise ol an option to tsrminate the lease
The lzase liabitity is presentsd ay a separute line in the condensed Consolidated balance sheet as Lease Liability
The lease lisbility it subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amounl to reflect interest on the lease Jiability (using the effective imeres method) and by reduicing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made
The Mindspace Business Parks CGroup remeasures the lease Ligbility (and makes a comesponding adjusuncnt 1o the related right-of-use asser} whenever
+ the lease term has changed or there is a change in the of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease ligbility is remeasured by discounting the
tevised Jease payments using a revised discount rate
+ the lease paymenis change due 1o changes in an index or rate or a change in expected paymenl under 3 guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
measured by discounting the revised lesse payments using the initial discoun mie {unless the lease payments change is due to a change in 4 fibabing interest vite, n which
case a revised discount rare is used)
o a lease coniracl is modified and the tease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
leaye payiments nsing a revised discount rate,
The dght-of-use assets comprise the fnilial ement of the comesponding lease liability, fease payments made a1 or before the commencemnent doy and amy initial
direct costs - They are subsequently mensured at cost less aceurnulated depreciztion and impairment losses
Whenever the Mindspace Business Parka Group incurs an obligation for costs 1o dismantle and remove o leased assel, reslore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, n provision is recognised and rmeasured under Ind AS A7 *Provisians, Centingen!
Liabilities and Contingent Assers’. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asse, unless those ¢osts are mouned w produce inventories
Right-ol-use assets are deprecialed over ihe shorter period of lease tenm and usefil like of the underlying assel
The Mindspace Business Parks Group spplies Ind AS 36 Linpainucnt of Assets 1o detennine whether a cght-of-use asset is impaired ond accounts for any identified
impainnent loss as described in Nole 3.4
Variable rents thot do not depend on an index of rate are nol included in the measurement (he lease Liability and Ihe right-of-use asset. The related payments are recopnised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition thai triggers those payments ceours and are included in the line * other expenses” in (e Condensed
Consolidaled Statement of Profit and Loss
LY B Financial instruments

"
Y.

i}

Initial recopnition aml measurement

Financial assets and/or fnencial liabililies are recognised when the Mindspace Business Parks Group becomes party 10 a contract embodying the reluted financial
instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities are inilially measured an tair value, Transaclion costs that are atribuiable to the acquisition or issue of financial asscts
and fineneial lisbilities {other than financial assets and financial labilities at fair vahue through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fair
value of such assets or liabilities, on inival recognition, Transuctivn costs direcily arnbutable to e acquisition of fi 1al asscts or financial habilitics a1 fair valoe
through profil or loss are recognised irmunediately in Ue Condensed Consolidated $taiement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asvets:

Clagsification of financial assets:

The Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its financial assets in the following ineasurement categons:

_ 1hose to be measured subsequenily at fair value {either through other comprehensive income, or throngh the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss), and

- those measured al anortised cost.

The classification is done depending upon the Mindspace Business Parks Gronp's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
Aows

fii) For investments in debi mstrurents, this will depend on ihe business model in which ihe investment is beld
{iv) The Mindspace Business Parks Group reclassifies debt investmenis when and only when its business madel for managing those assets changes
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Subsequent Measurement

Delt instrunvenis:

Subsequent measurement of debl instruments depends on the Mindspace Business Parks Group's business mode] for managiny the assel and the cash flow characrerisnes
of the asset. There are three measurement categarics into which the Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Finaneial assets are subsequently measured ot amortised cost if these financial assets ere held within a business whose objective 75 10 hold these assets in order to collect
coniractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Bnancial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows thal are solaly payments of pincipal and interest on the
principal amount oulstanding.

Finoncial asscts at fair value through piher comprehensive income (F¥TOCH)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value throuph other comprehensive income if these finoncial assets mre held within 8 business whose objective is
achicved by both collecting contrmctual cash flowa that give rise on specified dates to solely paymenis of principsl and interest on the pancipal eroimt outglanding and by
selling financial assels.

Financial assets a1 fair value through the Condenacd Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Finaricial azsets are subsequently measured at feir value theough the Condensed Consolidsied Stalement of Irofit and Loss unless it is measured at amonised cost or fair
valye through other comprehensive income on initial recognition, The transaction casis direcdy atiribulable 1o the acquisition of Anancial assels and Tiabilities al Fir value
trough profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss

Equity instrumenis:

The Mindspace Dusincss Parks Group subsequently mensures all equity investments at fair value. There are two measuwremen calegonies into which the Mindspace
Business Parks Group classifies ils equity instruments:

Investmenty in equity inyiruments st FYTPL:

Investiments in equity instruments are classilied o3 at FVTPL, unless the Mindspace Butiness Parks Group imevocably elects on initial recognition 1o present subseguem
changss in fair value in other compreliensive incorms for eyquity instruments which are not held for irading

Investments in equity instrument at FYTOC):

On initiel recognition, the Mindspace Business Patks Group can maks an irrevecable election (en an instnuneni-by-instrumen! basis) te present the subsequent changes in
fuir value in oiher comprehensive income. This election is not peritted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected imvestments are milially measured at fair
valuve plus nansachion costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising Fom changes in tair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and acenmulaled in the reserve for ‘equity nstnunents (hrough other comprehensive income’ The cmulative gain or loss is not reclassified 10 Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on digposal of the investments, b is transferred 10 retained eamings.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Mindspace Business Parks Ciroup 2pplies Ibe enpected credit loss wmedel for iecognising impairnent loss on fnancial assets ed al ised cosl, lease
receivables, rrade receivables, other contractual rights 16 receive cash or other Fnancial asset For irade recefvables, the Mindspace Business Parks Gronp measures the
loss allowance at an emount equal 1o lifetime expected credit lasses. Further, for the purpose of measwring lifetime expected credit lose allowance for trade receivables, the
Mindspace Business Parks Group hias used a practical expedient ay permitted wnder Tl AS 109, This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision
matrix which tales o account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Derccognition of imancial u3sels:

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
(i) the iglt o receive cash flows iom b assct has expired, or
(i3 the Mindspace Business Parks Group hag ranafemed its rights fo receive cash Hows from the asser, and
the Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewirds of the asset, or
the Mindspace Busincss Parks Group has neither transferred ner reiained substantizlly all the risks and rewards of the asser, but has transferred conirol of the asset

On derecognition af a financial sssel in its entirety {cther 1han investments in equity instrunents at FYOCIY, the differences between the camying amounis measored at the
date of derecognilion and Ihe consideration received is recognised i Condensed Consolidated Statement of Prefil and Loss. Any intersst in wansferred Minancial assels
that is created or retained by the SPV is recopnised as a separate assel or liability,

Financinl Habilities anl equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instronents issued by the Mindspace Busmesa Parks Group are classified according te the subsiance of the contractual amangements entered
inte and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity insicument

Equity instruments

An cquity instrunent 1s any contract thet evidences a residual interes in the assets of the Mindspace Business Parks Group afer deducting sll of iis liabilities. Equity
instruments. are recorded at the proceads received, net of direct issue costs

Repurchase of the Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equily instrument is recogmised and deducted direcily in equiry. No gain or loss is recognised in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or concellation ol the Mindspace Busincss Parks Group's own cquily instrunems.

Compound finwncial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instrumenls issued by the Mindspace Business Parks Group are clssified separately os financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contraciual arrangements and the definitions of a hinancial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of 3 fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of (he Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equiry instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issuz, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing markel interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective fnterest method unil extinguished upon conversion or at the ingimument’s maturity date.

The conversion opticn classified as equity is determiied by deducting the amount of the liability component from the Faic value of the compound ingmument as a whole
This is resognised and included in equity, net aFincome tax effects. and is not subsequently remeasured

Transaction costs that Telate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated 1o the liability and equity components in proportion fe the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relaling 10 the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction casts relating 10 the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability componem and gre amortised over the lives of the convenible instrument wsing e ¢Pective interest method.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RM:IN/RENT/19-20/003

Condensed Consplidated Financial Statements

Motes ta Accounts

(Al amounis are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

W

(

D

Finnncia) Liakilities

Recognition, messurement and clasgifieation

Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Condensed Consolidated Siarement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management
detennines the classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, ai the time of reclasstfication,

The Mindspace Business Parks Group's financial liabilities include wade and other payables, loans and bomowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent
measurcmnent of financial liabilities depends on their claesification as feir value through the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss or st amortized cost. All
changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified as FYTPL are recognized in the Condensed Consolidered Statement of Profit and Eoss . Amortised cost category is
applicable to Toans and borrowings, irade and other payables. After initial recopnilion the financipl liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Effectiva Interest
Rats method

Derecopnition

A financial liability i derecogmized whem the obligation under the liability is discharged or cencelled or expires. Gains and losses are recogmized in the Condensed
Consclidated Starement of Profit and Loss when the liabilitics are derecopnized

Offgetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presonted on net basis in the Balance Sheet when [here is a currenlly enforcenble legal nght 10 offsel the recognised
amounts and there is an intenlion either to settle on 2 net basis or to realise the assets and serle the Liabilites sumoltaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash end cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits, other short-tenn, highly Tiquid inveshments wilh orgmal matunities of Three months or
less that are readily convertible to knvwn amounis of cash and which are subject 1o an insignilicant tisk of changes i value

Statement of Cash Mow

Cash Now is reporied using 1he indirect method, whereby net profit before 1ox is adjusied for the cffects of transactions of a non-cash nawwe and any deferrals or acciwals
af past or fulure eosh receipts or payments, The cash Aows from aperating, investing aud financing activities of the Mindspace Business Parks Group sre segrepated

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Ststement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalenis consist of cash and shori-term deposits, s detined above, ner of
outstanding bank overdralls as they are considered an imtegrat part of the Mindspace Business Parks Group’s cash management

As per para 8 of Ind AS 7 "where bank overdrafls which are repayable an demand form an mlegral part of an entity"s cash managemient, bank overdrafis are inchided asa
component of cash and cash equivalents Bank overdraft, in the Condenscd Consolidated Balance Sheel, is included as *borowings’ under Firanciol Liabilities

Employec benefits plan

Disclosure pursusunt to Ind AS = 19 *Employee benefits'

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable whelly within twelve months of rendening the service are classified as short-term employee benelils such os salaries, wages, etc. and are
recopnised in ihe year in which the employee rendered the telated services. The undiscounted amouwit of shor-lenm employee benelits expecied 1o be paid in exchanue for
the services rendered by employees is recogniscd as an expense duning the year

Long term employee benefity

Delined contribution plans

Contnibutions 1o defined contribition schemes such as provident fund arc charged as an expense based on the amownt of contribution required to be made as and when
services are rendered by the employees Mindspace Business Parks Group's providem Rnd contribution, in respect of cerlain employees, is imade to a govemment
administered Fand and charged a3 an expense. The above benefils are classified as defned contrnbulion schemes aa the Mindspace Bisiness Patks Group has no fither
g finedd obligations boyond the monthly contributions

Defined benefit plan

The Mindspace Business Parks Group's graluity benefit scheme is a defined benefil plan. The Mindspace Business Parks Group has determingd che gratuity liabiliry based
on internal calenlation based on the number of years completed and lasi drawn basic salary as mentioned in the Payinent of Graluity Act, 1972, The linbility or asset
recognised in the balance sheel in respeet of defined benefit gruluity plans is the present valuc of the defined benefil obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
foir valve of plan assets, if any, The defined benefit obligation is calcnlated annually by acinaries / SP'Vs using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of De defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference lo market yields at
the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds that have kerms approximating to the 1enms of ke related obligation. The net interest cost is calculmed by applying the
disceuml rate 1o the net halance of rhe defined benefit obligalion and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Condensed
Conselidated Staiement of Profil and Loss

Other long term employee benefits - Compensated sbsences

Benefits under compensated absences sre accounmied as other long-term employee benefits, The Mindspace Business Parks Ciroup has determined the liability for
compensated absences based on intemal calculation which is determined on the basis of leave credited to employee’s account and the last drawn salary. The Mindspace
Business Parks Group's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benchit 1o be seitled in finure, that employecs have cumed in retum for theic
service it the eurrent and previons years The benefit is discounted to detennine its present value, The obligation s ineasured on the basis of an actuanal valualion / by
3PVs asing the projected unit credit method, Remeasirement is recopmised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise
Compensared absences which are not expected to ocour within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recogmised
as 2 liability

Statement of net assets at fair value

The disclosure of Statement of Net Assets at Fair Vahue comprises of the fair values of the total assets and fair values of the tolal linbilitics of individual SPVs The Eaie
value of the assels are reviewed regularly by Managemenl with reference to mdependent assels and market conditions exisling al the reporting date, using generally
accepted markel practi The indep t val are leading independent appraisers with a recogmised and relevant proFessmnal qualification and with recent
experience in e IocaLion Judgment is also applied in delgrmining the extent and Eequency of ndependet apprasals. Such independen) appraisals and the assumptions
used are reviewed ot each balance sheet dae
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Noilex te Actounts
{AD amouniz ore in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
3.20 Earnings before finance costy, depreciation and amertisation, regulniory income / expense and tax
The Mindspace Business Parks Group has elected to present enmings befors interest, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense and tax as a separate line
jtem on the face of the Condensed Consolideted Statement of Profit and Loss. The Mindspace Business Parks Group messures earnings before interest, depreciation and
amortisation, regulatory incomme / expense and tax o the basis of profitf (loss) from ¢ontinuing operstions.
32 Subsequent cventy
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statemenis are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Condensed Corsolidated Financial
Statements #re iszued. The Condensed Consolidated Financial $ hawe their own date of authorisation, which differs from that of the Bnancial shatemnenty of the
entities which are pan of Mindspace REIT group. Thercfore, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, menagemeni considers events up to the
date of euthorisation of these financiel statements.
3.2 Errorg nod estimates
The Mindspece Business Parks Group revises ils ing policies if the chenge is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the chenge will provids more relevant and
reliable information 1o the users of the Condensed Consolidaed financial statement. Changes in accounting policies are applicd remospectively,
A change in an 2 that results in changes in the camying amounts of recognised assets or lisbilities or to profit or loss is applied prospestively in the
period(s) of change.
Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by resiating the comparative amuwunts of assets, liabilities and equity of the carliest prior period in which the error s
diseoversd. The openitiy balances of he earliest period presented are alas restated
313 Non-conirolling interests
Non-controlling inlerests represent the share of reserves and capital mmibuiable 1o te sharchelders of the 5PYs who have not agreed to exchange their shares in the SPVs
for umits of Mindspace REIT and will niot become the umitholders of Mindspace REIT Below is the list of sharebolders of the SPVe for whom nen-contrelling interest has
been recognised-Noi-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiarics ace shown separaicly in the Condensed Consolidoted Statemen of Profit and Loss,
Consolidated Stetement of Changes in Equity and Balance Sheet respectively
SPY Shareholder % Holding in SFV
[As on reporting date}
KRIT Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrestruciure 11.49%
Corporalion Limited
Inime Andhsa Pradesh Industrial Infrastnciure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Sundew Andhra Pradesh Industriol Infrestructure 11.0%
Corporasion Limited
Ind AS | 1 requires entitics to altribute the profit or 1oss and each component of other comprehensive income to the ownera of Mindspace RELT nnd to the non-controlling
interests. This requirement needs o be followed even if this results in the non-comiol ling interests having a deficit balance.
124 Cash distribukion to unit holders

The Group recognises a liability to make cash disiributions 1o Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligalion has been created. As per the REIT
Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager A comespunding amownt is recognised directly in cquity.
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MINDSPACE BRUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(AT amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

% Investment

Particulurs As at As nt
30 September 2020 31 March 2020

Financial agsets

Investments In equity instroments

Unguoted equlty shares measured at F¥TOC]

2,000 equity sheres of Stargaze Propertica Private Limited, face value of Ra. 10 each 0
fully paid-up (31 March 2020 : Nil}

Investment in Government Securitles at amortised cost

25,000 7.61% '"Central Government Loan {Face valug Rs 100), {31 March 2020: Nil} 3 -
25,600 8.24% GOI 2027 Bond {Face value Rs 100}, (31 March 2020: Nil) 3 -
25,000 7.17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 2 -
22,000 7.26% Centrat Government Loan (Face valoe Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 2
22,000 7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 1040), (31 March 2020: Nil) 2
10,000 7.72% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil) 1
18,000 7.26% GOI 2029 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 March 2020: Nil} 2 -
28700 7.40% GOl 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), (31 Merch 2020: Nil} 3

18
Investments mepsured at cost {gross) -
Investments measurcd at fair value through profit or Joss
Invesiments measured ni fair value through other comprehensive income 0
Investments measured at amortised cost 18

Aggregate amount of impairment recognised
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(ANl amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

10 Other financial assets (Non current)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Fixed deposits with banks 29
Unbilled revenue 421
Finance lense receivable 265
Security deposits for development rights é
Security deposits 502
Qther receivables 6
1,229
11 Deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Deferred tax assets (net) 1,674
1,674
12 Non-current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Advanee tax (net of provision for tax) 1.478
1,478
13 Other non-current asseis
Particulars As at As al
30 Scptember 2020 31 March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 879
Balances with government authorities 29
Prepaid expenses 271
1,179
14 Inventories {valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Building maferials and components 61
61
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(Al amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

15 Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Unsecured
Considered good 267 .
Credit impaired 70 -
Less: Joss allowance (70) -
267 -
16 A Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Cash on hand 2 -
Balances with banks
- in current accounts* 5,071 0
- in eserow accounts** 34
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than
three months 248 +
5,355 0

* Rs. 4,600 million were invested in Axis Overnight Fund by Mindspace REIT on 29 September 2020, redemeed
on 30 September 2020 and proceeds were received on 1 October 2020.

** Represents the balance Rs. 34 million (31 March 2020 : Nily from proceeds of initial public offer of REIT
Units (Tota} proceeds Rs. 10,000 million). These amounts are held in the Escrow account can be withdrawn for
certain specific purposes. Out of Rs. 34 million, Rs. 27 million is payable to Sponsor Group and Blackstone
entities.

16 B Other bank balances

Particulars As at As at
30 Seplember 2020 31 March 2020
Fixed deposits with maturity remaining upto twelve
months* 272 -
272 -
*Includes fixed deposits with banks held as lien against loan availed to support debt servicing and bank
guarantees
17 Other financial assets
Particulars As at As al
30 September 2020 31 March 2020

Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable

- on fixed deposits 2 -
Interest acerued bt not due -
= on other deposits 3 -

- from others 33
Security deposit for development rights 60 -
Security deposits 22 -
Unbilled revenue 282 -
Finance lease receivable It -
Cther receivables -
- Considered good 158 -
- Credit impaired t -
Less: 10ss allowance (D -
671 -
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/(3

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(Al amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

18 Other current financial assetsy

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Deposit / advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 39 -
Balances with government authorities 147 -
Prepaid expenses 205 -
391 -
19 Regulatory deferval nccounts
Particulars Ax at Ay at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Regulatory assets 152 5
182 -
Regulatory liabilities 30 -
30 -
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MINDSFACE RUSINESS PARKS REIT
RM:IN/REIT/19-204003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

MNotes to Accounts

(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

20 Corpus
Corpis Anmauni

As al 18 November 2020 =
Corpus received during the period* 0
As a1 31 March 2020 0
Additions during the period -
|Closing balance as at 30 Septem ber 2020 0
* Corpis received during the period Rs. 10,000
21 Unit Capital

A. Unil Capital Units Amount
|As at 18 November 2020 - -
Units issued during 1he year -
As st 31 March 2020 - .
As at 1 Apnil 2020 - -
Unils issued during the year

- pursuanl to the initial public offer, issued, subscribed and fully

paid-up in cash {yefer note a (i) below? 36.363 600 10,004

- in exchunge for equity imterest in SPVs (refer note a (iii) below) 556,654,582 153,080
Less: Issue expenses {2411
Closing balance as st 30 Septem ber 2020 593,118,182 162,839

Note; Issue expenses pertaining to the Lnitia) Public Offering (LPO) and listing of the units on the National Stock Exchange und Bombay Siock
Exchange have been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 Financial Insiruments: Presentation

(a) Termafrights attached to Units
(i) Mindspace RE[T has only one class of units, Each unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in Mindspace REIT. Each holder of Units is
entitled 1o onc vote per unit The Unitholders have the ripht to receive at least 90% of the Nel Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT at
Jeast ance in every six months in each financial year in accordance with the REIT Regulations. The Governing Buard of the Manager approves
dividend distributions. The distribution will be in propertion 1o the number of units held by the unitholders. Mindspace REIT declares and pays
dividends in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace REIT is required 10 distribute to Unitholders nol less than ninety percent of the net
distributzble cash flows of Mindspace REIT for each financial year. Accordingly, a porlion of the unitholders” funds contains & contraciual
obligation of Mindpsace REIT to pay to its unitholders cash distributions The Unitholders™ funds could have been classified as compound
financis instrument which contain both equily and Habilily components in accordance with Ind AS 22 - Financial Instrumenis; Prosentation
llowewer, in aceordance with SEBI Circulars {Ma, CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/1 4172016 dated 26
December 2016} issued under the REIT Regulations, the unitholders’ funds have been classified 2s equity in order to comply with the
mandalory requirerments of Scction H of Annexure A to the SEBI cicular CIR/MD/DF/141/2016 dated 26 December 2016 dealing with the
minimuom disclosures for key financial statements. In line with the above, the dividend payable to unit holders is Tecognised as lability when
the same is approved by the Govemning Board of the Manager

{ii} Initial Public Offering of 3,63,63,600 Units for cash at price of Rs. 275 per Unit aggregating to Rs, 10000 million

{iii} Mindspace REIT has acquired (he SPVs by acquiring all the equity imerest held by the Spensor Group and Blackstone Entities in the 5PVs
The acquisilion of equity interest in the SPVs has been done by issue of 55,66,54,582 Units of Rs. 275 each as par the table below

Number of Units allotted for acquiring equity interest
held by Sponsor Group and Blackstone entities in
Name of the STV 5PV
Sponsor group Blackstone Total
Entities
Avacado 29,304 371 5,171.350 34 475 730
Horizostview 364 64 428
KRC Infra 21,224,693 3,745,522 24,870,215
| Gigaplex 47,334,145 372113 47 704 £58
[nlime 46,789,935 9439.426 56 274.36)
Sundew 101,943,753 20,664,275 122,608,028
KRIT 77.443 859 15.6%8. 050 3,141,939
Mindspace 150,855 361 26,621 662 | 177.477.023
Total number of Units issued 474,897.081 81,757,501 | 556,654,582
(b} Unitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Trost
Name of ithe unitholder A3 at JO September 2020
Mo of Units %% holding
BREP ASiA SG PEARL HOLDING {N(}) PTE LTD 54,291,425 9,16%

(<)} The Trust has nel allotied any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has il bought back any ¢lass of units from the date of registration
till the balance sheet datc. Further the Trust has not issued any units for consideration other than cash from the date of incorporation Gl the
balance sheel date, excepl as disclosed above
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23

ol

Othier Et| nity™

Particulars As at As at
30 Sepltember 20200 31 March 2020

Reserves and Surpius
Retained eamnings 572 9

572 (49

*Refer Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's equity for detailed movement in other equity balaixces

Retained earnings @
The cumulalive gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and s recognized and accumulnted under the heading of relained

eamings. Al the end of the period, the profit afier tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained eamings account

Borrowings

Particulars As nt As st
30 September 2020 31 March 2020

Secored
Terms loans
« from banks / financial institutions 25,803

Debentures
10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non- 4972

cumulalive, rated, principal protecied — market linked, redesmable,
non-converible debentures {“*Market Linked Debentures / MLD"} {31
Mareh 2020 Nil ¥ (net of issue expenses, al amortised cost) (31 March
2020 Mily

30,775 -

During the quarter ended 30 September 2020, pMindspace Business Parks REIT (“Trust”} issued 5,000 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed,
guaranteed, senjor, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — markel linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market
Linked Debentures / MLD'") having face value of Rs. 10.00,000 (Rupess ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 500,00,00,000 (Rupees five
hundred crores only), The (enure of the said MLD is 577 days from 29 September, 2020, being date of aliotment of the Market Linked
Debentures and coupon, il any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date ie on malurity on 29 April 2022. The coupon payoff
structure is linked to condilion where the payofT will be fixed on the final fixing datzie March 30, 2022, i identified 1@ yr G-Sec’s last traded
price as on final fixing date is greaicr than 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 29th Scpiember 2020, the coupon rate will be
6.80% p.a. If identified 10 yr G-Sec’s last traded price as on final fixing date is less than or equal 1o 25% of s Jast reded price as on initial
fixing dute, the coupon rate will be zero pereent. As per the valuers report in respect of valuation of these MLDs, the probability of oceurrence
of such an event {last traded price of identified L0 year G-Sec on final fixing date beiny less than or equal 10 23% of its lesl traded price on
initial fixing date} is remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero.

Security terms

The Market Linked Debentures are secured by each of the fpllowing securily in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the
Debenture Holders):

First and exclusive charge being registered simple mortgage (including reccivables arising therefrom) on the aggregale leasable area of
approximately 974,500 Sq. Ft er thereabouts in buildings no. 6, 7 and § of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 178,569 sq ft. in building no 6,
approx 371,799 sq. & in building no. 7 and approx. 4,24,132 in building no. 8§} together with the proporiionstc undivided right, title and
interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 25,313 sq. mirs on which the said three building no. 6, 7 and 8, out of
all those pieces and parcels of larger land are situate, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged
Properties™)

A gharge on the escrow account in which receivables of the mortgaged propertics of MBPPL shall be received

Carporale guaraniee to be exceuted l;{ MBPPL. o ) . .
In aceordance with the terms of the Mortgage Poeuments, MBPPL is in process of creation of first ranking exclusive charge by way of an

registered simple morigage in favour of the Debenture Trustee over Ihe Mortgaged Properties.
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Redemption terms:
I These debientures are redeemable by way of bullel payment at the end of 577 days from the date of alloiment, i.e. 29 April 2022

2. The Coupen shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating 15 upgraded
after any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to acoelerate the
MLD il the Tating s downgraded to A+

3, Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trusiee may, by issuing not Jess than 30 {thirty) buziness days notice [0
the ssuer require the Issuer te redeem in fult (or as the case may be, in part), all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to
the total mondatorv cedemption amount in respect of each Debenture,

Distlosure required under SEBI circular SEBVHO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P2018/71 dated 13 April 2018
4. Details of nonsconvertible debentures are as follows:

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior,
taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected -
market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debenfures
(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD™)

Secured by way of a charge in the nature of registered
simple mortgage on the identified properties of Mindspace
Business Parks Privaie Limited, being one of the SPVs of
the 1ssuer and charge on the escrow account in which
recgivables of the morigaged properties of MBI'PL shall

he received,
Previows doe date Not Applicable
Principle - On Maturity
Mext due date Interest - On Maturity

Particulars

Seenred/Unsceured

5. Rating ngency CRISIL has assigned a rating of "CRISIL PP-MLD AAhr/Sable” to the Market Linked Debentures of the issuer /

Mindspace REIT.
6. Otther requirements as per SEB| Guidelines (No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated |3 April 2018) for issuanee of debt
seeurities by Real Estate [n | Trusts (REITS) and Infiastructure Investinent Trasts (InvITY)
Pariteulars For the half year ended
30 September 2020
Security / Asset cover_(refer o below) 2.32 times
Loan to value ratio {refer b below) 0.13
Debl-equily ratio (refer ¢ below) 021
Debl-service coverage ralio {refer d below) 2.52
[nterest-service coverage ralio {refer ¢ below) 4.06
MNet worth { refer fhelow) 172,717

Formulae for computation ol ratios are as Follows basis condensed consolidiled financial statements {including non-controlling interest) :-
a) Seourity £ Asset cover ratio = Fair value of the secured assels as on 31 August 2020 as compuied by independent valuers /
(Owstanding principal amount of Markel linked debenures + Interest accrued)
b} Loan 10 value ratio = (Total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances) / Gross asset value of the group as
computed by the independem valuer
¢) Debt equity ratio = Borrowings / Total equity
d) Debt Serviee Coverage Ratio = Eamings before interesl, depreciation and 1ax / (Interest expenses + Prineipal repaymenis made during the
€) Interest Service Coverape Ratio = Eamnings before inlerest, depreciation and tax f {Interest expenses)
) Net worth = Total equity
Borrowings = Non current borrowings + Current borrowings + Current maturities of long-term borrowings + Interest accrued
* Excludes bullet and full repayment of external bormowimgs

24 _Other financial liahilities

Particulars As at Asat
30 September 2020 31 March 2020

Security deposits 1,950
Retention money Payabla

- due to micro and small enterprizes 19

- athers 79
[nterest Acerued but not due on debentures 2 -
Lease linbilities 180 -

2,230 -

15 Provisions
Pariiculars As at As at
30 September 20200 31 March 2020

Pravizion for employee benefits
- graloity 6

- compensated absences 2 -
3

16 _ Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at Asat
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Deferred 1ax linbilities (net) 67 -
67 -
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Other non-current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Uneermed rent 420 -
Other advance 170 -
590 -
Bormwi_w (Cnrrgst)
Particulars Ag at As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Secured;
Loans repavable an demand
- overdraft from banks 1.462 -
1,462 -
Trade payables
Particulars Asal Aa nit
36 September 2020 31 March 2020
‘Trade Payables
- tola) outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 86 -
- total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enlarprises
and small enterprises 830 -
96 -
Other financial liabilities (Curre_nl)
Particulars As nt As at
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Current maturilies of long-term debi
- fram banks / financial institulions f non convertible debentures 5,661
Employzes dues payable 0
Interest accrued bul not due on loans from -
- banks / financial institalions 50 -
- others 3
Interest accrued and due in]
Security depasits 5439
Retention dues payable
- due 1o micre and small enierprises 131
- ofhers 93
Capital creditors -
Other than body corporates
- Die to micro and small enterprises i
- (Hhers 1,287
Lease liabilities 18 -
Other liabilites® 136 49
Liability towards derivatives contract 2 -
13,265 49

* Includes expenses of Rs 8 millions incurred by the Manager on behalf of Mindspace REIT and Rs. 21 millions payable 1o Sponsor Group

held in escrow account.

Provi_s.ions {Cu rrent)
Particulars Ax at Asg at
30 September 2020 )1 March 2020
Provision for em ployee benefits (refer note 23 above)
- gratuity |
- compensated absences -
Provizion for tax (net of advance tax & tax deducted at source) 2;
Other current labilities
Particulars As at As al
30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Unearned rent 223
Advaneces received from customers 248
Siatutory dues 206
Dther advances 5
Othet payable 62
849 -
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Revenuve from ngcrn!imm

Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the half year From 183 November
ended ended ended PN
30 September 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Sale of services
Facility tentals 2,190 - 2,190
Maintenance services 400 - 400
Revenue from works contract services 63 - 68
Revenue (rom power supply 64 - 64
Other operatlog income
Interest income From finance lease 14 - 14
Sale of surplus construction material and scrap 1 - |
Service connection and other charges 1 - I
Other operating income ] |
2,739 - 2,739
Interest
Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the hall year From 18 November
ended ended ended 2019 to
30 September 2020 30 June 2026 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Interesi income
« loans given to body corporates 22 - 22
- on fixed deposits 3 - 5
- on electricity deposits 3 - 3
- on ncome-tax refunds [-] - 6
- others 1 - 1
37 - 37
Other income
Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the hall year From 18 November
ended ended ended 2019 to
30 Septemn ber 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 3 March 2020
Gain on redemption of preference shares 3 3
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units l 1
Miscellaneous income 0 - [
4 - 4
Cost of work contraci services
Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the half year From 138 November
ended ended ended 2019 to
30 September 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Cost of work contract serviees 68 - H8
o8 - [
Cost of materinls sokl —
Particulars For the quarter For the quarier For the half year From 18 November
ended ended ended 2019 to
30 September 2020 30 June 2020 30 Sepiember 2020 31 March 2020
Cost of materials sold 2 - 2
2 - 2
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38 _Cost of power purchased

Particulars For the quarter For thequarter  Fer the hall year From 18 November
enided ended ended 1019 to
30 September 2020 J0 Jume 2020 30 September 2020 31 Mar¢h 2020
Costof powen purchased 59 59 -
50 59 -
39 _Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the half year From 18 November
ended ended ended 2019 to
30 Septem ber 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Salaries and wages 7 7
Contribution 10 provident and other funds 1 1 -
Oratwity expenses 0 0
Compensated absences (0) (0)
] - 8
40 _Repairs nnd malntenance
Particulnrs For the quarter For the quarler  For the half year Frem 18 November
ended ended ended 2019 ko
20 September 2020 30 June 2020 30 Sepiember 2020 31 March 2020
Repairs and maintenance:
- building 124 - 124
« plant and machinery 51 - 51
- computens 4 - 4
- electrical installation 5 - 5
180 - 180
41 _Other expenses
Particulars For the quarter For the quarter For the hall year From 13 November
ended ended ended 2019 ko
30 Seplember 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 dMarch 2020
Rent U] - il
Property tax 78 78 :
Royalty - I | 8
Electricity, water and diesel charges 63 - 83 -
Travelling and convevance 1 | g
Rates and laxes 1 l .
Business support faes 9 9 =
Brokerage and commission 28 - 28 .
Filing fees and stamping charges (1 0 n i5
Business promoticn expenses/advertising expense ) - 9 =
Bank Charges 3 0 k]
Bad debts written off 3 - 3
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses G 9
Provision for Doubiful Debts {expected credit loss allowance) 20 - 20
Foreign exchange loss (net) L 9
Directors’ sifting fees 0 - i}
Miscellaneous expenses Iz 0 12 -
244 1 243 13
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42 _Finance costs (net of eapitalisation)

Particulars Far the quarter For the quarter For the haif year From 18 Novem ber
ended ended ended 2019 to
30 Septem ber 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 Merch 2020
Interest expanse
- on bormowings from banks and financial inslitutions 50 530
- oti loans from body corporates 49 49
= debentures 2 2
- on lease liability 4 4
- on others 3 - 5
Accretion of interest on 0.001% non-cumulative redeemable 4 1
preference shares
Unwinding of interest expenses an security deposits 43 43
Other finance charges & 8
Less: Finance costs capitalised to invesiment property under (144) (144
construclion
£01 - 501 -
43 _Depreciation and amortisation
Particulars For ihe quarter For the quarter For the hall ycar From 18 November
ended ended ended 2019 to
30 September 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
Drepreciation / amortisation of property, plant and equipment 43 - 43
Depreciation / amonisation of investment property 453 E 453
Amortisution of inlangible assels 0 - i}
Less: depreciation cost trensferred to invesimenl properties under ()} - m
COTStruction
496 - 496
44 _Tax expense
Particulars For the quarier For the quarier For the half year From 18 November
ended ended ended 2019 to
30 September 2020 30 June 2020 30 Septem ber 2020 31 March 2020
Current lax 268 268
Deferred tax charge 158 158
MAT credit entillement (68) {68}
35 = 358

45 Subsequent events

{i) KRC Infra has commenced facility management business with effect from | October, 2020 under the brand name CAMPLUS for providing facilities
management services ta the assets in our Portfolio and third parties, if any, located within the assels

{ii) Subsequent to the pericd ended September 30, 2020, Gigaplex has repaid outsianding loan of Rs, 2,430 million and Avacado has repaid oulstanding

loan of Rs. 2,200 million of HDFC Limited
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46 Asset Acquisition
The Mindspace REIT entered into share acquisition agreements with shareholders of 8 Asset SPVs {refer nofe 1 under
accounting policies for list of these SPVs) for acquisition of shares of the Asset SPVs in exchange for the units of
Mindspace REIT. The acquisition was effected on 30th July 2020 (“Acquisition Date™).

Requirements of Ind AS 103 apply to a transaction in which assels acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a
business. However, para B7A and B7B of Ind AS 103 allow an optional conceniration test 1o perform simplified
assessment of whether acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The consequence of the test is that if the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined noi to be a business and no further assessment is
needed.

REIT has opted to apply optional concentration test in respect of acquisition of these SPVs, Acquired SPVs are
engaged in the business of real estate development and leasing. Major asset pool of these SPVs comprise of
investment property and invesiment property under construction. Based on the assessment performed, management
has determined that substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired iz concentrated in investment
property and investment property under construction (including other assets which meet the definition of group of
similar identifiable assets as per definition provided in para B7B of Ind AS 103 such as invesiment property, property,
plant and equipment atiached to these investment properties which cannot be physically removed and nsed separaiely
from these investment properties, without incurring significant cost, or significant diminutien in utility or fair value to
either assct).

Accordingly, acquisition of these SPVs has been accounted as acquisition of group of assets not constituting a
business and requirements in Ind AS 103 for business combination accounting has not been applied to this transuction.
The REIT has accounied for the transaction as fallows:

a. Identified asset or liability initially measured at an amount other than cost and applied applicable standards for

initial measurement of these assets and liabilities
b. Plant and Machincry recognised at Fair value as determined by an independent valuer

¢. Deducted from the gross transaction price of the group acquired, amount recognised in respect of items listed in
point {a) and (b) above

d. Allocated the residual transaction price to the remaining identifiable assets {i.e. Land and Buildings which ase then
being classified as Investment Property and Investment property under construction) based on their relative fair values
at the date of acquisition, arrived at by an independent valuer.

The transaction has not resulted in recognition of goodwilt or bargain gain in the books of the REIT. Non-controtling
intcrests in these subsidiaries have a present ownership interest and is entitled to a proportionate share of net assets
upon liquidation, These non-controlling interests have been accounted at their fair value on the date of acquisition of
the SPVs. For this putpose, fair value has been determined in accordance with Ind AS 113.

As consideration for the assets acquired, Mindspace REIT issued 556,654,582 units at unit price of Rs. 275 per unit
totalling to Rs, 153,080 million. Mindspace REIT has also incurred directly attributable expenses in relation to the
asset acquisition, amounting to Rs. 23 million, resulting in the total transaction price of Rs. 133,103 million. The
following tables semmarize the total transaction price, gross transaction price and the allocation of Lhe transaction
price.
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Amount
Particulars {in milllon)
Purehase consideration 153,080

Acguisition costs 23
Total transactlon price 153,103
Tsgue price per unit 275

Based on the above total fransaction price and adjusting for the other assets and liabilities assumed, the gross
transaction price is as follows:

Amount
Particulars (in million)
Total Transaction Price 143,103
Less: Other Assets 44,344
Add: Other Linbilities 91,570
Add: Non-Controlling Interest 9.247
Gross Transaction Price 200,576

Based on the above total fransaction price and adjusting for the other assets and liabilities assumed, the gross
transaction price is allocated as follows on the basis of the allocation explained above :

. Amount
Particulars (in million)
Land - fieehold and leasehold 93.469
as part of Investment property ’
Building as part of Investment
— 88,099
Investment property  under 16,680
| construction ’
Property, plant and equipment 11.327
and other assets ’
Total 209,575

Depreciation on leasehold land, building, plant & machinery and other assets has been caleulated on the above
allocated amounts based on the balance useful lives of these assets as per the accounting policy.
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47 Contingent liahilities and Capital commitments
Particulars Asat As al
30 September 2024 | 31 March 2020

Contingen| liabilities
Clairns nod acknowledpad as debt in respect of

- Income-Tox matters {Refer note | below) excluding interest 969
» Service-Tux matters (Refer note 2 balow) 333
- Customs duty matrers (Refer note 3 below) 25
- Stomp duty 65
Capital commitments
Estimeted amount of contracts rempining to be execated on capital sceount (nel of sdvances) and not 4,949
provided for {Refer Nole d balaw)

For the purpose of above disclosure only those contingent Liabilities tht existed as of 30 September 2020 have been considered
Motes:

| @) Gigaplex -An appeal hus beea filed for A Y, 2010-11 before CIT(A) against te penalty order raising demand of Rs. 3 million and the appeal is pending. The company has paid
20% [Rs.0.6 million) with a request to keep the demand in sbeyance. A3 per Income 18X websile , lhere is no demnnd custanding

(t) KRIT - Contingent liability of Rs. 933 million relate to AY 208213 10 AY 2018-19 for which cempany has filed appeals before CIT(A) against orders under section [43(3)/
143(%) read with section 153A ol the Act contesling the disallowance of deduction under section 801A of the Inzome Tax Act, 1961, The company is hopeful of a favoursble
outgome Eor these Assessienl Years. In case of unfavourable decisions o appeal for AY 201213 and AY 2016-19, the wx would be payable under normal tax and hence, MAT
cradit currently available with the Company will no longer be available. As a result, in addition to above contingent liability, the Company weuld tequire e pay additional wx of
Rs.326 million wir.t AY 2019-20 and AY 2020-21 {These years are not undsr litigalion} hecause during these years the Company hes ulilised the MAT credit availed during AY
2012-13 o AY 2018-)9,

For AY 2009-10 and AY 20101 I, Income (ax cases on 30[A disallowsnces are pending with Hon'lble HC of Telangang based on appeal filed by ihe department against the ITAT
- Hyderabad order, which were in lavour of the Company. Future Cash outflow in respeci ol abwove, if any. is daterminable only on receipt of judgernents / decisions pending with
relevani authorilies

{c} Avacado - Contingent liability of Rs.33 million relate to AY 2015-16, AY 201617 and AY 201712 for which ¢ompany has [led appeals helore CIT{A) apainst onder uis
143(3) read with section 1334 of the Act contesting 1he disallowances made w's 144 and B0LA The company is hopeful of a 1! ble out for these Assessment Yeers In
case of unfavoursble decision in appeal, for AY 2015 16 and AY 2016 17 the tax would be payable under MAT, which will be available for ser-ofl against tax liabilicy of future
years. For AY 2017-18 additional tax payable would be set-ofT against MAT credil of earlier years

2 SPVs Asat Asal
30 Septernber 2020 | 31 March 2020

METPL 2]
Sundew 2
Intime 41 -
KRIT 189 -
Avacada B .

132 -

MBPPL : The SPV has recewved show cavse and demand nolices for inclusion in taxable value amounts reseived as eimbursement of alectricily and allicd charges and demand
service tax there on of Rs, 92 million SPY has filled approprinte replies to 1he show cause and Jemand notices

Sundew = Demand for Non Payment of service 1ax on renting of fitouls and equipments Rs.2 Million and Demand for Interest and Penalty on aceount of wrang availment of
credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.0mn _ SPV has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending

Intime : Demand for Mon Payment of service 1ax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.2 I million and Demand Tor Service tax on elecimicity and water and irregular aveilment
of eredit of scrvice tax paid on input services R5.20 million. SPY his fled an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending

KRIT : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equiprients Rs. %6 million and Demand for Service rax on elecricity and water and irregular availment
of credit of service 1ax paid on input services Rs.93 million. $PY has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending
Avacado : The SPV has reecived an order dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commi (Appeals), confirming the service tax demand of Rs. 7 million {excluding

applicable mterest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable propeny services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 10 March 2011, The Company has filed an
Appea) before the Customs, Cenlral Excise & Service Tax Appellarte Tribunal. The matter is pending adjudical ion

For the subsequent period April 2011 1 September 201 [, the Company has received a Show Cause cum Demand MNotice dated 22 Gulober 2012 alleging non-paymeni of service
tex of Rs. t million {excluding applicable interest and penally thereon) on renting of immovable praperty services provided o tenants The Company has filed its detailed reply
on 24 December 2012, Mo futther vorrespandence has been received in This case,

For both the above maters, the Company has filed applicalions in Form SVLDRS-1 under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolutivn) Scheme, 2015, The Company has
reesived SVLDRS-3 with service tax demand in respect of above matters. The Company has nol sceepred the demand and is evaluziing the furiher course of action

i Customs duty demand at the time of debonding of assets from the Soltware Technology Parks of India scheme { STPI ) for Inlime Rs. 16 million and KRIT Ra. % million
4 The SPV wisc details of capital commitments are as follows:
As at As at
30 September 2020 | 31 March 2020

MBFFL 468 -

Gigaplex 1,325 -

Sundew 696

KRC Infra 1597

Herizonview 338

KRIT 354

Avacado 171 .

&, 247 =
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a)

3]

a)

b)

Avacado

A Suit has been filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadin { Plaintiff) against [very Propenties asnd Hotels Private Limited ([vory) & Others which includes the Company as
one of the Defendants inter alia in respect of the land and the "Paradigm’ Indusirial Park puilding of the Company, The Pleintiff has prayed against the Company and the said
Ivary restraining thew from cantying out fusther construction or any other aclivity on the land (on which the building Paradigm is construcied). demnlition and ramowal of the
smuclures on the said land, appoiniment of a Court Receiver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agrecments entered inte by the Company
wilh Ivory and the Plainliff as voidable and having been avoided and rescinded by 1he Plaintiff and (o be delivered up and cancelled, restraining from alienating, encumbering or
parting with possession of structures and restraining from dealing with, crenting fresh leases / licenses or renewing lease / license in respect of the said Paradigm building snd
from reveiving or recovering any rent f license fee f compensation in respect of Ihe said leases f licenses, depositing all the rents in the Court, ete, The Court has not grazicd any
ad-interim relief 10 the Plaimifl. The Company has filed ils reply to the said Suit demying the allegations and praying rhat no interim relief be granted to the Plaintifl. The
Company in its reply hes also taken up a ples that issuc of limilation should be decided as a preliminary issue befors any interim reliel could be g; 110 the PlainidT. P

1o the Plaintifl's application fior expedited hearing of the case, the Hon'ble High Court Bombay vide an Order daled 19/0%/2013 and 20/0%/2913 framed the issue of limitation
under seetion 9 {A) of Code of Civil Procedure to be fried 84 10 jurisdiclion For the maintainability of the suit and divected e Plaimbil¥ to (il an aMidavil in liew of examination in
chiel of the Nirst witness on er before 171042013, Pursvanl 1o the PlaintifT's SLP in the Supreme Court challenging the Orders of the Hon'ble High Court dated 19/0%/2013 and
2040972013, the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide il Order dated O8/(0/2013 siayed the operation of the aforesaid Orders and further proceedings in the High Court Suit No. 414 of
2008. Thereafter the Hon'ble Supreme Coun by its Order dated 25 Augpust 2015 has refersed the said SLP to a three Judge Bench to be posted along with SLP { C) No, 22438 ol
2015.The SC by ils Order dated 1212 2018 disposed ofT the said SLP as inlructuous in view of deletion of Section 94 of the Civil Procedure Code by the Maharashira Act 61 of
2018 on 29.10.2018. In view of the subsequent amendment by (he State of Maharashira to the said provisions, pursuant 1a the Pelitioners application lo restore the SLF by
cncelling the Order dated 12.12.2018, by Judgement dated 4.10,2019, three Judge Baneh ol the 5C held that u's 9A CPC (Maharashira) question of limitation cannot be decided
as o preliminary issue as Lo jurisdichon. The SLP, application for interim relief and the High court Suit are pending for the Gnal hearing

Based on en advice obtained from an mdependent legal conmsel, the management is conflident thar the Company will be able 1o suilably defend and the impact, if any, on the [nd
AS financial stalements can be determined on disposal ol |he above Pelition and accordingly, Ind AS Financial statemenis of the company have been prepared on a going concemn
basis

Further, the Plaintiff, through bis advocates & selicitors, had addressed Tetter daved 13 Febroary, 2020 including w Mindspace REIT, the Manager, the Trusice, the Sponsors,
Avacado, Mr. Ravi C. Raheja, Mr. Weel C Raheja, Mr, Chandru L Raheja, |1vory Properties and KRCFPL., expressing lis abjection fo the proposed OfFfer end any sctions
conceming the building Paradigm locnted ut Mindspace Malad praject. The allegations and averments made by the Plaintiff have been responded and denied by rhe addressees,
Through their advocates & solicitors. Mo lurther comespondence has been received.

Pursuani (o the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given for commercial wse, rerrospectively with effect from | June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010, some of
the lessces to whom the Company has let oul ils premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged rhe said Tevy and, inter-alia, its retrospective application and withheld
payment of service tax lo the Company, based on certain judicial pronauncements and stay orilers granted by appropriate High Courts from time to lime. Farther in this regard
the |ion'ble Supreme Coun has passed an intevim order dated 14th October, 2011 in Civil appeal nos, 8350, 321-8393 of 2011 and in compliance of which, such lessees have
deposited with appropriste authority in 3 installmenis, 50% of the amounl such service tax nol so paid by them upto 30 September 2011 and have fumished surery for the balance
30% ol he amount of service rax and which amount has also been deposited by them with the authorilies. Further as per Hon'ble Supreme Court's Order dated 5th April 2018 in
Civil Appeal No. (3) 448742010, the manter is deferred watil disposal of the issues pending before the nine judpes Bench in Mincral Area Development Authority and others

In view of the above and subject 1o the [inal orders being passed by 1he Hon'ble Supreme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liabiliry on the Company in
respeet of interest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax, which ansount would be recoverable from the respective lessees by the Company.

KRC Infra

In respect of the Compeny's project at Village Kharadi, Punc, a special civil suit is filed. The suit hled by Ashok Phulchand Bhandori against Balasahcb Laxnan Shivale and 2%
othiers in Tespeet of inter alia an undivided share admeasuring 44,135 Ares ol of the land bearing $. Ne 65 Hissa No 3 for declaration, specific performance, injunction and other
eeliefs. Neither Gera Developments Privale Limited nor KRC Infrastruciure and Projects Private Limiled is a party 1o the aferementioned suit and neither of them have filed any
interveniion applicatien. There are no orders passed in the maner affecting the suil lands or the development thereol or restraining the transfer or development of the the
aforesaid land in any manner whalsoever

MBPPL

Pussusnt to the demerger and vesting of the Commerzone Undertaking of K Rahcja Corp Pyt Lid. (KRCPLY), in the Company MBPP'L, the company MBITL is the owner to the
extent of 38 16 % undivided right title and inlerest in the land bearing 5 Mo 144, 145 Yerawada, Pune which is comprised in the said Undertaking. “Shrimant Chhatrapati
tJdayan Raje Bhosale {“the Plaiowi f) has filed a Special Civil Suil bearing Mo, 132 of 2009 in the Court of Civil Indye, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile and Orwmer
Shri Mukund Blavan Trust {whoe had enfrusted development cighis 1o vBPFL) and the State of Maharashira, claining 1o Le the owner of the said land. The Hon'ble Court was
pleased 10 reject the Application for anendment of plaint filed by the PlaintiT and allow the Third Fary Applications on 14, 1 L2016, The Plaintiff has filed two wril petitions
bearing Mo, 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in the Bombay High Court challenging the aforesaid orders passed on 14,011,206 The matter was transferred to another Coun for
administrative reasons and adjourned on several orcasions for compliance of the order by the PlaintifT, On Sth March 2018 she Advocate Tor the PaintilF filed a purshis on
record stating that since he does not have any instructions in the marter from the Plaintiff, the Vakalamamn is being withdrawm by him and the matier was posted on 20th March
2018 O 20th March 2018 the Hon'ble Court was pleased to adjoumn the matter til) 220d June 2018 since the Advocate for the Plainliff had swithdrawn the Vakalatnama and the
Plaintifl was not represented by any Advocate, 'Writ Petition No. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon"ble Bombay High Court challenging ibe orders dated 14 Movember
2016 by Shrimant Chatrapati Udayancaje Bhosale apainst Shri. Mukund Bhavan Trust snd ofhers came up for hearing on 28 Noverber Z017 wherein the Advocare for the
Petitioner undertook 1o serve the copy of the petilion on the Respondent No 2 ic. Statc of Maharashtra and the |lon'ble Iligh Court was pleased to adjoum the same till
16.001.2018, 26072018, 22062018 On 22062018 the Advocate for the Defendant Mo, | filed a purshis stating that the Delendant Moo | {a) expired. matter was furlher
adjourned till 24.10.18, 26,11, 18, 2112 18, 01.02,2019, 2503 2019 and 15042019, 1806 2019, 27.08.2019, 19.0%2019.0n 19.09,2019 the malter has been stayed by the
Hon'ble Court and further posted on 11.11.2¢19 for complionce of the order dated 14 [1.2016 by the Plaintiff. The matter has been slayed under Sec 10 of Code of Civil
Procedure On 07.04.2020 the matter has been funther adjourned till 11 06 2020, On 11.06.2020 the maner was forther adjourned 1ill 11.09.2020 and the same has now been
further adjowned 111l 04,12 2020 Both the Writ Petitions were posted on 21 00,18, 11 10,18, 22.10.18 and lurther posted on 10.06 % for Admission. The matters came on board
on 20,06 2019, 14.11.2019, 15.01.2019 and 2).02.201% As per the CM IS Writ Petition Mo, 4415/2017 was lasl posied on 27.03.2020, and 15 yer not Jisted As per the CMIS Wil
Petition Mo, 4268/2017 was |asi posted on 27 032020 and is now listed on 12 102020 for dmission. In the management’s view, a5 per Jegal advice, considering the marter and
the facts, no provision for any loss / Hability is presently required to be made

Maharashira $tate Flectricity Distribution SPV Limited {MSEDCL) had sent a Jetter snd subsequently, a show cause notice as lo why the K. Rabeja Corp Pvi. Ltd. (KRCPL) (of
which the Commerzone Undertaking is demerged in the SPY MBPPEL) should not be penalised for alleged loying of cable witkoul oblaining proper permission from the Fune
Municipal Cocporation (PMC) and levied a penalty of Rs. 23 million on MBPFL. MBPPL has adequately responded to such allegations. Pune Municipal Corporation has issued
te MSEDCL {with a copy to MBPPL 2nd Panchashil Corporate Park Pyt | .4d. {Panchasil) staling that the penalty has been waived however, since there has been a vialation of
PMC approved wenching policy the penalty of Rs.S million is to be paid by Panchasil amd MBPPL. MBPPL has received letter from MSEDCL addressed to MBPPL and
Panchashil to pay penalty charges of Rs. 5 milllions and complete the balance cable laying work on priority by observing rules and regulations of MSEDCL with due permission
from PMC, MSEDCL sent o letter to Panchashit and MBPPL providing the bifurcation of penalty of Rs 5 milllions and requesting Panchashil and MBPPL 1o make the payment
al the earliest, MBPPL has sent a teply letter informing MSEDCL that MBPPL is not linble to pay penalty of Rs, 3 million and in respect of the penalty of Rs. 2 milllions,
MBPFL and Panchashil are both jointly liable (o pay the same MBPPL has forther requested MSEDCL to confirm on the same (o enable MBPPL ind Panchashil 1o
digcuss/negotiate on the same, 1 is learnt that Panchshil made the payment of Rs. 5 million as penalty charges 1o MSEDCL and completed the work of laying cable, No provasien
is considersd necessary at this staje
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The Company is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s managemeni does not T¢asonebly expect
that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company's resulrs of operalions or financial condition.

MDPPL received a communication {allcged reminder) from Pone Municipal Corporation (PMC) demanding sn amoun! of Rs. 157 million allegedly due from MBPPL based on
objections by inlemal andit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submilted 2 letier denying all allepation of PMC, as MBPPL bas nol been served with any
document teferred fo the szid PMC letter. Subsequently MBPPL addressed one more communication slating that MBPPL would be in a position to submit their ceply upon
reccipt of the details of amount demanded as per their reply submitted which siates that if any principal outstanding is due/recoverable, MBPPL agrees 10 make the sait payment
and sought detailed clarification on the inleresl amount,

Intime, Sundew and KRIT

In accordance with the Scheme of amang t which was approved by |lon’ble Andhra Pradesh High Conrt on 23 March 2007, the Industrial Peck Il and 1[I undenakings of
K.Raleja [T Park {Hyderabad) Limited {formerly known as K.Raheja IT Park {(Hyderabad) Private Limited} ("KRIT", "JV Company~) heve been demerged and vested in the
Company with cffect from the appointed dste ie. 01 September 2006

The Compeny hnd scquired the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as pan of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said land is in lisu of the employment opportuniities to be
generated by KRIT and others

The liability, iF any, arising duc 1o the obligation to create lhe job opportunities for the entire laryer land of which the above property is a part, confinugs ta e relained by KRIT
a5 al 30 Septeinber 2020,

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Telangana Siate Indusirial Infrastmenire Comporation Limited ("TSIC") has retuned the osiginal Bank Gugrantees to KRIT and also
confinmed 1p the bank thet TSIC will not claim any amount from the bank under the Bank Guarautees and the bank is relieved of its obligation. Henee, no liability is recognised
{owards the price of the plot of lond

An uncenditivial obligation 1 pay amewnts due 1o Andhra Pradesh Tndusirial Infrasimeture Comporation Limited (“APIIC™) in respect of APIIC's claims of lesses due to any
dilference in valwes penaining to sale transactions of the project undertaken by KKI1', Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC n its ¥ Company, if any, will be paid in full
by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd end #t hes fumished to the )V Company in writing agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment 10 Govermment/ TSITC

The shareholding pattern of the Govemment/TSIIC in the ]V Compuny and the Company will not change 45 a result of conversion from Private 1o Public, the Goverment £
TSIC equity of 11% will remain the seme in ihe Company and all the demerped companies and further in fatwre, Govemment / TSUC will nor be asked o snfuse further <ash 1o
miaintain its 11% stake.

Glgaplex

*Regular Civil Suil had been filed before the Ton. Civit Judgge {J.D) Vashi et Centeal Business District by an Education Society ("the Plantifi™) who is claiming riphts in existing
school strcture, claiming its area as S00 square mefers and its existence since more than 30 years, seeking an injunction net 10 dispossess him. The Company has filed its reply
opposing the Plaintiffs prayers. After hearing the parties, the Hon'ble Judge a1 the Vashi Court had rejected the PlaintifT's Lnjunction Application by Order dated 200818
{Order), ThercaRter the Plaintil has liled an appeal in Thane Dismrict Court. The PlainkifE's Appeal filed in Thane Districe Count is still pending, it's next date is on 16.10.2020
In management view, the estimate of liability arisini out of the same is remole, no provision has been faken.

KRIT

A Wril petition has been filed apainst the Company in the High Court of Judicature of Andhya Pradesh at Hyderabad with respect to specific use of the land admeasuring 4,500
square yards, earmarked as plot 18. Pursuant to it, the Count has passed an Order for no consirchion activity upoi the trizngular piece of 2 acres 40 cems of land earlier
wdlentified an the time of allormenr as “Common Facility Cenbie’ in the sollware Jayaut until further orders of the Coun. 1ALA and APIIC have filed alfidavits opposing the writ
petition, sonfirming the allonnent and rights of KRIT in the Suit Land, and for vacating the Stay Order. The matter is pending before (he Court Greater Fyderabad Municipal
Carporation (*GHMC") had filed an application in the Court for clarification thal the Siay Order does not precinde GHMC from acquiring A portion of O 14 scres (approxim etely
567 square meters) for Toad widening. Subsequently, GHMC has acquired the portion of land and constructed the road. The matier is pending for disposal by the High Coun
Hased on the Tacls of The case, the managemenl does not expect any liability and is of the opinion thal po provision needs lo be made

Harizonview

W S Industrics {India) Limited ("WS1IL") has filed a wril petition before the Madras High Courl against the District Revenue Officer, Thinwallur ("DRO”) and F. leyapal Sio
R. Perumalsamy {“Jeyapal”) secking ditections for quashing a notice dated May 23, 2017 issued by the DR and Addinonal District Judge ("Notice™} The Notice was issued by
ihe DRO cum Additional District ludpe on a complaint presented by Teyapal alleging that lands were handed over 1o WSIIL on cerain conditions, and mstead of nsing such lands
for comimon purpose, WSIIL has been using the lands for commercial purpese. WSIIL is the ersrwhile owner of the land, a portion of which was subsequently sold and
translerred by WSIIL 1o cedlain entities. Horzonview has been pranted development rnights over such land. The Madras High Court, by its order dated June 5, 2017, has granted
interim siay. The mater is pending before the Matvas High Conn, Neither RPIL Signalling Systems Limited {the present owner of te land at Porur bemy developed by
Hlorizonview Properties Private Limited) nor Harizonvicw Froperties Private Limited is 0 party 1o the aforementioned suil

Assessment of possible impact resutting from Covid-1%

The Mindspace Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating 1o COVID-19 on the operstions of the Mindspace Group and carmying
amounts of property, plant and equipment, Investment Property, [nventories, receivables and other assets. The Mindspace Group, as at the date of approval of these financial
statements, has used internal and external sources of information (o delermme the expected future impact of COVID-19 pandemis on the purfermance of the Mindspace Group
The Mindspace Group hased on current eslimales expects the camying amourt of the assels to be recovered. However, due to the evolving namre of the pandemic and iis
response by variuus gover patent anthoritics the Management will continue to monitor developments to identify significant impacts, i any, oo the Mindspace Growp®s aperations

Management Fees

Froperiy danagement Fee

Pursuanl 10 the Investmeni Managemeni Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled o fees 6@ 3% of the Facility Rentals per annum of the relevant
property in respoct to operalions, maintenance, administration and management of the SPVs. as applicable. The fees has been determined 1o meet the ongoing easts of the
Investmen| Manager r undertake e services provided 1o the Mindspace REIT and its SPVs

Property Management fees for the quarter and half year ended 30 Sepiember 2020 amounts 1o Rs 58 million (3| harch 2020: Rs Nil) There are no changes during the peried in
the methodology for computation of fees paid 1o the Manager,

REIT Management Fecs

Pursant to the Invesiment Munagement Agreement dated 21 November 2019, 1 Manager is entiled to fees @ 0.5% of RELT Net Dismibutable Cash Flows which shall
be payable eilher in cash or in Units or a combination of both, at the discretion of the Investment Manager. The fees has been determined For undertaking management of the
REIT and its investments. There is ne REIT Managsment fees accrued for the quarter and hall year ended 30 September 2020 and for 1he peried ended 31 March 2020, There
are no changes during the penod in the methodelogy for computation of fees paid 1o the Investment Manager

Support Services Fee

Pursuant 1o the Investment Management Agreement dared 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manayer is entitled to fees @ 0.5% of REIT Dismribations which shall be payable either
in cash or mn Units of & combinatian of both, at the discretion of the Investment Manager. The fees has been detcrmined for underiaking management of the REIT and its
nvestments. REIT Managemeni fzes accrued for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2020 amounts to Rs. 10 million (31 March 2020: Rs Nil). There are no changes
during the period in the methgdology for computstion of fees paid to the Mimager

Stalement of Net Distributable Cash Flows have not been disclosed since the first distriburion of the REIT as stated in the Final Offer Dacument will be made upon completian
of the first full quarter afier the listing of the Units on the Stock Exchanges i 31 December, 2020
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51 Details of utilisation of proceeds of 1PO are as follows:
Pnriiculars Proposed Aclual utilisation Unutilised
utilisation upto amouni as ai
30 September 2020 | 30 September 2020

Partial or [ull pre-payment or schedulied repayment of certain debt facilities of
the Asset SPVs availed from bonks/financiol institutions (neluding any
aceried interest nnd uny opphicable pendlties/ premium)

9,000 9,300 Refer Note
Purehuse of Non Convenible Redeemable Preference Shares of MBPPL 334 234 -
General Corporate Purposes anid REIT lssue Expenses 666 309 Refer Nole
Total 10,000 5,943 -

Note: Rs. 300 million is used in cxcess for providing loans to Asset SPVs for the purpose of repayment of debt facilities of the SPVs and balance Rs. 57
million is unutilised as on 30 Seplember 2020

&2 Details of utilisation of proceeds of Debentures are as follows:
Particulars

Proposed Aclual utilisation Unulilised
utilisation upto amount as at
30 Seprember 2020 | 30 September 2020

Providing loans to the SPVs for mecting their comstruction relaled expenses,
working capilal or pgeneral corporate requirements, repayment of financia
indetiness, general corperate purposes including payment of fees and
expenses in connection with the Issue, acquisition of commercial properlies
or such other purpuses as stipulated in the transaction documents

5,000 400 4,600
Mote ; Rs. 4,600 million were invested in Axis Overnight Fund by Mindspace REIT on 29 September 2020, redemeed on 30 Seplember 2020 and
proceeds were received on 1 October 2020

53 Earnings Per Unit (EPU)
Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period atiributable to Unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstansling
during the period. Diluted EPU amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit atiributable 1o unit holders by the weighted average number of units
ourstanding during the period. The Units of the Trust were allotted to Sponsor Group and Blackstone enlitics on 30 July 2020 and to the applicants of
intial public offer on 4 August 2020,

Particulars For the quarter ended | For 1he half year ended
Sepeember, 2020 September, 2020

Profit/ {loss) after tox for ealculating basic

and diluted EPU 626 621

Weighted average number of units 404 203

(no. in milhien)

Earnings Per Linit

- Bosic (Rupees/unit) .55 3.06

- Diluted (Rupees/unit) 1.55 306

38



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

{All amopnts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

54 Net Assets At Fair Value attributable to Mindspace REIT

As at 30 September 2020 | Asat 30 September 2020
S.No Particulars Book Valoe* Fair value
A Assets 212,287 249370
B Liabilities ** 48,876 48,685
C Net Assets (A-B) 163,411 200,685
D No, of units 593.018.182 593,018,182
E NAY (C/D} 275,56 33841
* s reffecied in the Balaince Sheey

* *cxcivding fease Nabilities in Fair vole

The above fine valie dtnchudes vafue of faciliey momagensens business which wos comaicsced ko KNC fafeo with offec fromt § October 1020

Measurement of fair values:

The fair values of Investment Property, Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-
progress are solely based on an independent valuation performed by an external property valuer ("independent valuer"), having
appropriately recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.

Valuation technique

The fair value measurement for all of the Investment Property, Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment property under
construclion and Capital work-in-progress has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the inpuis to the valuation technique
used. The valver has followed a Discounted Cash Flow method, except for vatuation of land for future development where the valuer
has adopted a mix of Market Approach and Discounted Cash Flow method, as the case may be. The Discounted Cash Flow valuation
model considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective properties, taking into account the expected
rental prowth raie, vacancy period, occupancy rate, and lease incentive costs. The expecled net cash flows are discounted using the
risk adjusted discount rates. Among other factors, the discount rate estimation considers the quality of a building and its location
{(prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality, lease terms and investor return expectations from such properties.

Note:
| Other assets al book value excludes capital advances, unbilled revenue and finance |ease receivable (which form part of fair valuation

of the Invesiment Property, Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment propenty under construction and Capital work-in-progress).

2 Gigaplex has made an application for denotification of a part of the SEZ into Non-SEZ. Therefore, the fair valuation has been
computed by valuers considering that part as Non-SEZ unit.

3 Power Dieemed Distribulion License operations in Gigaplex, MBPPL and KRC Infra have been valued by the valuer separalely using
Discounted Cash Flow method.

4 Liabilities at book value for caleutation of fair value of NAV, excludes lease liabitity (which is factored in fair valuation of the
Investment Property, Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment property under ¢onstruction and Capital work-in-progress).
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55 Net Operating Income (NOT)
The Mindspace REIT entered into share purchase agreement with Sponsor group and Blackstone entities of Asset SPVs for acquisition
of the shares of the SPVs held by such shareholders in exchange for the units of Mindspace REIT (refer note 46). Acquisition of these
SPVs has been accounted as acquisition of group of assets based on the concertation test permitted as per Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2020 and accordingly, requiremenits in Ind AS 103 for business combination accounting are not applicable
10 this transaction.

The revenue and expenses pertaining to these SPVs have been consolidated from | August 2020 and therefore these condensed
consolidated financial statements include resuits of the these SPVs from 1 August 2020 1o 30 September 2020 only. As the transaction is
being accounted as asset acquisition and not a business combination, the pro forma information is not required to be disclosed per [ndian
Accounting Standards applicable to the transaction. However, considering these proforma information to be relevant to the investors, the
Governing Board has decided 1o provide following additional 'pro-forma’ information to represent an approximatec mecasure of the
performance of the Mindspace REIT group for the quarter ended 30 June 2020, quarter and half year ended 30 September 2020 and year
ended 31 March 2020, as if the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2019 following the analogy from disclosures required in Ind AS 103
for ‘Business Combinations’.

The following pro forma financial information has been prepared by combining the hisiorical resulis of all the SPVs for the respective
periods after making adjustment for intra group transactions and unrealised profits, if any. The pro forma linancial information is
presented solely for informational purposes and is not indicative of the resulls of operations that would have been achieved if the
acquisition of SPVs had taken place on 1 April 2019 or of results that may occur in the future.

Quarter ended Quarter ended Half year ended Year ended

Particulars 30 June 2020 30 Septemhber 2020 | 30 September 2020 31 March 2020
{Unaudited) {(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

s A 3,059 4,079 8,038 17,660
from operations
el 741 713 1,454 5,403
operating expenses ¥
Net operating income 3218 3,366 6,584 12,257

* direct operating expenses are repairs and mainienance - buildings, repairs and maintenance plant and machinery, repairs and
mainienance electrical installation , property tax, insurance expense, cost of material sold, cost of power purchased and power operation
& maintenance €xpenses)
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56 Financial instruments
A The carrying vatue and fair value of financial instruments by categories ane as below.

Anat Asat
Financlel assets 30 September 2020 | 31 Mareh 2020
Falr value through other comprehenstve meome FVTOCTY)
Investments - non-current 0
Falr valoe through profit and loss ("FVTPLY
Invesument in mutual funds - curent investments - :
Amiprilsed cost
Investments - non-curreni 18
Trade receivables 267 -
Cesh and cash equivalents 5,355 0
Oiher benk balances 272 -
Other financial assets 1,900
Total assets 7,812 L1
Financial abilities
Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term debt) 37,890 -
Security deposits 788 ~
Trade payables 916 -
Other financial liabilities 2444 49
Toinal linbliitles 48,647 49

The ivanagement considers that the camying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value.
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B. Measurement of falr values

<)

d)

The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair velues of the financial instrumenis that are:

a) recogmisad and measured at fair value

b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair yalues are disclosed in the finencial statements.

To provide an indication abont the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has clagsified its finencial instrumenta into the three
levels preseribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is menfioned below:

Falr value hierarchy
= Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities thet the entity cen access al the mensuroment date;

= Lavel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quobed prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or linbility, either directly or indirectly; and

« Lavel 3 inputs ere unobservable inputa for the asaet or liability.

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of aseets and liabilities measured et fair velus on recurring tasis as al
30 September 2020,

Finanelal instroments

Quantitative disclosnres fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets as st 30 September 2020:

Partlculars Date of valustian Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Finnnclal assets mensured 8t falr value:

FVTOKC] financial inveshments: 4] 0

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no iransfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during and all the three years.

Determination of fakr yalues
Fair values of financial 2ssets and liabilities bave been determined for measurement andfor disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the nates specific lo that asset or liability,

i} The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date.
ii) The fair values of other current financial essets and finenciel liabilitics ar¢ considered to be equivalent to their camying values.
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%7 Non-controlling interest

For the period ended 30 September 2020

Name of the entity Net assets Share in fotal comprehensive income
Asa % of Amount As n % of consolidated Amount
consolidated tots] comprehensive
net assetn income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.6% 163,411 91.5% 626
Subsidinries
Imtitme Properties Limited 1.1% 1,930 2.2% 15
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabed) Limited 1.8% 3,185 3.0% 20
Sundew Properties Limited 2.4% a4,191 3:4% 23
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 172,117 130% 684
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§7 Non-controlling interest (continued)

The following table summarises the financial information relating to subsidiaries which
have material Non-controiling interest.

(i) Intime Properties Limited

Particulars As at

30 September 2020
Mon-current assets 14,764
Current assets 3,625
Nen-current liabilities (226)
Current liabilities {622)
Net assets 17,541
NCI 11.0%
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests 1,930
Particulars Asat

30 September 2020
Total comprehensive income for the period 139
Attributable to Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the period 15
Cash flows trom/ (used in} :
Operating activities 14
Investing activities 0
Financing activitics {0)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14

(ii’ K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Particulars As at

3 September 2020
Non-current assets 23,323
Current assets 6,649
Non-current liabilities {191)
Current liabilities {820}
Net assets 18,961
NCI 11.0%
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests 3,186
Particulars As at

30 September 2020
Total comprehensive income for the period 134
Attributable to Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the year 20
Cash flows from:
Operating activities 11
Investing activities {6)
Financing activities (2)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3
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(iil Sundew Properties Limited

Particulars Asat
30 September 2020
Non-current assets 47,175
Current assets 1,554
Non-current liabilities (8,206)
Current liabilities (2,425)
Net assets 38,098
NC1 11.0%
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests 4,191
Particulars Asg at
30 September 2020

Total comprehensive income for the period 208
Attributable to Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the year 23
Cash flows from/ (used in) :
Cperating activities 37
Investing activities 651
Financing activities {634)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4

9,307

Total carrying amount of NCI
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Relnied Party Disclosures

Parties to Mindspace REIT {Refer Mote 1)

. | Pavticulars

Name of Entitiex

Promoters/Partners &

Directors

Trustes

Axis Trustee Scrvices Limited

Sponsony

Anbee Consiructions LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Rahejg
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mis. Jyon C. Raheja

Cape Trading LLF

Mr. Revi C. Raligjo
Mr. Nezl C. Rahejs
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyori C.Rahgja

£

Manager

K Raheja Corp Investmen! Managers LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Rahejs
Mr. Neel C. Rahejo

- AR RE- 80

1t

i1

1z

15

Spensors Group

#r. Chendru £, Rohej

Mr. Ravi C._Rahsja

Mr. Neel . Raheja

s, Jyoti C. Rahela

Capsran Trading LLP

br. Ravi C, Raheja
1. Neel . Raheja
1. Chandru L. Rahejn
Mrs. Jvott C. Rohejo

Casa Maria Properties LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Chandru L. Rahcja
trs. Jvoli C. Reheia

Raghukool Estate Developeimen LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
1. Neel C. Raheje
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
rs. Jyoti C. Rahcja

Pain Shelter Estale Development LLP

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
tr. Meel C. Rohejo
1. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs, Jyoli C. Raheja

K. Raheja Corp Pvl. Ltd

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jonily with
Irs. Jyori C. Robeja

Mrs, Jyoli C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Rahejz Joinlly with
Mr, Chandru L. Raheja Joinily with
Mrs. Jyoli C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Joinlly wilh
Mr. Chamdru L. Raheja Joimily with
Mrs Jyoii C. Raheja

Anbee Consiruetions LLP

Cape Trading LLF

Capstan Trading LLP

Casa Maria Properties LLP
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelier Esiste Development LEP
Mr, Neel C. Raheja Joimly with

tr. Famesh . Valeche

Ravi C Raheja
Neel C Raheja
Raunesh Valecha
Vinod Rohira

Ivury Property Trust

Chandru L. Raheja

Jyati C. Raheja

[vory Properties & Hotels Pvt Led
Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Raheja

{all are usieesy

Genexl Hardware & Parks Pvt. 1 ad,

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Joinly with
tr. Chandru L. Rahsja Jointy with
Mirs. Jyori C Raheja

r. Meel C. Raheja Joinily with

Mr. Chandsu L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C Raheja

Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Jyoli C
Raheja, behalf of Ivory Property Trust

Rawi . Raheja
Neel C, Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
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53 Relaled Pariy Discloaures

A.  Parties to Mindspace REIT (Refor Note 1)

8i, Na. | Particul Name of Entities /Pariners 4 Dlrectors

Governing Board and Key  |Governing Board
Manegerial Personnel of the |Mr. Deopak Ghaisas
Maneger (K Raheja Corp Ms. Manisha Girotra
Investment Manegers LLP ) |Mr. Bobby Parikh
Mr. Alan Miyasaki
it Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheje

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Yinod Rohira

Ms. Preeti Chheda

Entities controlled/jointly Brookfields Agro & Development Private
controlled by membera of Limited

Governing Board. Cavalcade Properties Private Limited
Grange Hotels And Properties Private
Limited

Immense Properties Private Limited
Novel Properties Private Limited

Pacl Real Estate Private Limited
Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private
Limited

Sustain Properties Private Limited
Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited

Feat Properties Private Limited

Carin Properties Private Limited
Asterope Properties Private Limited
Content Properties Private Limited
Grandwell Properties And Leasing Private
Limited

Sundew Real Estate Privata Limited

M/{s Bobby Parikh and Associates

* only when scting collectively
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58 Reclated party disclosures
B. Related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the period

Quarier ended For half year ended From 18 November
201% 10
Partlculars 30 September 2020 30 June 2020 30 September 2020 31 Mawrch 2020

Project Management Fees
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP - - 68

Trustee fee expenses
Auxis Trustes Services Limited | - |

Legal & professinaal fees
Ms Bobby Parikh and Associates ] . [

Interest income
Ivory Property Trust 19 - 19 -

Rent expense
(ienext Hardware & Parks Pvi. Litd 2 - 2

Royaliy Charges

Anbee Constructions LLP 1
Cape Trading LLP |
Tvory Properties & Holels Private Limited s - - |
K. Raheja Private Limited - . - |
K. Raheja Corp Private Limited - - . 2

Sitting Fees
Neel C Raheja
Ravi C Raheja
Yined M. Rohira
Preeti Chheda

=0 oo

Loan repaid
Ivory Property Trust M50 - 3150 .

Reimbursement of Expenses
K Raheja Corp lnvestment Managers LLP* 48 | 49 41

*Includes fees paid 1o M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates amounting to Rs. 0.48 million for the guaner ended 30 June 2020 and half year ended 30
September 2020 and R | million for the period endad 31 March 2020,

Payment to Spensor Group com panies in retation to Offer for Sale

Chandru L Raheja 10 . 10 :
Jyali C Raheja 1.13% . 1.139 -
Ravi C Raheja 1,179 - 1,179 B
Neel C Raheja 1.179 . 1179 .
Genexi Hardware & Patks Private Limited 057 - 957

Inorbit Malls (India) Private Limited 1503 - 1,505

Ivery Properties And Hotels Private Limited 3,385 - 3,385

Ivory Property Trust 10,352 . 10,352

K. Raheja Corp Private Limited 4,301 - 4,301

K. Ruheja Private Limited 2,851 - 2,851

Initial receipt from Co-sponsor - received

Anbee Constructions LLP - . - 0
Caps Trading LLP - - - 0
Isswe of Unit copital

Anbee Constructions LLP 9,736 - 9.736

Cape Trading LLP 9,736 - 9,736

Capstan Trading LLP 11,301 - 11,30t

Casa Mana Properiies LLP 11,301 - 11,301

Chandru L. Raheja 8974 - 8,974

Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited 6,294 - 6,294

Tvory Property Trust 2410 - 2410 -
Jyoti C. Raheja 2745 - 2,745 -
K Raheja Corp Privane Limited 10,064 . 10,064 -
Neel C Raheja 4637 . 4,637 -
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 11,301 . It.301 .
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 0,958 - 9,958 u
Ravi C. Raheja 4,637 - 4,637 S
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58 Related party disclosures

(& Year end balances

For balf year ended For year ended

Particulars 30 September 2020 31 March 2020

Trade Reeetvables
Carin Proporties Private Limited 1

Other Recefvable
Vinod N Rohira 0

Trade Payables
K Raheja Corp Invesiment Managers LLP 43

Sitting Fees Payable
Neel C.Raheja

Ravi C.Raheja
Yinod N. Rohims
Preeti Chheda

L= I

Other Financial Liabllites
K Raheja Cotp Investment Mansgers LLP 8

Security Deposit
K. Raheja Corp Pvi. Lid. 2

Payable to Selling Sharcholders
Chandru L. Rahsja

Inorbit Malls (I} Private Litnited

Ravi C. Rahgja

K Raheja Corp Private Limited

Neel C. Reheja

Jyoti C. Reheja

K Raheja Private Limited

Ivory Properties & Hotels Private Limiled
Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited
Tvory Property Trust

O et Tab Bod bt e L) R e D

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP

=]

“0" represents value less than Rs, 0.5 million.
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Annexure - 2

Statement of Deviation / Variation

Name of listed entity

Mindspace Business Park REIT

Mode of Fund Raising

Private Placement

Type of instrument

10 year G-sec linked secured, listed guaranteed, senior,
taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market
linked, redeemable, non- convertible debentures
(“Debentures”)

Date of Raising Funds

September 29, 2020

Amount Raised

INR 500 Crores

Report filed for half year ended

September 30, 2020

Is there a Deviation / Variation in use of | No
funds raised?
Whether any approval is required to | No

vary the objects of the issue stated in
the prospectus/ offer document?

If yes, details of the approval so
required?

Not Applicable

Date of approval

Not Applicable

Explanation for the Deviation /

Variation

Not Applicable

Comments of the audit committee
after review

Not Applicable

Comments of the auditors, if any

Not Applicable

Objects for which funds have been
raised and where there has been a
deviation, in the following table:

The funds raised by the Issue shall be utilised for general
corporate purposes including payment of fees and expenses
in connection with the Issue, direct and indirect acquisition
of commercial properties and for providing loans to the
Group SPVs of the Issuer for meeting their construction
related expenses, working capital or general corporate
requirements, repayment of their existing Financial
Indebtedness, providing inter-company deposits to other
Group SPVs financing their operations, and/or acquisition of
commercial properties directly or indirectly by way of
purchase of any securities of other entities holding
commercial properties, each in accordance with Applicable
Law.

Details of utilisation of proceeds of Debentures is annexed
herewith as Exhibit 1.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com
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Original
Object

Modified
Object,
any

if

Original
Allocation

Modified
allocation,
if any

Funds
Utilised

Amount
of
Deviation/Variation

Remarks,
if any

for the half vyear
according

to

applicable

object

(INR

Crores and in %

Deviation could mean:
(a) Deviation in the objects or purposes for which the funds have been raised
(b) Deviation in the amount of funds actually utilized as against what was originally disclosed

for and on behalf of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Digitally signed
PREET|  byPreen

NAVEEN
NAVEEN cHeDA
CHHEDA 2020111

20:59:02 +05'30"

Name: Preeti Chheda
Designation: Chief Financial Officer
Encl.: As Above

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com
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Exhibit 1

Details of utilisation of proceeds of Debentures
Amounts (in INR million)

Objects of the issue as per the Issue memorandum Proposed Actual | Unutilised
utilisation utilisation | amount as
upto at

September 30, | September
2020 30, 2020

General corporate purposes including payment of fees and 5,000 400 4,600
expenses in connection with the Issue, direct or indirect
acquisition of commercial properties and for providing
loans to the Group SPVs of the Issuer for meeting their
construction related expenses, working capital or general
corporate requirements, repayment of their existing
financial indebtedness, for providing inter-company
deposits to other Group SPVs financing their operations,
and/or acquisition of commercial properties directly or
indirectly by way of purchase of any securities of other
entities holding commercial properties, each in accordance
with applicable laws.

Total 5,000 400 4,600

Note : INR 4,600 million were invested in Axis Overnight Fund by Mindspace REIT from September 29,
2020 to September 30, 2020, and proceeds were received on October 1, 2020.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com
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